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DATE OF REPORT 

REPORT STATUS 

CASE NUMBER 

CASE TITLE 

PERTINENT 
STATUTECS), 
REGULATION(S). 
AND/OR 
POLICYUES) 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Final 

OTS-10-2780-1 

uman Resources Specialist 
upervision 

31 U.S.C. § 0.213 General Conduct Prejudicial to the Government 
[SUBST ANTIATEDJ 

OTS Directive 1201 Use of Information Technology Resources 
[SUBST ANTIATEDJ 

SYNOPSIS 

On August 5, 2010, the Department of the Treasury (Treasury), Office of Inspector 
General (OIG), Office of Investigations (01), received information from the Office of 
Thrift Supervision (OTS) alleging that OTS Human Resources Specialist, 
utilized OTS IT resources to arrange sexual encounters with women advertising on the 
Craigslist. (Exhibit 1) It was also alleged that-used his OTS-issued travel card to 
purchase hotel rooms to support his assignations. 

Investigation by the OIG/01 confirmed the allegation t hat -misused OTS IT 
resources to solicit prostitution and that~. with prostitutes on three separate 
occasions. When interviewed by the OIG/bl,~dmitted to soliciting prostitutes 
using OTS IT resources. -retired from federal service, effective October 1, 
2010. 

Case Agent: 

- edalAgent 
(o -u-ro 

(signature) 

Supervisory Approval: 

Phillips, Special Agent In Charge 

(Signature) 
This report is the property of the Office of Inspector Gen ral, and is For Offlclal Use Only. It contains sensitive 
law enforcement information, the use and dissemination of which is subject to the Privacy Act. 5 U.S.C. § 

552a. This information may not be copied or disseminated without the written permission of the OIG, which 
will be granted only in accordance with the Privacy Act and the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552. 
Any unauthorized or unofficial use or dissemination of this information will be penalized. 

Page l of 3 

Office of the Inspector 
General - Investigations 

Department of the Treasury 



REPORT OF INVESTIGATION OTS-10-2780-1 

DETAILS 

A. Aitegation: It was alleged that -tilized OTS IT resources to arrange 
for sexual encounters with women ~he Craigslist. 

B. Context I Background: -is a TG-51 Human Resources Specialist with a 
concentration in retirement planning with 36 years of federal service. 

INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY 

On September 3 2010, the OIG/01 completed its analysis of - email and 
determined that 1liiii had used OTS email to communicate with women offering a 
variety of adult/erotic services. In addition, - submitted a $100 payment via 
Paypal to a woman he had arranged to meet in Atlanta, GA. -also received 
numerous emails from adult dating sites he had subscribed to. (Exhibit 2) 

On September 8, 2010, the OIG/01 interviewed who admitted that he 
used OTS IT resources to view websites offering erotic services on a weekly basis as 
well as communicating with and arranging meetings with women offering erotic 
services. -acknowledged that he was aware he was soliciting for prostitution 
and stated he met with prostitutes on three occasions. In addition, he arranged to 
meet with another prostitute in Atlanta, but -ended up breaking their scheduled 
meeting and paid her $100 via paypal.com as a cancellation fee. 

- reported that he did not provide any OTS or banking information to any 
prostitute nor did anyone attempt to obtain such information from him. No 
assignations occurred in OTS or government-controlled property . -provided the 
OIG/01 with a signed, sworn statement detailing the matters above . (txhibit 3) 

FINDINGS 

The investigation determined that -s actions violated 31 U.S.C. § 0 .213's 
prohibit ion against engaging in "criminal, infamous, dishonest, or notoriously 
disgraceful conduct." In addition, - violated OTS Directive 1201, which 
prohibits using OTS IT resources for activities that are inappropriate and that use of the 
Internet should be able to withstand public scrutiny without embarrassment to the 
employee, OTS or the federal government. In addition, the policy also prohibits "any 

Thia report contains sensitive law enforcement material and is the property of the Office of Inspector 
General. It may not be copied or reproduced without written permission from the Office of Inspector 
General. This report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY. Its disclosure to unauthorized persons ls strictly 
prohibited and may subject the disclosing party to liability. Public availability to be determined under 5 
U.S.C. § § 552, 552a. 
Oat• f>nntltd: 10/11/10 
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATION OTS-10-2780-1 

other uses prohibited by Federal statutes, Regulations, Standards of Conduct, Ethics 
Rules, or Rules of Behavior." 

REFERRALS 

Criminal 

On September 2, 2010, the issue of -s misuse of OTS IT resources and 
solicitation of prostitution was presented telephonically to the United States Attorney's 
Office for the District of Columbia, which declined to accept the case for prosecution 
absent aggravating circumstances such as underage prostitutes or human trafficking. 

Civil 

Not Applicable 

Administrative 

pecial Counsel, Office of Thrift Supervision 

EXHIBITS 
Number Description 

1. Hotline Complaint dated August 5, 2010 
2. Memorandum of Activity, E-Mail Review, dated September 3, 2010 
3. Memorandum of Activity, Interview o dated September 

8, 2010 

This report contains sensitive law enforcement material and Is the property of the Office of Inspector 
General. It may not be copied or reproduced without written permission from the Office of Inspector 
General. This report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONL V. Its disclosure to unauthorized persons is strictly 
prohibited and may subject the disclosing party to liability. Public availability to be determined under 5 
U.S.C. § § 552, 552a. 
D.ttl8 Ptb ted : 10i21Jl0 
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Office. of the Inspector General 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Re ort of Investigation 

Case Title: -
. ~echnology 

Case#: OTS-11-1100-1 

Examination Manager 
Office of Thrift 
Supervisk>n(Legacy} 

Case Type: Criminal _ 
AdminlstratiVe ...L 
CivU 

lnve.stiga1ion Initiated! June 1, 2011 Conducted by:. 
· • Special Agent 

lnv&sttgation Completed~ OCT 1 7 2011 
: Approved by: John L PhjlUps 

Origin:-SpeclaJ Counse• Special Agent in Charge 
· ~upervision(Legacy) 

summarv 

On,May 28, 2011 ~ the Dep~reasury (Treasury)~ Office of the fnspecto;General (TOJG} 
rea,ived in · n from - Special Counsel. Offlce. of Thrift Superii-si<m OTS}. 
regardi tnformatton Technology (IT) Examination Manager. OTS. fained 
that accepted het current position in 2007 which required her movi~ th& ana na, CA 
~ee near Los Angeles, CA to Daly City1 CA (near San Francisco, CA). ~ever relocated, but 
wa$ l'elmbursed approx.imatety $10,000 in relocation e.xpenses. She atso traveled from her residence 
in southern CA to. Oaly City, CA often and submitted travel vouchers costing the OTS ''thousands of 
d<>f~rs." (Exhibit 1 l 

i · 

-
The investigatfoo determined that ~e allegation Is substantiated . ._.dmitte<! that she ne~er 
ret~ated, but accepted the re!ocation f:und·s from OTS. She adde<rMat her regional supeM&OnJ 
we~ awa~ that she ha.cf not. moved to the Daly Clty. CA area, and never exp~ any concern 
r~rding. thM£r. The investigation further determi.ned_that OTSempJoye~in the regiQn ware 
aw~re that I resided ln southern CA. but be!feved it was autfiortzed by ors ~uarters. 
OT$ heatiqu~rte.nr personnel~ they were. unaw-ara that-never r~ated. - accepted 
$1 ~882.51 ~n rnlocatfon flmd$, a.m;f v.,-,tt~.red $87. Jt47'.B5.. i!;v. travel tha.i' wuufd ~t 1w~ve Incurred if 
s.he;had Y~ft".;.ited. i~ ·~}a.ly CJty, CA ta 2.0filr aa. t~Vr.00~ ·a1e jn,"~ti~1k~~ wm~ d,;1t.;lined" for 
~H.o.:.$e~.1f.'br:. t."1tlr t.~mfr~;';iil'f (.(fld "~iYiity. tyy ~h& U~~.it~d Star.~s Ati"Drnev-'s: Crttl.t'~-. 

~ B~ir~~i.: ;;'.1·~"*~~~~·;-ri;-~;~.(t;i"~'i··~;·{~·;:;r kw;;;;~~~;.~~;.~ -r~~~~rri.:Ciii~.e·~;,·ii.;;~,~i:~;;~;;·· . w · --· ·-I 
~ ~~~i-i·.~f.. 1't l'.o,;;~rt-2.fm :~~~· laW' ·tf.l'~f<K(:l;'l)r~~ :.tM~~u~~~ \Utlt ~ f.~~~~ ~~ ~~~~ tilt -'~~tt11.~1J~ft!i ~~'~ I 
i wvn~an ~J~l:l Si~ ~dai:w;• ~- ,~ U.$.t~·~ ' ~.ti-1.. l''h.Y11 rv-rt(')rt: ~ J ·fJR :,•,f'r.-X~!AJ,., USE.; nNt ~ etr-i'tt !fl! d.~~~.1e·::11# f 

!..':!.~~~~~ .. ~~~~-~~-~!!~~~~~~------· ···-·-·-·-·-----·-···---···· .. .. ·---- ·· ·-- ··~·- ,, ·- .. .... -·-·-·· · ...... -···· ,,,_,., ______ ... i. 
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Report of l~ation 
CaSeName: 
Case fl OTS,. -
Pa~2of10 

Basis aflsf Scope Qf the Inve$tfgation 

f n· JUiy 2011, the OTS was being abolished. For several months prior to this date, employees were 
being offered positions at the Office of the Comptroller of~ Currency {OCC}. another Treasury 
bu~au. OCC was offering these position$ based on many factors to include lOca.Je. mlJ.tas 
offered a position at the OCC's San Francisco, CA office because OCC had a need in that office and 
ors· reconfs showed9s duty station as Daty CHy, CAt a subvrb of San Francisco, CA. 

During the course of the i.nvestigatlon, TOIG COflducted relevant interviews with: 
• rr Examination Manager (retired), OTS, Dafy City, CA 
• Chief Financial Officer, OTS, DC 
• tant Deputy Director, OTSt DC 
• . Managi.ng· Ohectorj Human Resources, ors. DC 
·• elocatioo Specialist. OTS, DC 
• ASslStant Director. OTS, Daly City~ CA 
·• Regional Account T echniclan. OTS, Oafy City~ CA 
•• As.sis'tant Director; OTS. Irving, TX 
~ · Reg~naf orrector (retired), ors, Sammamish, WA 
• eglonal Director, OTS, DC 
.• Deputy Director, OTS, DC 

Jn addition. TOIG· reviewed pertinent documents, including: 
• tnitial comptam from ors 
• Relocation documents- and travet vouchers fo-

f nvestigatfve Act{vitx 
r 

In ~ interview Witl! T~IG.- stated in 2007, ~pplied for the p,~tion of f.T 
Edmfrn:ltlon Manager in D~ She acceptectlrlrP<>smon and was gJVen. $10.000 to relocate 
fro~ he~idence. in Ranch Cucamonga to Daty City, CA~ wbich is 400 mites away. m .t~ Spring of. 
20tf. ~detailed brfeffy to Headquarters. l.n Ea 20.11 . as part .of the transition from ors. fo 
fhe~Off~e of th& Camptrofler of the Currency (OCC):. . s· notifted by OCC that she was. 
assigned to the sari Frt;1ncisco~ CA offfce near .hero . o .of Oaf1 Gifyi. CA mlfspoke to 
- In Human Resootces,; at the OTS ~use he. dki' nobvant to wrn-k ln the. San· 
~rice ~he res~<lad in Rat.V:l't Gucamonga·, CA. eqLiestet'.{ dwt-
join the ~ersatiun. - ·ttren admitted it>. ""and t ~a t~~r moved ~mr.# 
~ " . . . . . .. . . • . . .f.' ~· . 'I. •.• .,.,.'JI 1m-w"Jed oetwoon ;.~es several ts.~ ~mrn 200 o ~ ,.}tie added that f ~r ~.l ~ .,') f1.t.!!KU1(l(~.IS< 
., ·1/J;.....,..n.4 ............ . . ... . "' . . . ·. . , ...... ~ th .-~. . ~· . ·t • in, ~- •.• !t .. li,;><~m~<~. I~- ~ n Wetf 1'ta'f. :fl. ~~~I:.., '-"~~···~ 3~ ~r,:IW~f ~··~ J, ,',U f 1 iJV,f.,ff •.Ji$ 
m~:. {f.xh.ibl :2) 

!
·'. ··f~;,;; ~:~-;;,:;;(·~;l1~~:~s~iti;~~·i;~~-:~t;;j;J~if .. ;,;;~i;·(~i:~:"-;;I·~,::;~;i1i.f;i~~~·1~;;~~-i~j~-;;··a·i.iirt 1~:~~;e~;~··· · ... ·· _, ..... f 
c~.~~~i~. ;~ r:.r:~t:mr~ ~~~~mv~ ~~~ ,~:fb~r.c.,P.~.,,~t l?~~~'-1't~m.t :1r§li ;~ ~~~~~~~n!~ ·~~~¥,. :~'t ~ ,1;~9~i-=~·~'~t4 ·.ff~t~~ ... n~t , ; 

r ·'·""~~ -~'ltl;ittr'~~on U'l; Ji~:;;.Qftja.n~t.t -~~ 5 ~J .,,;i.-'1.,. ~ .ff:>~~ f1.Ig • ~\~ft ,'I r 1JR .. .,,J-q:.~~ ~ .. Jm.V ~~ b d*~,-r.i I 
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Re@ort.otlnv. 
Catie Name: 
Ca$&# OTS- - 100-I 
paQ_e 3of 10 

rn ~ interview With TOiG,~tated tha~was located in the Orange County, CA offi(;G 
for .several years. In 2007, she acoopted the pos1tio00f IT Manager in Daly City, CA and was given 
$1q~ooo to mJOcate from her residence in Rancho Cueamonga to Daly City, CA. 

rn t;itay 2011. as part of the transition from OTS to the OCC1 aim wa:s notified ~ that she was 
~o too San Francisco~ CA office near her ors off~'Ofl}aly City. CA. ~ke to· 
- because. she did not want to work in the San Francisco offiee since she resided in Rancho 
C~ CA. uested tha-Joiil the conversation. ~admitted 
to --and that she neve~ traveted. between cities several time8 from 
20QI7 tQ 20.11, She added that her-OTS managers in the OTS Western Region informed her that it 
wa~ not a pro~use the Western Region was making changes in territo~·. He did 
not'lmow how-a. QTS supervisors aUowed. this (Q happen for four years. -Id the 01 
th~ he belleved .-.io1atec:t merit princf?!• by apptymg ror and ~pting a positron where she: 
may ha.ve ~~·to mo\/& because it-was unfall' to other applicants who did not apply 
beeause of the· focation;· (Exhi,bjt 3) 

:•, 

In ~interview witll TOtG. -$lated that in 2007, 9:iPptied for the position of ff Examin~tioo 
~er in Daty City. CA. She·accepted the pcsttion and was given $10,000 to refocate ftom her 
re$i,dence; in Ranch Cucamonga to OaJy Cttyi CA ~tated that she· as$isted mwith relocation 
inf~rmation and. funds fn 2007. mstated that iti;OTS pol'icy that an employee, must move within 
30 :~ays and be at 1!1e duty ~tion as required, hCJ'lkver, an employee has .two years.sell their 
rea,ldence and recet~ cost retmbumements from the g.avernment to sell th~ house. .rovlded 
dotuments· that. reflected ~ reimbursed $10,882.51 for relocatron~ ~ at she was 
no(aware that ~~e7ie10cated. She and man~ement at Headquarters on'l.!!!__~ th~ when 
~occ contaded--regarding working fn the San Franctsco~ CA office, and~ the 
offer. (Exhibit 4} 

A T-OfG document review of '9s travel vouchers dis«>vered. the foUowing: ~veled 34 times 
In 4,\>08. Out of those trips, two were to and from her resid~ce to DaJy City, CA, arid an additionaJ 
eigr.ttravefs involved travel to OaiyCity, CAwithin. travel to an alternate location. She traveled 43 
um.es. in 2009. Of these travels-, ts·were. ta and from her residence to Daty City. CA An adcjitlonal 8 
invtJtved Daly City, CA. fn 2010. ~veled 47 times •. Of these travels .• 13 were to and from her 
re~nce and Daty City, CA.. An a<1ditiOnaf 7 focluded Daly City, CA rn 2011. she traveled 26 tfme?s. 
Of~ travels.. three were to am.Hrom her resiaenoa anc:1· Daty City. CA 

··: 

-~record reff.ected tnat- owe$ tfia. ors the. tonowmg tor t.ravet S:xpem~t~s that: wovkf n-0t have 
incitrred ff she had r~io~:ded. ta Daly Glfy. (~,fo. in .:J.ODt, ;3$ re~·.v>;foo;. 

:ri<x~aw ~~-1.49 t:tl 
2009 - $:.~ 1 ,,.~~.00 
')!.\ ... o ~~ -1' ·;..s·· "·""1· .\~ .. v· :. ...,. ··~·4':~~ t -L· .... · 

20~1. :J6.1~.sa 
ri.~f ··· $81JJ41.&S {f;>thlbit. 5) 

I''•- •.,,, .. ~••••• ··~.i .-.. - •.• .,-,,.,.,, .... , .. "'" ,..,. ~'"''II' .If••• •·••••.,..,_,. •. • •••• •l<<l.J••~ ,_,. ,., ~.,,,,.,,,,, ~•·· .. - t \ "•*'""·'""--·.,.#•• .--••111 .. '"""'' .. ,. _.,., . ..,, .• ,. ....... ~u, ,.. __ , ..,...,_, ,, ..,~,,,.,. •'~'"' "".., .,,. , ,,.,.,_ ""• • • • - -"Y""'·- •• 1>••, "'"' "' ·-·~"' '\ 

; '. 'li~ t!,.,,~\1 ·1-::t f\11~.,!J'~t'~~~ ''* tt:t- ,~r~~""irry ,~t titni t)Jn~~ of ;~v~.t&tr~M'~-;~ ·n~!\~~"V ~:·.,.~1~ 1~ 1' ~hf.i .sr:~)l;l.r,;~(»" 1 

i ("ri.eriP~,'. H. r.®t"1~1~~ ~~r~er~Nt )~'.A~.Q:1~f~~·mr.i1r:\'~~.r; F.!~Yr.1,~FA~·''7'i.~ti~ if.~ r,;(~(.A~if.'t~ ~~~/f ;~.,:~/!~. ",!?t~,disil'~~ ti.t~~.!;J.'; ; 
~ 'Nr•11 i:J~~ol1 ~n a«-o.l"':f~llf(!~ ·~}th ~ <J.~ ~ m.. ~ .~~ nl~{1(t '~ f.0~ t )'ff ~.~At \,~~.~-~~LY amt ,a. <il,,,.,k:1m1r.a. r 
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R.e.port of lflVi .. ation 
Case Name: 
Ca'9#0TS- -
Page4of 10 

rn an interview with TOIG, -stated that -applied for and received the posmon of IT 
Examination Manager In 2~~s on the interview panel stated that he was not involved 
with ~elocation process and that those decisfons were made out of OT S's Washington, DC. 
offlCS.,. ~. recalls. t. hat there was an .. und.erstan.ding by. OTS m.na ement that a period of time was 
giv·!9.· n to any employe. e to relocate. which was usually 2 years. stated that o~a9was 
promoted; she was in the Dafy City, CA office at feast once a mon ~ According t~e _ 
ex~tion was. for -to be in the field the majority of the time. ~ated that he waslf9"s 
seEX>nd level supervisor and did not sign her travel vouchers~ (Exhibit 6) 

In~ intervie~withTOIG • .-Stated that he-acce~ the position of IT Manager in Daly City. 
CP&"and was gwen $10,0~te from her res1aence •n Ranch Cucamonga to Daly City. CA. 
-had littfe contactwith ~12007. She then saw her monthly when .-was at the Daly 
Citf! CA office. - had airOiffce at the Daly City office, but was often on tra'Vei1hroughout the 
United States. 

In_ 2007 and 2008 • .-•. an administrative employee, reviewed~ vouc_ hers. 
~ecame i~S. 9and---Regional ~nt Technician, ~en 
~her travel. -stated that there was ~ments because of-emg 
on,'feave for long periods of time so the documents were probably not reviewed as th~s 
usual. She aJso stated that this office was under transition and there was management turnover 
dunog this time period, therefore .... would have. reported to various managers in 2007 and, 2008. 
In 2008. the travel system changec.ranc.t OTS Headquarters ~s ~sible for reviewing and 
au~iting traveJ vouchers. -stated she never questioned w~ was residing fn Sou1hem 
C~o~ia and her duty station was in the 8an Francisco, CA area, ~use~er handled 
rel~on matters. She assumed Headquarters handled -s relocation and approved of all of her 
tratef. (Exhibit 7} 

In an interviewwith TOIG. interviewed-stated-~s located in the Orange County, CA 
of(ice for several years. In 20071 she acceprecrthe position of IT Manager In Da~A. She then 
sa\f her monthfywhen -was at the Daly City. CA office, In 2007 and 2008, - reviewed 
m~y o~s tra·y,.el vouche_·_·rs. In Augus·t-2008, the travel ~ang_ ed and OT$ Headquarters 
W8S responsible for reviewing: and auditing travel vouchers. --stated she never questJoned 
whf'~ residing in S,outhem California and her duty station was in the san J=rancisco, CA 
area:i;e&use-never handled relocation matters. and did not berieve it was her rote ta question. 
-retired· on June 1, 2011. (Exhibit 8) 

Jn a.n interview wflr TOlG• - stated that- we.$ located in the Orange County, CA 1·Santa 
An$.· CA office for several year&. In 2001. she accepted tne position Qf IT Manag.- in Dary Cily. CA. 
- then became her IT supervieor and they had weekly tetephonic contact, and she would' se 
hetatoccasfonal meetingS'. She. did not review her timesheets or travel. That was performed at the 
Da1J City. CA oftlce by managers there~ In 2001t th& travel system changed and OTS Headquarters 
wri;, responsible for revieWing and auditing travel vouchers._ Headquarters would then send the travel 
voach_· ers to th.e ma_··. · .. _ nagers at the.· duty stations for additional approvaf. At this point. __b beeggaann 
re•ewtn~s travel vouchera In 2010.- went on a detail to OTS Headquarters.­th• no Ion · · · revtewed Iler vouch${$. Th• Report of~ .u. ~of the Office oflnvedQatlon.: treaswv ottrceoftfle ~ 

. rt comma sanaW. faW enforcentenUnfomdon and ill co$nf8 may not be reproduced wBflcut. 
wttbn pennfsston hi accordann wiffl 5 UJl.C. § 552., Thia nport rs FOR OfFrctAL use ONLY an4 .. ~ 
to unauthcrfzed na la problblted. 



-stated. s~ never ques~·wny-was !i!idln in Southern C~Uformaand he' dutY. 
s~n Ml$· in the San FranciSQO,. CA area. becal.ise never handled reJocatiOn mattere. and 
~liev~ QTS He.c;t<fqua~rs · or tbe.· OEJly ~ offi.ce· a low~ h~r tQ traWl{ from tier ha.'ne. tn 
so~them CA .to the O~fy Cit~\ CA office .. -sta.!ed that she dld noi. give .. permisslon !o . 
lra'lel between tf:!e .aJQremenfloned IOcations, or adV·IS& her that. she need not move. -etired 1n 
Ju$.J 2011 v (Exhiblf 9) 

' '· 
Jn an mterview wlttrTOIG.~tated in . applied for the· positk;n of IT Examinatk>n Man..,- in OaJy ·etty, ·CA 'lnAUiust.201 o ·d•iled to Headquarters and~s her 
direct ~Uperv:isbr. In November 2010, w" promO:fed and ~.indirect {!f,iCOnd 
~&upetvfsor ... ~xplalned that.QTS W3$ rotating aQ ft Managerstci1fTS headquarters. 
~ to· stay· at OTS headquarters until OT$ employees Were transitioned to the occ: 
tn May 201 f., -and infonned her ~s paid to retocate to Oafy City~ CA fn 
2007, but n~~. telephoned- and: info.niled her· that she sh~l:Jk'J report to Daty. 
City~ CA offl~ l~medl~tely· and_ not s~bmit any. addltk>nal. vou~rs~ -nfo~. h~r ttla1' she had 
looked fOr r9$.iqe~es. in Dal}t C•W., CA, but .n~t moved ~use. ,ne-c:rrcr-notthm.k it. wa& n~~ry 
si~ th~.~ territory was qhanging. St.le aJsQ inform~~hatshe·may: retire~ -
tat,..fea~·flom-a~ ~~reti~e June 1. 2011. (~ 

tn an ~w with TOIG1 ~in the Falf'of2010,~an a detail In OTS 
Headqu~~rs. W~ingtOn~er svpervjs'of was ~an~ry 2011 .~ 
promoted and Oeeame- supervisor. In. May. 20 Informed him· that she was to relocate 
when $he·~ p~07~ .~hew~ to mow ftQffl· Sou~ CA f.o.fhe San'francisco. CA 
area; . . She siated that did o<>f ref.ocate· ~u~ ~· relocatiQn wouid cost mere money then what 
OTS ~ aDo¢ated. Fu:M.elinore~- sne ~U~ved .that' not moving. Would save.her aild Of:S a·gre•·deal 
of money be¢~$&· she· W'a•: tray.eUog mQre. t0. other area.s ftlan: Oaly.: City~ CA~. -later inforrrie,d 

- an~ that: she- Woukt.ietir~ (Exhibit ·11) 

fn an _rn.terview with TC)~~ ~tated --.Ws promoted to ff Of(e~teu· in 2oa1. The p.~Mm 
was fOnnerty'held in the O~ify.(;:A office-wfl'tch was !fie Western Regl0f1 Headquarters w. OTf> 
believed the.new IT.Director would .aJso be·at this loeation: - applied.for ~n and was. 
promoted .. -was now th~k>n Director and her in"drr'8Cr ~pervisor. - statecfthat 
OTS manag~ntended for~ move, but neither he nor anyone else; to his knowledge, 
gave her a time frame. He and everyone in the OaJy City, CA office kn .. he was s60 residing in 
Southern CA and traveling to Da.Jy City, CA during the week for work. added that if -
had stated that she could not move to the Daly CJty, CA office, he would have worked with her to 
allow her to be the IT Director from the .Southern CA offiee. ·He stated that he did not believe th!$ · 
wOUld VIOiate any merit principles regarctlng f}er getting hired over O~er candidates Who· did not ~!j..'\l~ 
because. of the. position.» locatiOrt because sne was th~ mos.t qualified an4 would have tit*~l hf red, 'r.tr!tt 
()TS· wo.~ld have found a way- to. make It wo.rk (EXhibit 12) - . 

}~¥tr fnte_rvieW ~h '!Qf~t ~tated t~~.sne wrut:. P,~oted. tO ff ~minations Manager~ h~ 2001. 
She had been workf at the OTS office li1 Santa Ana. CA, but the sroon was IOcated 1n the OaJ 
Th._ Report of tnv .. t.JgatJon the pt'Operty of tb•.Otnce of v UgaUon. Treasury O.flfc. of the P«{ot 

eraL lt contalns AD9itive law enforcement ln/ormaitlon and lb contents may not be reproduced wtthout 
mt.n permiulon tn accontanu wtth 5 ~t. tt* ·~ 652. Thie repof'.( FOR OF'R<:W., USE. ONLY an~ lts.dJscfOst&re 
~ tinauthorized hlbitad. 
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City~ CA office near San Francisco, CA In September 2007, she reported to the Daly City, CA office 
amt stayed in a local hotet. She would travel to the office on Monday and return to her home in 
so~them California on the weekends. She stated that her supervisor and everyone in the Daly City 
offite was aware that she was commuting the 400 miles from her home to the office each week. 

-
- stated that when she took the position of IT Examinations Manager, she fully intended to 
re~fe to Daly City, CA and admitted that she signed a contract that she would repay OTS for any 
ref0cabon costs if she did not relocate. She and her husband went on a house hunting trip in the San 
Francisco area. worked with a refocation group called Primacy to have her current home inspected, 
an• contacted a realtor to sell her home in. Rancho Cucamonga, CA However, she reamed that she 
o~ more on her current residence than what it was worth because the home value in CA had 
deteriorated. She also understood that OTS would allow her two years to relocate. She then 
de<r:kfed that she would cease house hunting and remain in Rancho Cucamonga, CA uiltil 2009, 
hoping that the housing market woufd improve. ~rom 2007 to 2009; she continued to travel to Daly 
CitJ1 CA weekly. She would also travel throughout the Western Region and to Washington. DC as 
n~ed~ In 2009, OTS changed.the Western Region making Oaffas the Headquarters. She now 
tra"¥eled more often.to Dalfas~ TX than Daty City, CA. She believed it would be foolish to purchase a 
ho"1e near Daly City; CA at this point because her work was more in southern CA and TX then in 
Daly City, CA . In October 201 o. she began a detail in the OTS Washington, DC Headquarters. 
While on detail, she flew home to CA most weekends. 

In approximately April 2011 , she wrote an e-mail to-regarding the futu.re employee . 
tra~fers to the OCC. She was concerned that the ~assign her to the OCC office in San 
Frcfncisco, CA. sent another e-mail to ~nd he did not respond so she went to his 
~- He asked to join them. She told them that she.never moved to Daly C~ 
b~use she.did not beJieve she needed to becau~ of the chanQe in the Western Region. -
stated that she had 30 days to move in 2007, and that OTS would no longer pay refoca1'on because 
the,; time period had .e~On MemoriatWeekend fn May 2011-retumed to CA and rece. ived 
a tetephone call from-- ~tated that she, must reportlO'ilie Daly City, CA office the 
foHpwing Monday. llll:stated""lliiFS'lfe had a "bad feeling" about this transfer, and informed_ 
that she would retire •. 

~ted that. no one informed her that she did not have to move, but stated that her supervisors 
anci coworkers knew she did not mov&.. She submitted travel vouchers that incfuded her home 
ad. esa. She believed that if she were required to moveJ a supeIVisor or someone in OTS Human 
R+ uroes shQuid have spoken to her: •.. She aJso believed she had two years to relocate. Once l'\No 
ye~ passed. she believed it would not be prudent to move because the region changed. She 
staled that she received funds fo relocate, but was not certain of the exact amount she received. She 
d~ not believe she owes any money bacR to the OTS because she waa a good employee who won 
awards with ~ OTS. and this was a miscommunication. She added that ors· still has over $20,000 
of Her annuaf leave funds• and d d not reimbume her for her rast two travels. She could not recan the 
oosts of these travel& (Exhibit 13) 

Thii; Report of lnvestlgatkm Is the property of the Offfeft of lnvntlgatfon, Treasury Offfc• of the Inspector 
GeUfat,. rt contains senaitlVe law enforcement Information and Its contenta may not be reproduced Without 
wrlften penNu!On In accordance with. u.s.c .. 1 SU. Thia report la FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its disclosure 
to anauthorizad ~ 18 Dt'Ollibite4 
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R.eferrals 

Thti facts of this investigation were presented to Chief, Criminal Division, United 
Stales Attorney's Office (USAO), Central District of CA; for criminal prosecution, but was declined. 
(E~ibit 14) 

Th~ investigation was also presented to-· Chief, Civil Division, USAO, Central District 
of CA, for civil prosecution, but was decfi~·5) 

Judicial Action 

~ 

Findings 
; 

Th~ investigation determined that the allegation is substantiated. The investigation found that -
aceepted $10,882.51 in relocation funds, and vouchered $87,047.85 in travel that would not have 
inclmed jf she had relocated to Daly City, CA in 2007; as required. ~dmitted that she never 
rel6cated. but accepted the relocation funds from the OTS because most of it was reimbursement for 
house hunting trips. 

Du~g the investigation, OTS employees in the region revealed they all were aware that .. still 
resided in southern CA. but believed it was authorized by OTS headquarters. The OTS headquarters 
employees stated they were unaware tha~ever relocated. 

Ba$ed on the findings of our investigation, it appears that the foffowing pertfnent statute(s), 
regµlation(s) and/or policies were violated or could be applied to the case: 

.. • 5 C.F.R. 2635.101 - Basic obligation of public service 

Dlatribution 

Senior Advisor. Office of the Comptroller of the Currency 

!NI Repmt of~ fs tbs property of the Offfce of ln.v~ Treasury Oflce of the Inspector 
· It contam8 SMSsitive law enforcement tnfomlatfoa and its contenfS may not be repft>dw«t witllout 
~ ~ · ~with 5 U.S .. C. §SQ. Thlsrepoitfs FOROFFtCIAL USS ONLY' ad lladfsdoaure 
to a authorized Is probJIJited. 
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Case Agent 
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Date I 
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Date 

ThfSR port of lnvestigatio" la the property of the Office of lnveetlgatton, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
Ge~ml. It contains sensltiVe law enforcement mfonnatfon and ita contents may not be reproduced without 
w .... permlaskHt lrt accordance with S U.S.C. § 512. Thi• !'$port Is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its dfacfoeure 
to unauthorized ns Is hlbited. 
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ExbJbits 

t . Complaint from OTS, dated May 26, 2011. 

f· Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-Chief Financial Officer, OTS, dated 
June2,2011. ~ 

3. Memorandum of Activityl Interview of ••I •••tManaging Director- Human 
Resources, OTS, dated June 15, 2011. 

~- Memorandum of Activity; fnterview of-Relocation Specialist OTS, dated 
June 28, 2011. 

5. Memorandum of Activity, Travel voucher summary, dated June 29, 2011. 

e. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of ~egional Director, OTS, dated 
June 16. 2011. 

1. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of ~istant Director of Commerce Support. 
OTS. dated July 7. 2011. 

8. Memorandum of Activity. Interview of~egional Account Technician, OTS, 
dated July 7, 2011. 

9. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
July 18, 2011. 

·. Assistant Director, OTS, dated 

10. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of -Assistant Deputy Director, Examinations, 
Supervision and Consumer Protection~une 2, 2011 . 

11.Memorandwn of Aclivity, rnterviewof Associate Directorr Federal Reserve 
· Board .. and former Managing Director for Risk Management. OTS, dated September 13. 2011. 

12. Memorandum of Activity,. Interview of 
OTS. dated September 26, 2011. 

13. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
dated September 8, 2011 . 

IT Examination Manager (Retired), OTS. 

TblSReport of l~n ia tile ptOperiJ oftfte Offfce. of~ Treaewy Office Of tile IMpecfor 
~ ltcontains ~--~ Jntormatloft and ft8 contems may not b• reprotJuced wtaout 
written pemiakm ma~ YID 5 u.s.c. I 562. Tl1fs report Is FOR OfffCfAL use ONLY ud ftB discfoew'e 
to umwthorized Is probibitad,. 
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14. Memorandum of Activity, Criminal declination by USAO, Central District of CA. dated 
September 28, 2011. 

15. Memorandum of Activity, Civil declination by USAO, Central District of CA. dated 
October 5, 2011. 

Thi& Report o lnwstlgalfon la the property of the Offic. of~, T~ Office. of the Inspector 
GeunJ.. It contarns sensitive entcrcem mt'omlatioft and 1te coatenfJJ may net.be reproduced wlMut 
writrea pennlssfoa In accordattce wltft 5 u.s.c. § 562. Thfa rapott 19 FOR OfftCIAL use ONLY and ffa dfscfcsln 
to unauthorited nsons fa hlblted. 



j 
I 

I 
I 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 
BPD-12-1078-I 



I 
I Office of the Inspector General 

U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Report of Investi ation 

Case Title: 
Assistant Commissioner (SES} 
Bureau of Public Debt 

Investigation Initiated: March 7 , 201 2 

Investigation Completed: AUG 21 2012 
Origin: Confidential Complainant 

Summary 

Case Type: Criminal 
Administrative _1L__ 
Civil 

Conducted by: -
~ 

Approved by: John L. Phillips 
Special Agent in Charge 

On March 7 , 2012, the Department of the Treasury (Treasury}, Office of Inspector General, 

-

estigations, (TOIG) received an allegation from a Confidential Complainant (CC) that 
Assistant Commissioner, Bureau of Public Debt (BPD), was committing time and 

attend~raud. Specifically, the CC described a consistent pattern since approximately 2008 
where-arrives at work approximately tw o hours late and/or takes two hour lunch breaks 
and departs work at approximately ~.M. and does not take leave for the time she is not 
working. The CC also alleged that -onsistent ly conducts personal business involving the 
Humane Society during work hours. (Exhibit 1) 

The investigation determined that the allegations are substantiated .• admitted that she works 
varied hours and goes home or to the local Humai@e So iety during business hours 011 a regular 
basis and does ~e leave. A TOlG review o badge readings and timesheets 
discovered that~wes BPD a t.o~l .. 2.18. 7 hours from 2009 to 2012, or 
approximately $97 .. ~6 ln ~;;s~ary. - ~upervi.sor, .. OeptJty i:~or:1mJ11;$km~:.-r,' 
ero. •IV~!J i1'1W <l'I!'} cf-'' ':i~:ff,~H·~ r.c~.m~. i.Vld m·1 r.H~Ol'1' \ftftt.'l l.IS •::omplt.Jint s~:11. ·~·~.:r HPO m m 1.;m>nnB.:'1'. 

:;,·~g-' :trrne :v td att1:md~r1c~. t1'f'I~ !-'tlited tr1ar :;he "ftm.tJ nc1t overiy c~~i.~~.s:~"! n~i abl)~ · ' 
~ hi:.--<H8 bes.'.:~~1.s:t~.0-i~ ,;1 . . '.•t~!i:r.r •JJ"!1pio·~"~:> ;;,f'ld 1~~f;1~0'. 1NiV.J· .:'iC·~~.Jr~s;:H~i1a~~ ~111 ;;~~~ktz~/r; ,.; 
t:m·H~l'J' 1·;u11 rw.et . 1 h~ cast> '-.JJ',iB {~W:J!~H~d fr;r f~nr.m1~,~1 ! ~mo ct.vii pro~\$(!LJt lon ti't' thft- Urntet.1 :.;tate.~ 

/:" ttr;mi7v' ~ii OHf:.~e .. 

!"ii Ji F~,;;;r;,·"t~n~;;~)B.f:.1~·iii;;t;;, r» ~;· ~-.;;~~7;~;·~·"i "i:;1;~ -of;i~·:l:: (~~:: i;~::·;.;~~t1~:~~f'~;.;·:4.i:~.~~; ;~\· ~;:jffi~~·~;: {t:.·;;; .. ~ei~f;~;,i:~~,;-· ·· · · · · ··-·· ·-1 
! 11.~lllnti·i af. .i;: ~,:mt:~fr..m .s~:'lt"mvcs fo\'I/ ~~.,,fm·'ii~M~t?1"11; 4nftJm:i~t.foi~ :'l'W':~d i'is -~~r~a~1~:o?- ln'il'.'i' n~. bf.> r·l'#~muu·r.;~ wffh~?.lt / 
j ·,.1iffort pem;~$~Jon. &11 a:~.-,-cma~~t.?-wi~ e. v.s r-;· .. ~ 5!i2. n1~:9 rtJf~~rt !'a. FniR. OFr:1cttU. HSE ()1'J.tY <-!'.or.'~ :~n cfll'r.;J .. i:&qm:~ , · *" i.m:11.u~hr.~riz~«t. ri~rl'Kms ~~ (.'.f.!JhiJ;lt."$1~.. I 
t ... ......... ,,_,,. ,. _ _,••·' ··- _,,,,; ., ,, •. , .... . ,., ---•" ·'- • .. ••-·-'""''"•.,·----···•--'·"' - •••• •·- ·•>•''"'" '" '''"''•' •••· - ·•·-" ··· - ··-· ,,, .,... ,. ,.,_ , .. , ,. ,.-.. , ••••-• ,,_,,,. '"" ""''" •-··- •" w• •'"' . ........ ,. .. ,., n_...4,. . .. .,. , .. , , --• · ·-
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Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

On March 22, 2012, TOIG teJephonically interviewed a CC regarding a complaint the CC made 
to the TOIG hotline on March 7, 2012, regarding time and attendance abuse b The CC 
stated t~has been his/her indirect supervisor since _2008. During this time, CC has 
noticed ~mitting egregious time and attendance fraud. The CC stated that 
arrives to work between 9:00 A.M. and 9:30 A.M., takes two hour lunches, and often leaves by 
4:00 P.M. On Fridays,-arrlves to work at 10:00 A.M. and leaves at 3:00 P.M. While at 
work, she will often handle charity work for tha Humane Society. He/she has observed-
~ telephone calls from the Humane Society during BPO meetings. The CC was unaware of 
-taking work home to complete, and was unaware of having an~ h sica ailments 
~her to work shorter hours. The CC stated tha cretary is 
-has confided in the CC that she also is upset a out 'time an attendance abuse. 
The CC did not wa_nt his/her name in the report for fear of retaliation by- or BPO 
management. (Exhibit 2} 

The U.S. Office of Personnel Management outlines that an employee may use annual leave tor 
vacations, rest and relaxation, and personal business or emergencies. 5 CFR Section 550.1203 
states that an agency must make a lump·sum payment for accumulated and accrued annual 
leave when an employee separates or retires from the Federal service, enters on active duty in 
the Armed Forces and elects to receive a lump-sum payment , or dies. 

Time and at tendance fraud is where an employee knowingly enters, does not enter, or approves 
incorrect data accounting for official work hours. 

During the course of the investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 
• Assistant Commissioner, BPD 
• Administrative Assistant, BPD 
• Deputy Assistant Commissioner, BPD 
• Branch Manager, Speciat Investments Branch, BPD 
• Dlrsctor, Business Technology, BPD 
• Deputy Commissioner 

Lhting the course of the iHvestigat.ion, TOIG rnvi~wed the f<..•iti:iwir~g p~rt!nant ~krcLlrnar1ti;: 
•· BPD LCHH.'t.:~ Rt:::OJU:i~ fo1r.' .20.:'FS' ., Mi!t.r~1h 201.?, 
• t.\P£) b~'~i'JC wadfn~~ .J1 .. ma :.~'.O<n~ ·· M.-irdi JO ·1 :~: 
" BPD tfftt'.r'1'<1'<,,rk p;;-~qr.;ie.t:. 

('"" •••••-"' •J•<{,.,._,., .,.- '" ~• • -••·•---·----... -,,..., _ _., .,_. ... ,., ._,, _ .,.. , .., , .,. ,,.._ , _ ,,,.,...,... • • ,....,. .. .__ ... .. , .... ...., ___ .,. , _ .... ,,,.,._.., ,.-,,; _,.,_._.,.,, ,u-- · ... -•,o• ••• ••-·· -·- ,,. · ·- · .,. _., - ··'""" - - · .._-; 

i Y!t~ .'{-Ji~r..-;t u1. ~rr ~ttg~n'.k+i!':I ~-toil t~~1.i" tlrt.t-~f.ttl}f ,Jf! ihr, \)ff:'.rM t;,'/: l,:l-11:?.mi,g.1.,i'J•::m, Tr,i:1,~~·H1"i O'ff(~f;. ri-~ Ili•!i' f!l:f;f·t,1<,rt ')f ) 

i .!~.r,~m1t It 1~(;.1~i,;i'.ff•'9 .'!-1H1:t1.'11JY~ :i.:;,1M ('t~tf;11'l::~N111<0t1t ~11ir.H.m:ll.fo~n .it.1.n!! ai:"k ;:.t .. ~~tili~i~* 1·w1y rf11')~: ti~ •·~~t~:c;-17.)1.ir..-e"- V!l'i.~~ 11.:}nf. I 
i m~~i~r~ ~tttih~'51~lcct'!. t:l'l ~c.~1:,.x-•.hnce v•~tn ~ U.~-.J~. § $~. ·rh1~ repor.: ~ fOR f}f"flC1Al US!! ON\.Y ar.--.1 li.:a. J~v..1'."$11~ 1 
J. t.!~-~~~~~~.'~.~!!.~~R!!!~~!. ~'.lJtf!:!~!~~~~~- .. ........... _ -· ···· .. ········-··- ····-·-··· .... ·-- ··-·-··· .. ·~·· .................. ···-·---·-- ...... ··-'"·· ··· .... ... . .. . ···-·········j 
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· Investigative Activity 

TOIG reviewed numerous documents regarding BPD's telework policy. Personnel Directive 610-
2 dated December 2, 2002, entitled "Flexible Workplace Program" (FWP) states: "The FWP 
permits employees to work at a designated alternate worksite for at least a portion of the 
day/week. Based on the work requirements and duties of the position, participants in the 
program could use their designated alternate work site on an hourly or daily basis with or 
without computers and other electronic equipment." The Telework Pilot Policy and Procedure 
dated June 13, 2011, reflects that an agreement must be signed by the employee and the 
employee's management official before an employee may participate in the telework program. 
The policy also defines alternate worksite as a place away from the worksite that has been 
officially approved for the performance of duties. The policy reflects that "full telework" is 
when an employee works three or more days at the alternate work site, and the remainder at 
the duty station. It does not comment on partial days. (Exhibit 3) 

A TOIG review of- badge readings for calendar years 2009 ..i. 2012, and comparison ta 
her leave forms for the same time period revealed the following: 

• In 2009, TOIG only had information for time and attendance and badge readings from 
June 2009 to December 2009. During this ti~riod,-was absent from BPD 
356.6 hours during her 8.5 hour work days. -took 63.5 hours in leave for partial 
days (leave less than 8 hours). -sallowed .5 for lunch ~so TOIG credited-
65 hours (26 weeks x 5 days = 130 x .5 = 65) . Therefore,- owes BPD 228 hours 
for calendar year 2009. 

• In 2010,-was absent 671.9 hours from BPD during her 8.5 hour work days. -
took 62 hours in leave for partial days. llllalso took full days of leave, but these days 
were not computed because she would have badge readings for full days leave. -s 
allowed .5 hours for lunch daily so TOIG ~ubtracted~ours (52 weeks x 5 days = 
260 x .5 = 130) from the computation. Therefore,-owes BPD 4 79 hours for 
calendar year 2010. 

• In 2011, • was absent 76 1.4 hours during her 8 .5 hour work days. - ook 
169 .5 hours in leave for partial days. A~130 hours were subtracted~e 
calculation for lunch breaks. Therefore,- owes BPD 461 hours for calendar year 
2011. 

• In 2012, TOIG only had January 5, 2012 to March 2, 2012 badge readings and time 
records. During this time period- was absent from BPD 91.67 hours. She took 
partial leave for 21. 5~s. She was credited 19.6 hours for lunch breaks (39 days x .5 
= 19.5). Therefore, - owes BPD 50.67 hours for 2012. 

This Report of Investigation Is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive faw enforcement Information and Its contents may not be reproduced without 
written permission In accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552. This report Is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its disclosure 
to unauthorized persons Is prohibited. 
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- leave records ~how no telework for any day. Overall, the badge readings and leave 
records show-rarely was at BPD for an 8.5 work day, and her schedule lacked any 
consistency. She arrived to work anytime from 8 A.M. to 10 A .M., took lunch breaks from less 
than .5 hours t o more than two hours, and exited BPD for the day various times throughout the 
day. Overafl, -owes BPD a total of 1 , 218. 77 hours from 2009 -2012. (Exhibit 4) 

A TOtG review of .. ' salary for the years 2009-2012 reflected that-is an SES 
employee and rec~the following salaries: 

• January 4, 2009- January 2, 2010 - $163,547 annually or $78.36 per hour 

• January 2, 2010 to the present · $168,453 annually or $80.72 per hour 

She was absent without leave from the BPD 228 hours in 2009. This was multiplied by $'78.36 
for a dollar amount owed of $17,866.08. She was absent without leave 479 hours in 2010, 
461 hours in 2011 and 50.67 hours in 2012. These hours were multiplied by $80.72 for a 
total of $79,966.88. Therefore, the total owed to BPD by -for 2009-2012 is 
approximately $97,832.96. (Exhibit 5} 

In an interview with TOIG, ~tated that she is directly supervised by •· -
stated that- hours vary daily. She comes to work and leaves from work at various times. 
For ex~she does not have a mee~til 10:00 A.M., she may not arrive until 9:45 
A .M. -stated that she believes-s working from home whe~rrives to 
work late or leaves earry because ~I ways carrie~ work with her and i~ble on her 
personal cellular telephone. 

' 

-stated that -is not on a formal telework agreement to her knowledge, and added 
that she keeps copies of signed telework agreements for the office, and does not 
have one or -handles- hours in WebTA and telework is a categoryr but 
lllllnever uses t e ~-~r leave approved by- Deputy 
Commissicnsr, BPD. -tated that-often leaves dur~me to attend to 
pets at home or to volunteer at the Human~ety. Her residence is approximately 1 ~tes 
~way . The Humane Society is~w minutes from BPD. She knows this because­
tells her ~'lf her whereabouts, ~stat17d that $he k:1 13ii~"as-ahwrns het p~ 
~Jein).? absent \·vh.~n~~.Jet d:J~trnd. Othar BP!) em;·.i'~" •>us ttavH nrY::lGed and que$tir.nmJ_._ 
·;/nf.:itl t~.S'~~m:is\";. On ;~t i~aiit one <;i;.1cn~~a~. ht;.~ apo~eri u:1.-n1.1(1ard~ng ·t,h.e 
rnrsttl:lt~irnprv rt;1.~pornff.'11f,* lf'illt ·:.:rtfrc.rs d t.1 (10~: km:i'1N 'll'lf°•'*t trhll d r;r1:$ O~WO{'( !·,ot:rs ~t'I~ 
~ rpt· (eo · 'b "· «H-t.,1e o ... ~ . r.:JC H .ff. ·~~ 

,,, an in n1rvfow w!th H.>fG,. ~tat~cf fihe is. dire•./ Jy supGrvi-sed br- - staled that 
.-_hour!t vary d:1ily.. ::.-~Me comes to •N;;-ffk i.md l.t.'•ff\i~f1. fror~:'1 !oiiro~k nt '«i.Vk~us timns,. but -
~1,~t bti1 rr1c1m d~M~~~flc i'.Jec~u;;·.~ ~t;o oftt.ln t'.for-w not ~e.t.~ ;,111. l ~~.jf'I-;:\t(:~,1~r:r.1 •:::r ~·~·.:•~•' '~;~ .. 
r -r:~ :i·;,~~;r:r.;; .~,-~;;~~9.i\fi.~t r.:;·;~:· ?;~;;~1 ·~ul ~"i'~·o '1i~~,,;;.;1· i~;;;:~;riU.;ir.<~:.,.~{r;~;;;t;· <~·{#;;.·;.;,J;9 ·r,:i;-i;;;~;;·· ·-.. ·-· ... -1 
; t:!.1'~111H';h}. H c::~:Jnl~1v~t11 ~rt:¥~~;.tz';M !;1(11.~ ~i,~~~ri::.erra.~ut. (r;;f!)m'lat>r.,;n 1md Hit. t\}l,f.tm i,a ~·(11!11f' ra~t b~ ril~tfilijM:'.'d ~~Hhqiit ! 

1 ~''t.-t.:m t>":rt~.1~~,r; 1n _.,..."i..,.,mant~ Vti-ftt\ s ti.t;.c ... 'f 357.. ·~ hJ.~ nip~r~ t~ ,:.1.1~ c1-~nd,M .. urm ONLY thl'IU it~ ~-i~~~!.i:!1t·a~.r~ i 
1\ .·~~.-~£'~~·~,~~-~~~J~!:!.~!':~1.~J!..~'.~:!!:~~~ ~----- ... - . --·- .... ........ .. _ ... -· ..... - ···--·--- ·- -·· -._ ... .. ..... __ .. ·- .... -~ .... ............ ·-- .... - --.I 
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Normally, ~ill call if she is working from home. proximately three times per year, -
neglects to Inform-of her whereabouts and wiU call her to make certain she is 
alright and when s~be at the office. elleves that she is working because she will 
receive work e-mails from •• ~added t at -elwa~es work with her and is 
available on her personal celtu~ne. ~d that_-s not on a formal telework 
agreement to her knowledge. - stated ~ften leaves during her lunch time to 
attend to pets at home or to volunteer at the Humane Soclet as heard other 
employees question the administrative assistant whereabouts. 
(Exhibit 7} 

In an interview with TOIG, -tated that she oversees the Telework Pilot Program. In this 
role, she reports statistics r:Q:rdrng the program to the BPD Executive Board and maintains all 
of the telew6rk agreements. If an employee at BPD would like to be In the program and 
telework, he or she must complete an aQreement. She added that employees telework for an 
entire day (8 hours or longer i'f ha or she is an employee with an alternate work schedule.} The 
telework program does not allow for one to telework partial days. The program also requires 
the employee to telework from an Napproved location" such as a residence with high speed 
Internet availability.~ her third level s~or. ~as no telework agreement on 
file. - stated ~e does not know ..,.-sch~r if she teleworked. {Exhibit 8) 

In an interview with TOIG.stated that she works w~ccasionally on projects at 
BPD, but they do not work in the same office. In 2002~an volunteering at the local 
Humane Society . • as already volunteering and on the Humane Socieiw.Board. In 
approximately 2007 became the President of the Humane Society and became the 
Vice President. often goes to the Humane Society at lunch time to wal ogs. While there, 
she often sees orking in the administrative office. She added that every other week, 
they both must sign checks for the paid help and for expenses. They do this at lunch time .• 
explained that BPO employees are given a half hour for lunch and two 1 5 minute breaks during 
the day. It is a standard practice to put all of the breaks tmer to get one hour in the middle 
of the day. BPD employees use this time to run errands. 995tated that the Humane Society 
is only 5-10 m~r.utcs f rom the BPD so she and-can easily get th are and back in an hour. 
{Exhibit 9} 

~~he rfoscrlt;er.f-~ :3 i.•go~H:f iender·" wh..i handles ''J:l(1!itioaily !'ienn.ith:e Hnd t i;r.,a st.1n~1lt.iv& 
·11v<1rk" ,·md rum~ ~n o:Jtstandfng ;"Jt\".l~}ram."' ~t~te.d i'>p?:'li-0.:d;i";at~:J~v t;f": i·~e ~·,~an~ r:HJC·, t~'·rn 
rind ~jiftk:uhy r~~h'ttfJ.- V!O. 1:,,·!tlphG•i-E1 'Jr! 1.r.f~c:ash~"1,. Sh~" al:.~;o t:f~:i'! r~:I "f1.zry11tAfr~~i; 1-.i ., ~ram t:•·:dN~r 

t••··-·"• ............ .. . - ...... - .,.., ......... ....... ....... ~ - ···-··- .. ..... ,. ......... ... .... .. ..... , • ., ... ... - ...... .. - · .... . .. ....... .. ... - .• - , . ........ ~ ........ - .,. ............. ,, -~ .. .... . ................. . ... . ~ .. ........ ~ . .... ---- .. - · :• ,. - · ,,,.,. · - ··· ·. ·- .... -+y .... ,., _____ ... . . , 
I TM~ E~(~p.;;rl r.d '»Wfl~l\latk:~ 1~ th~ ~.1·~1fy u-f fil~ \)ft'"~~ !)f tmrias~t,<t.~fln ·r:m:a.1Sf~·1'f omr.rn1. ~.)~ ·tfa} ~;n1.11m,t11;· ( ! 'i1 itmm.:d, i.!t c~·?~'~'i•lli 9~r.:!t.ilfJ'l:'ii:i: l~w 1$:t;for.~~.:r~e~~r. ~r~fol'l"1Mtff.'1~~lm:: Jt>) l:".~Hr.~u~ may mtt _u':f. li~f:Jn"1~'!f~·et. w~~®·t ! 
I
f ""'1rftf~ )~tr~~~l~l ln -3~~)lmln~.~ ;t.;~t.h ~ tutc. ~ $$-:~. ThJ!li- '-~Jmtt *!}. M'JR or.r~t~.f.A,1. us~ Ost~ ~1 1nd .~t.~ ~!.F:t.lfi.11.1.-•m I 
. to vl'l:authvrfi.u~ p~r.s.o.?lt ;11: cir.t.)!i~ti-.u1d.. 1 ... . ...... _ _ ,,,, .... . .. "··- · ··~·-.. -· .. _ .. . .... - •. 1-..... ......... ~ .. .. ... -· ... __ . ... _ ·-·· ·· . ·' "" ' . ·~~- .. . -····· .... ... _.,_ ·-· - - .. ·- - ... - •• ••• - - . - - .. ..... - -- - -·· · - · · ·- ......... . .. 
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employees tha was not always available at the office. ~spoke with .. 
regarding the matter. tated tha~erstood, but tnat the BPD was getting a full 
work week from her. Since hat.date, -has been able to reach her when she has called, 
or91tias returned her calls within ten minutes. 

-stated that in February 2012, BPD received a "speakout" from an anonymous sender 
~uestioned ., work hours. -explained that a "speakout" is a wa~ 
employees or others could contact BPD management anonymously with concerns. -
again spoke with- -reiterated that she works a full week and believed the 
"speakout" was due to a disgruntled employee following a town meeting regarding the BPD and 
Financial Management Service (FMS) merger. - stated that she is awar~ 
occasionally works from home during the morning hours and afternoon hours. llllllFSfiot 
completed a telework agreement because her telework is not on a regular basis (i .e. every 
Wednesday.) -stated that she and -both believe she is working her required hours 
because all w~ned to her is completed in a t imely manner and she can be reached via 
telephone when needed. -also stated that it is standard practice for BPD employees to 
put their half hour lunch an~5 minute breaks together. However, ~elieves it 
would be a problem if she is using more than that hour in the middle of the day to run errands 
and/or volunteer at the Humane Society. (Exhibit 10) 

In an interview with TOIG, -stated that she directly supervises her Deputy -
- and indirectly supervises 108 others. - stated that her normal work hours are 8:30 
~ 5:00 P.M. She has never requested t~rk and has never signed a telework 
agreement. -stated that she often comes to work late or leaves early. During those times, 
she will run errands. For example, she will take her vehicle to the automobile repair shop in the 
morning or take one of her animals to the veterinarian in the afternoon. She will also go home 
early on occasion to soak and care for her feet because she has plantar fasciitis. On other 
occasions, she will simply be at home. During all of these times, she will have work documents 
with her to review, and is always available for work matters by her personal cellular telephone. 
She is also available via her Blackberry if she is expecting work e-mails, but she admitted that 
she often does not use her Blackberry unless on work travel . She added that she often will go 
home during her lunch t ime to let her dogs out , or to the local Humane Society where she 
volunteers and ·is the Vice President . She stated that her home is 10 miles away in Washington, 
WV and takes 20 minutes to drive one way. The Humane Society is only a few miles and a few 
minutes from the BPD. She added that every two weeks she must spend extra time during her 
lunch at the Humane Society to sign paychecks and expense checks. 

- stated that she is allowed a half hour lunch and two 15 minute breaks. She puts this time 
~er to run her errands at lunch time. ~tated that she wm put sick leave into the 
WebTA system and not ify her supervisor it-:t:'has a doctor's appointment. If she is simply out 
of the office, she normarly will not take leave or notify her supervisor. 

This Report of rnvestfgatlon is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
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TOIG informed~hat she was absent without leave from the BPD approximately 1,200 
hours from 2009 to the present. She stated that she has not abused her status as a senior 
executive because she has always completed her work, and stated that she spent more than 
1,200 hours working on BPD work outside BPD work hours. She added that she does not 
perform personal business or Humane Society work at BPD. (Exhibit 11) 

TOIG contacted Counsel, ~ascertain if ~eeded to complete and 
did complete an outside employment form. _-stated that s~uld not have been 
required to complete a form because the policy allows employees to perform volunteer work at 
locations such as the Humane Society without completing the form. However, ~id 
complete the Form PD F 3514 E entitled "Outside Employment or Business Request" on 
November 6, 2006. The form reflected that she would work at the Humane Society evenings 
and weekends. -did not complete subsequent forms. - stated that he began at BPD 
in 2006 and began ha~ ethic rules and regulations for ~2009. He has never had any 
communications with _,.egarding time or her outside activities. (Exhibit 1 2) 

Referrals 

TOIG presented the investigation to Assistant United States Attorney, United 
States Attorney's Office (USAO), Southern District of West Virginia. -eclined prosecution. 
(Exhibit 13) 

TOIG presented the investigation to-Attorney, Public Integrity Section, US 
Department of Justice. ~ec~on. (Exhibit 14) 

TOIG presented the case to Chief, USAO, Civil Division, Southern District of West 
Virginia. -eclined civil prosecution. (Exhibit 15) 

Judicial Action 

N/A 

Findings 

The investigation determined that the allegations are substantiated. ~dmitted that she works 
varied hours and goes home or to the local Humane Society duri~iness hours on a regular 
basis and does not take leave. A TOIG review of - badge readings and timesheets 
discovered that~wes BPD a total of 1,218 .~urs from 2009 to 2012, or 
approximately $~2.96 in salary. - supervisor, - Deputy Commissioner, 
BPD, was aware o- ' varied hours, and an anonym~ent to BPD management 
regarding- time anCI attendance, but stated that she was not overly concerned about 

This Report of Investigation is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
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- hours because -is a stellar employee and leader who accomplishes all tasks in a 
'rm:iy manner. The case was declined for criminal and civil prosecution by the USAO. 

Based on the findings of our investigation, it appears that the following pertinent statute(s), 
regulation(s) and/or policies were violated or could be applied to the case: 

• 5 C.F.R. 2635.101 - Basic obligation of public service. 
• Telework Pilot Policy and Procedure dated June 13, 2011. 

Distribution 

Van Zeck, Commissioner, Bureau of Public Debt 

Signatures 

Case Agent: 

"J-'21-1?­
Date 
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Exhibits 

1. Hotline Complaint dated, March 7, -2012. 

2. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of Confidential Source, dated March 22, 2012. 

3. Memorandum of Activity, Review of BPD Telework policies, dated April 3, 2012. 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Review of .. badge readings and leave records, dated 
May1,2012. 

5. Memorandum of Activity, Review of~salary, dated June 4, 2012. 

6. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of -Administrative Assistant, Office 
of Public Debt Accounting, BPD, dated~ 

7. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Commissioner, BPD, dated May 24, 2012. 

8. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Branch, BPD, dated May 24, 2012. 

Deputy Assistant 

Branch Manager, Special Investments 

9. Memor~ndum of Activity, Interview of - Director, Business Technology, BPD, 
dated May 24, 2012. 

10. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
June 1, 2012. 

11. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
May 24, 20 12. 

Deputy Commissioner, BPD, dated 

Assistant Commissioner, BPD, dated 

12. Memorandum of Act ivity, Form PD F 3514 E entitled uoutside Employment or Business 
Request" on November 6, 2006 . 

13. Memorandum of Activity, Declination of case by USAO, Southern District of West 
Virginia, dated June 11, 2012. 

14 . Memorandum of Act ivity, Declination of case by Public Integrity Section, US 
Department of Justice, dated June 29, 2012. 

15. Memorandum of Activity, Declination of case by USAO, Southern District of West 
Virginia, Civil Division, dated _July 26, 2012 . 
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Case Title: -
~usiness Technology, 
Bureau of Public Debt 

Investigation lnitfated: September 4, 2012 

Investigation Completed: 

Origin: Self-Initiated 

Summary 

Case#: BPD-12-251 5-1 

Case Type: 

Conducted by: 

Criminal 
Administrative _JL_ 
Civil 

Special Agent 

Appro\red by: John L. Phillips 
Special Agent in Charge 

On March 7, 2012, the Department of the Treasury (Treasury), Office of Inspector General, 
Office of Investigations, (TOIG) received an allegation from a Confidential Complainant (CC) that · 

Assistant Commissioner, Bureau of Public Debt (BPO), was committing t ime and 
attendance ·fraud. The investigation (BPD~ 12-1078-1) determined that the allegations ware 
substantiated. During this investigation, lllllll,Director, Business Technology was 
interviewed. Based on her interview, an investigation was initiated on lltor similar time and 
attendance violations. 

The investigati~n determined that the allegations are suhstantiated .• dmitted that she 
works varied hours and goes to the local Humane Society during business hours on a regular 
basis and does not take leave . A TOlG review of.s badge readings and t imesheets 
·~iscover~d ~wa~ absent from the BPD ~ithout l~ave ~total of 346 hours: During~lhi!:< 
t ime period,.-WSS paid $69 oer h.our as a GS ·t 5, step 9, r1ierlE!forc,. a potentP:il toss (J • 

. $.7.~s.874 in mjssed time was cah~~Jiated . nm c1 .. me Wt)~ dsr:.HJ 1~(i tm c.drnir.1 ~! and !':~vii. 

rm~~c::1;;~:Jtio:1 hy i/·1e U.i-1 . ./\ttf:•rney'~~ Of'fai<J. fl)( th:~ Hc;1.~ tr.om Dl~tricl o-t Wfl'!t VirBini~. 

f: 
n;;~~--~~ ;;; ~ t.';f 't(,;;~·:.-~(~ii;.~;;f~ i$~ fft(; :,;:.:,;:,~~;t;. ~?f i~1~ ·3~~~;;,·~;i;~(~~,;;~;~;~;:ae;ori::· :r::;~;.~·1J;'y ":~11~i;;~~~;,f~}.;~·i~~.;,f·;;;;.l,;;1··· ·-· .. , ...... -; ! 
; (;fi:7' ·i~r,;c1~. ~~ r. 1:l.~t.<111In~ ;W.flili'Wv~ i·••.\l G-:l'1 fo:<;m~1~rtll: J(1f.:ir.r~~a:tft1•'\ ::tn<! ih ~··~ni.Stl'hl W!lY r.,,,~· ~~ ;-~pP:ld~t..":~l'J ·ll'l1Jtlnm t I fi 
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Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

lmadmitted during a witness interview in another investigation that she ( .. often went to 
re'iocal Humane Society during her lunch break. -tated that she is th~esident of the 
Humane Society. 

The U.S. Office of Personnel Management outlines that an employee may use annual leave for 
vacations, rest and relaxation, and personal business or emergencies. 5 CFR Section 550.1203 
states that an agency must make a lump-sum payment for accumulated and accrued annual 
leave when an employee separates or retires from the Federal service, enters on active duty in 
the Armed Forces and elects to receive a lump-sum payment, or dies. 

Time and attendance fraud is where an employee knowingly enters, does not enter, or approves 
incorrect data accounting for official work hours. 

During the course of the investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 
• Director, Business Technology, BPD 
• Deputy Assistant Commissioner, BPD 

During the course of the investigation, TOIG reviewed the following pertinent documents: 
• - BPD Leave and Badge Records for 2009 - May 201 2 

Investigative Activity 

In an interview with TOIG, -tated in 2002, she began volunteering at the local Humane 
Society. In approximately 29'!'.07 ecame the President of the Humane Society and -
became the Vice President. ften goes to the Humane Society at lunch time to wal~. 
She added that every other wee , she and 9iust sign checks for the paid help and for 
expenses . They do this during their BPD lunch time. -xplained that BPD employees are 
given a half hour for lunch and two 15 minute breaks ~g the day. It is a standard pract ice to 
put all of the breaks together ~t one hour in the middle of the day for lunch. BPD employees 
use this time to run errands . ~tated· that the Humane Society is only 5-10 minutes from 
the BPD so she can easily get there and back in an hour. (Exhibit 1 ) 

In a subsequent interview with TOIG- stated that the aforementioned information was true. 
She continues to volunteer at the Humane Society and goes to there several times per week 
during her lunch hour. She added that there are other reasons for her absence at the BPD 
building such as events with her staff outside the building. She also has health problems and 
sees a chiropractor frequent ly. She believes she is very good about putting in leave for those 
appointments, but may have erred at t imes. She stated that it would be difficult for her to look 
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General. It contain sensitive law enforcement Information and its contents may not be reproduced without 
written permission In accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552. This report Is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure 
to unauthorized persons Is prohibited. 



Report of lnv-sti · 
Case Name: 
Case # BPD- - -
Page 3 of 5 

. . 
at a calendar and reconstruct what she was doing on particular days because she keeps a work 
calendar, but most of her personal appointments and errands are not on a calendar. (Exhibit 2) 

In an interview with TOIG, -tated that he has supervised-ince 2006. ~ very 
good employee and received an "exceeded" performance evaluation for 2011, and an 
"outstanding" for her 2010 performance evaluation. 9'orks a 7:30 AM ~O PM 
schedule. She does not have a telework agreement and does not telework. _.stated that 
-as been active in the local Humane Society since before he became her supervisor. She 
~een the President of the organization since approximately 2006, and volunteers during the 
evenings and weekends. He is also aware that she spends many lunch periods at the Humane 
Society or running errands for the organization. He has not guestioned her about going there 
during work hours because it is during her lunch time. -was not surprised when TOIG 
advised him that~ften spends 90-120 minutes away from the BPD during mid-day work 
hours. He reitera1:nhat he was aware of her going to the Humane Society mid-day, but was 
not aware to the amount of time. (Exhibit 3) 

A TOIG review of timesheets and badge readings from January 1, 2009 to May 19, 2012 
reflected tha or~eight hour day and works a 7:30 AM- 4:00 PM shift. The badge 
readings reflecte that~ormally was at the office at 7:30 AM, and left the office for the 
day at 4:00 PM. There were many days that she left early, but her timesheets showed that she 
requested leave (sick or annual) for most of these days. However, the records showed that. 
often took a break in the middle of the day for over 60 minutes . 

In 2009~as absent from the BPD without leave a total of 131 hours; 71 of the hours 
were dur~e middle of the day. · 

In 201 o,9vas absent from the BPD without leave a total of 93 hours; 48 of the hours were 
during the middle of the day. 

In 2011, .was absent from t he BPD w ithout leave a total of 92 hours; 58 of the hours were 
during t he middle of t he day. 

In 2012, .as absent from the BPD w ithout leave a total of 30 hours; 20 of the hours were 
during the middle of the day. 

Overall, as absent from the BPD without leave a total of 346 hours. During this time 
period, as paid $69 per hour as a GS 15, step 9. Therefore, a potential loss of $23,874 
in missed time was calculated. (Exhibit 4) 
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Referrnl• · 

TOtG presented the investigation to - Assistant United States Attorney, United 
States Attorney's Office (USAOJ, So~ct of West Virginia. -eclfned prosecution. 
{Exhibit 5) 

Judicial Action 

N/A 

FJndinS! 

The investigation determined that the allegations ar~ substantiated. -dmftted that she 
works varied hours and goes to the local Humane Society during business hours on a regular 
basis does not take leave. A TOfG review o- badge readings and tlmesheets found 
that as absent from the BPD without leave a total of 348 hours. Curing this time period, 

.as paid $69 per hour as a GS 15, step 9. Therefore, a potential loss of $23,874 in 
m 11ed tlme was calculated. 

Based on the findings of our Investigation, it appears that the folfowing pertinent statute(sJ, 
regulation{s) and/or policies were violated or could be applied to the case: 

• 5 C.F.R. 2635.101· ~ Basic obligation of public service. 

Distribution 

Steven Miller, Deputy Assistant Commissioner, Bureau of the Fiscal Service 

Slgnaturee 

Cai• Agent: 

Supervisor! 

.. ././}:::/.J.::!~ 
Oate 

ThJa Report of lnvnttg1tlon the property of the Orne. off nveatfgallon, Trtuury Otnce of tht lnaptctor 
G1n1nf. rt ~Int Hneltiv• law enforcement JnfonnaUon and It. contents may not be reproduced without 
wrfU•n ~nnr.alon In accordanc• with a U.S.C. S 552. Thi report l• FOR OFACIM. USE ONLY and U. dl1cro1ure 
to un1uthorfz• d 1119on1 la rohlbUed. 

I 
l 
:I 

\ 
l; ,, 
~· 



Report of lnv-eti ati 
Case Name: 
Case# BPD- - -
Page 5of 5 

Exhibits 

1. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

2. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

3. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

dated March 22, 2012. 

dated September 11, 2012. 

dated September 11 , 201 2. 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Review of. badge readings to her timesheets, dated 
September 18, 2012. 

5. Memorandum of Activity, Declination of case by USAO, Southern District of West 
Virginia, dated September 26, 2012. 

This Report of Investigation le the property of th• Offfce of Jnveetfgdon, Tre11ury Office of the ln1pector 
General. It contllna nn ltlve law enforcement Information and lta content. may not be reproduced without 
written permlulon In accordance with a u.s.c. § 552. Thia report fa FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its dlsclosure 
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Office of the Inspector General 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Report. of Ittvestigation 

Case Title: 
Examiner-In-Charge 
Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency 
Washington, DC 

Investigation Initiated: February 22, 2012 

Investigation Completed: - MAY 21 2012 

Origin: Anonymous 

Summary 

Case #: OCC- 12-0860-1 

Case Type: 

Conducted by: 

Criminal 
Administrative JL__ 
Civil 

Special Agent 

Approved by: John L. Phillips 
Special Agent in Charge 

On February 15, 2012, the Department of the Treasury, Office of Inspector General Office of 
Investigations (TOIG) received an allegation from an anonymous complainant alleging that'9 

Examiner-in-Charge, was inv v · a otential ethics violation. Specifically, 
s wi~an employee of therefore s prohibited from 

working on _,elated matters. However, as promoted ational Bank 
Examiner, a position that has industry~wide policy making authority. it 1) 

The investigation determined that the allegation is unsubstantiated. TOIG determined that while 
- was-.-ational Bank Examiner he did not work on any policy matters specific to. 
and observe~usal approved by OCC's Office of Counsel, hence taking the appropriate 
steps necessary to avoid violating the law, 

r ~~iiii·ii;;~;oii;;r ;~ \;~·~~~~;]";;;~ -~~· i~; i>!:~~ it;:· ~;ft~;;· ~iit~:i ·~xfr;~ ~;;~~r;~;c;: · -r;~~~~.;;~· 1~·~fr,~;;; {;fi1;~ -1,~;.t;f{~~; ;-·-~· ----; 
! 1.~:~f1a·~·it~. ~~ 1·;\-,11t~t.rd~ <M~l~l!l·Lilwit (f!W f~ (ft\ ;t;~¥r.1e1:1t ~1~fo~·ml.\tl1';', .imd ~t..it. r.:1.1.n~~n1t* mn.y W.l)t ti..- !1'1)(>.1'1'~~ue\1d wid;o\!it l 
~ ·r:'fJ t.~1.m oor.01~Uf<Jn b' Jlt..ln~t»:f~~1! 'kith 5 tL~.C. §~~it ·f n!:it· til"~(;lrl: ;ire; PO~ ~fF1.C!M .• Uf.1~ OW..Y .a ~:.d m~ 6h•dns·:.~1r~· ; 
! t. .. .., t.m:n..Jtno1!z.-0d ye~,,l~\.lt I~ ~m;.1J.lib.1f;(11.f.. ! 
, __ ••••• --"• ••••• • • "'''"""•• ••• • '"• •• ••-·• '• •"•·-• · ·--· .. · • • ... · ·-•• ,. _ _ _ ._ .... . ,,,...,~ .. .,.-- ·~u •• - ..... , - - • .-- • - _. ... • "' ' .._ ___ •• _ _. ., .,..._,.,.•-· • ... - - • ou••••.,.• • • .......... . , ._ • •-•-•"' , ••• •"'""'" ·~·,.. • •- _ , ..... .,, 
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Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

TOIG received information from an anonymous complainant alleging that ~as· involved 
with a potential ethics violation. ~ wife is an employ~herefore, 919vas 
prohibited from working o~~matters. However,~ promoted to the 
position of~ational B~xaminer, a position that has industry-wide policy making 
authority. ~ermore, the complainant alleged that the OCC failed to follow government 
ethics rules and notify TOIG of the potential ethics violation. 

The applicable ethics violation is 18 U.S.C 208(a)-Acts Affecting a Personal Financial Interest, 
which states '"except as permitted by subsection (b) hereof, whoever, being an officer or 
employee of the executive branch of the United States Government, or of any independent 
agency of the United States, a Federal Reserve bank director, officer, or employee, or an officer 
or employee of the District of Columbia, including a special Government employee, participates 
personally and substantially as a Government officer or employee, through decision, approval, 
disapproval, recommendation, the rendering of advice, investigation ..... or other particular matter 
in which, to his knowledge, he, his spouse, minor child, general partner, organization in which 
he is serving as officer, director, trustee, general partner or employee, or any person or 
organization with whom he is negotiating or has any arrangement concerning prospective 
employment, has a financial interest shall be subject to the penalties set forth in section 216 of 
this title." 

During the course of the investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 
• Ethics Counsel, OCC 
• I Examiner-In-Charge, ace 
• (Acting) Comptroller of the Currency, OCC 

In addition, TOIG reviewed pertinen-docum s, including: 
• Waiver for-issued by former Comptroller of the Currency, OCC 
• Email correspondence 
• OCC's Draft Waiver Request for -addressed to-
• -s OCC Confidential Finan~closure Repor~ing Year 2004-20 10 

Investigative Activity 

In an interview with TOIG, ~tated OCC has a Securities Prohibition that states all 
employees may not have st~anks; however, OCC has the authority to grant waivers. In 
addition to following OCC's policy, OCC is required to consult with the Office of Government 
Ethics (OGE), which states employees can have up to $25,000 in bank interest and obtain an 
exemption. Although OCC usually implements the most restrictive policy, ~tated there 
are instances that the most restrictive policy is not implemented. These inst ances may include 
a new employee with stock in a state chartered bank, inherited stocks, or stock of a spouse. 

This Report of Investigation Is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contain sensitive law enforcement Information and Its contents may not be reproduced without 
written permission In accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552. Thfs report Is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure 
to unauthorized person$ Is prohibfted .. 
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Prior to becoming m9Jational Bank Examiner, -disclosed his wife's stoc interest in 
~is ove~,000 via OCC Confidential Financial Disclosure Report. ted 
tha~ad an OCC waiver and did not think he needed one from OGE. However, 
~ith her superviso nd ace, regard ing 
-s recusal a~er. suggested tha reques a waiver from OGE. In 
Septem~11, -sent a waiver request to OGE, which was verbally denied. In October 
2011 , -was reassigned to Examiner-in-Charge of _,(Exhibit 2) 

In an interview with TOIG, - stated that since 2004 he has disclosed his w ife's 
employment with. including all financial interests that are art of her compensation 
package, in his ace Confidential Fina'"!cial Disclosure Report. as always observed a 
company-wide recusal from9natters. The scope of recusal was determined by 
ace Ethics offi.clals. 

After ~as promoted to -ational Bank Examin~r in July 2011, he spoke with .. 
regarding the scope ;;f' hi~ recus ·n relation to his new position. It was determined that the 
general policy matte as working on, although not specific to~ay fall 
within the scope of usal. ~ult.-ecused himself fr~ose matters. 
In October 2011, pproached~fter a meeting an~ that their 
interpretation of his recusal may be incorrect. In October 2011,-stated that a 
collaborative decision W!BS made b , - Senior Deputy Comptroller for Large 
Bank Supervision, occ· I Senior~troller for Midsize/Community Bank 
Supervision, OCC; e~uty Comptroller Bank S~ion Policy and Chief 
National Bank Examr~; and~o remove ~rom ~ational Bank Examiner 
and reassign him to ~miner in Charge. 

As -ational Bank Examiner,~as involved with rufemaking and other activities 
related to the Dodd-Frank. Waif St~orm and Consumer Protection Act. The Dodd-Frank 
Act created the Financial~ Oversight Council (FSOC} comprised of numerous 
governmental agencies. -'supported the A.tin Comptroller on FSOC and was the OCC 
representative on FSOC Deputies subcommittee. lso represented t he OCC before 
Congress on matters related to supervision and dd-Franl< matters and served on 
r.:ertain interagency groups as the OCC representative, -stated t:hat po!!ci~s and 
·~mmunicat!ons that werit ur1.der hi.~ s~goatma wen11 fa.r~nr::eivo'..!d .r~n·".i dev.\'~k>P:!:td before< h <J 
"N,;Hl the -Natk~na! t~a.(~r.. 1:::tiiitnif1ir;tr' , 11'.! ~di.i.!ti;;m, n1i;.~~t o f ·~hti' pf,,~l(;t~i:'i :.·md (JOffm·iw-, :.u~t:r>nm 
v1tfir:t:.• jl11nd'{ 1tiisued. ov OGG, the f.-e<fotrnl ~~;erve, and t.b~ fnd~r;:r! l~ep!:.sit rr$H!)ln.r.;~ CtJrp:;;..,.M.bn ., 
Othot ·~·<..m"wt:1ur·;.\;;M~·iun~· that ''•"d.i.M. ou~ tmd1lr name 1Af.':i:'~·ijd.u.m;J Bn'1 m:;t pnii 1:·~· 

rt::t!-'1·~:ed . \.Jttri;:r ;10/id~ '.1ve.rf.1 Is'! <jr:t1/!'jk,pmt-J.nt w as - Ni:t1\1;1!a! E'l!,t'>'r-:im,,,,, hl:t 
1·''Hf''-" not fo-taiiz~d.. {Exhibit 3~ 

.. ,. • • ,,., ... _ ,,..,,.. .. , , • .,, •••• ,,,_.,,.)o•••• """ J ••1 ' L'"' ' "'•''• ..... 4l•'--••• •l •"'•" '""" ""• •.n$•·•• • - ·•'.9••""''''.-' "" .,_ , _ ,,,_ ... _ . .,,.. ,o( .. ••-• .. ••I,_ ••'U , __ , _ , .. - .. ,,.•-•• • -••• •- o, -•-•'•"• • - • ._. .... • · - • • ,,.,._. _ __ _.. •• - " • I• ... ,.., 

! l~lliii ::fupM ~T (lt\~G:tif,µUJ~~ i~ ~))y t}"Qf.>rrt~ i:»· '.':~G f.:iff'tf~ ~f Vn·f'~'.oft.iq.;it.~"';1~ '( ~~~m·,y t')ff-!1~~?; o~ ~.i1.11~ ·~mtp~~~fj,M' ~ 

I. f'J~tt~.rt:l.. ~~ l;.~'-rit.1.i1ui: ?)P~i<~l.'t(\1~' Im~ 6~i;l\'~.:m;\'YJJ.'f~r&i ~nf~:.m·•.~•.is.~e~ iit~i':~ lt.ij ~~i1:mfietVf~ ~1t.Wt n.t..1~ tn;· mp:r;·~•~i·.l~~ w\th~:.~t ' 
"n"HH\~i,'i §it'lt11~i:l{!M\J·lHr ln ,'!~~P,(,!r:1.3.H?!.'~ wm~ "5tt$: • .C. ~ .!'i~~ Tt:tbf !'.eliJ.tiV't t'! f'(?il. ~):;:;::K.'iA~~ W~E .\)Nt,. 'l' a«ltl ~.a .<Jfa;~~'l:liiH'·P,. I 
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In an interview w ith TOIG , tated t hat he was aware that -s wife had a senior level 
position and financial interest in he time-was promoted to-National Bank 
Examiner; however, decided that would observe the prevailing guidance of a -ecusal 
~dy had with OCC~tated that i~atter~a'8.~Uscussed during meetings 
~ould recuse himse nd leave. OCC d"'ecicred that ~ould work on broad policy 
matters that may include To avoid violatin~hics laws, particularly 18 U.S.C 
208(a), ought a waiver from the OGE on-s behalf. OGE subsequently denied the 
waiver. stated that OGE had a much broader interpretati~e conflict of interest law. 
~tated that OCC then remo~ from the position. -~ TOIG that he 
was not aware of any policy that ~rked on during his tenure as ~tional Bank 
Examiner that may have been specific t~ (Exhibit 4} 

Referrals 

N/A 

Judicial Action 

N/A 

Findings 

The investi~ determined that the allegation is unsubstantiated. TOIG determined that while 
- was-National Bank Examiner he did not work on any policy specific to-nd 
observed a recusal approved by OCC's Office of Counsel, hence taking the appropriate steps 
necessary to avoid violating the law 

Based on the findings of our investigation, it appears that the following statues or regulations 
and/or policies w ere violated: 

• NIA 
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Signature'!. 
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Date .· 
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Exhibits 

1. Complaint Referral from Anonymous Complainant, dated February 15, 2012. 

2. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated February 29, 2012. 

3. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated March 15, 2012. 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of ated March 20, 2012. 

This Report of Investigation is the property of the omce of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and its contents may not be reproduced without 
written permlS&lon In accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552. This report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure 
to unauthorized persons Is prohibited. 
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Office of the Inspector General 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Report of Investigation 

Case Tltle: 
Student Clerk 
Office of Security 
Financial Management Service 

Director of Security 
Office of Security 
Financial Management Service 

Investigation Initiated: October 25, 2011 

Investigation Compieted:·-· - DEC 2 S ZOl1 
Origin: Anonymous 

Summary 

Case #:FMS-12-0095-1 

Case Type: Criminal 
Administrative ~ 
Civil 

Conducted by:-
~ 

Approved by: John L. Phillips 
Special Agent in Charge 

On October 21, 2011, the U.S. Department of the Treasury (Treasury), Office of Inspector General, 

-

ations (TOIG), received information from an anonymous source alleging that 
. Student Clerki Office of Security, Financial M-na ement Service (FMS), has 

employmei:it s~. ~pecifically, It ~as alleged th~t ad arre.st~ that w~re not , 
reported, and - DtreQtor of S.c · , FMS was 1nforme about this 1nformat1on and failed 
to ta.ke appropriate measures concerning s record. (Exhibit 1) 

The investigation determined the allegations are substantiated. ~as arrested in November 
2008, for one count of possession of marijuana and two counts of possession of paraphernalia. He 
was also arrested in February 2011 for driving on a suspended license. Two bench warrants were 
issued in 2009 and 2011. as a result of these arrests. Additionally- initially did not repo~ 
full details of his arrests on his first certified Standard Form~86. Howevert being told to do so.­
provided the full details on a second Standard F<>rm-86. 

r~r ;i i:~i ·ij::;;.~~~·;1· ;11 ·r~r:;·~;·i.i~iaf.i~ii' ;:1;:· £;:;.;. ·~:~~·;;;:;,:;1.:,:·. ·;,;f ~~.;~(Kf~;;;;~··o1· i;;:;·,;~i)'.i,i.; i ;;;·;,; 1· ;:~.~·:~:!:;i:y--(){-i~~· ;-~;.; ;;;,::;·;·y.;:;~·1~·t;,~.~:~:-....... ···- -··1 
1 G.-•m:~~I. ~~: ~(:!ntli:~ ;iJ:\l(i'.ii4?'410 1QW ·"1•~f\;.\i1'(r~Uttmt h'lfr.;;-mi.dJt.m ~r14 ~t,s.. '~~:ir~t~atn 1~~y rt'!d ·IJ~ r'?.~ff•d\.a( . .Q:~ 1Nf~~1.nr¥ l 
I . ., .. ,,·.u.,,.. .. , ~"r"""'••41.<~,.. ~~ •• .,_..,,..,v,.J·~·"'""' .• ..,(~.io P,; f" ~I· .~ !<.: ,~il':"} ;·~:::e ,.,,.,..,,"'I' 1··;;, j':(.';:C· ''J' 1.~;1:,1(•r, !l .f '· •'«:•~: "'!'·~' V ,,..i,··! 1~··-' ,,;:., .. ,.!, .. o.,•1''" : •t ~.,_TF~i. \_g ff'Hfl°"••.:,f.'« Ii·•· .. 1¥f..,'\i.-.t!;:..,;'-'J;i$"'~ ..... :,lt •~ ,,,,:t •• ~ .... 11: 3 v·""~I•" .f•:t:"'•· •·.rW>~•, ~ ...... ~."' 7· t. J)·.{"11.1,.,, l.(·t"""'' '\. fl"'r. ,. f;,-.'11,, 11 .\..iU Yt<ll'tt.•'1'\.·Wt.15.,'n'" • 

to :~•n.i\Ji.1tri.~11~i.~,..,\'f J.~·~~1.H~s ~ pn:~hil>it:t-.J.. i 
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Basis and Scope of the f nvestJgation 

· - ·-- ···-·· · ..... -.,..,t"' Llfh."1.:#''ll~S~a\ 

This case was Initiated on October 25·, 2011. based upon information that -was arrested for 
possession of marijuana, possession of paraphernalia; and outsta-din · t~~lations. Additionally, 
it was alleged t?at !hese ev~ts were no;t tiandJed apprpp,r{E$t~ly .~ . -s c~an FMS 
employee working in the Office of Security as a Temporary Studen er ~05. ~as 
identified as the Director of Security alleged to have conc~aled- arrest 

During the course.of the investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 
• Director of Security, Office of Security, FMS. 
• Supervisor, Benefits and Compensation Branch, Human Resources, FMS. 
• Supervisory Personnel Security Specialist, Office of Security, FMS. 
• Personnel Security Specialist, Office of Security, FMS. 
• Clerk, Office of Security, FMS. 
• 1 ctor of Security Policy, Departmental Offices. 
• Supe1Visory Human Resources Specialist, FMS. 

In addition, TOIG reviewed pertinent documents, including: 
• ·-··- Electronic Official Personnel Folder 
• Security Folder 

Investigative Activity 

In an lhtervrew with TOfG, ~tated that - ·previously.n .Acc-e Nationaf Agency Check 
and lnqulrt~s clearance (A.NACI) while being astlident clerk. sta.ted s currently In the 
pro~es • .' of ettlng.a moderate-to to.p secret clearance: in order to work on higher evel projects. -
provid · Sec\Jrity F'Older that included _ most recent certifieq Questionnaire· fq,r ~ 
Tru$t Po . 10,ns. e~QIP) d~ted October 4, 2011. reported th~. incidents: invoJving his arrest for 
pqssessian·~ofma-uana and p~rqph.ernalia and drlvit'l:Q.Whife·on a suspended.license a.s his. 
probation swtus. tated she was first made.awareo~rrests. b I .s first, 
line .supervisor, some 1me during the week ofOctoJ:>er 17, 2~stated tha s e is aware of 
~ backg.roond. and continues to recommend him for employment. (Exhibit 2) 

[Agent's Note: The ANACI is used for the initial investigation for Federal employees at the 
Confidential, Secret, and L access levels. Executive Order 10450 mandates th~ /\NACI a.s the 
minimum investigative S1and.arrj for aV emp!Oj'f?-f.ffl in the federal 1~'31.ViC';e.} 
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would have reported it to - ~elieves-s a good worker, but his age is too immature 
for the nature of work in t~urRY'Office. (Exhibit 3) · 

In an in~ with TOIG, nfirmed the request for a higher level of suitability originated with 
- -was aware o s arrest in 2008 shortly after it happened, but he could not recall 
=-tie was made aware. ~e details of the arrest on Maryland's public records found 
online. -dded he ins ructed ~round the time ol!t · ident in .2008 to tell his manager 
~~e would make them aware of the situation. advised s ke with 
~~he arrest ~' shortly after it occurred. On eptember 27, 1, ertified .an 
e~QIP. -reviewed~ e-QIP afte-s certification. After reviewing e-QIP, 

•
spoke wlth-1 regarding the faiJur:tOCJrsclosure all aspects of his criminal history, -
e~ Tserosure of his criminal history was is leading and required revisions ancrre.-

certifica~d on his a~ Subsequent! rtified a second e-QIP which adequately 
depicted hi.srres record. ~escribed s ~ate deciding official on matter.s 
concerning ~lieves the position he a b~should require a background clearance 
due to then ure of'!heiri?'ormation in the Office of Security. 

-tated his branch previously investigated internal matters involving FMS employees, but 
~ conducting these investigations approxima.el four to fiilv ears ago. The internal 
investigations were re-asi ned to be conducted by ' staff. reported that Departmental 
Offices (DO) provides ith information on emp oyee arr~sts. receives this information from 
~eral Bureau of nves 1gations after a· rrest has been m. ade and finger·· shave been taken. 
--eported he has nevelis oken with ertaini.ng t~ arrests. stated that all 
arrest records go straight to In ad ition, eported'iii'arnot all matters involvin~ 
employees, including crimin ma ers. are repo e o TOIG, and this decision is made by­
(Exhibits 4 & 5) 

Jn an interview with TOIG, - explained he had two bench warrants issued for his arrest involving 
two failures to appear in Montgomery County, MD {MC) District Court o~ber 9, 2009 and 
Prince George's (PG) County, MD District Court on February 29, 2011. ~Id not inform his 
supervisors of either of the bench warrants or his subsequent arrest due to them._...as 
arrested by the PG Police Departmen.t (PGPD) in June 2011 regardin~ebru~011 bench 
warrant. During this arrest PGPD discovered the MC bench warrant. -was subsequently 
turned over to the MC Police Department in connection to their bench warrant for processing. On 
August 08, 201 1, the MC matter was Nolle Prossqui for counts one and three of possession of 
rnarijuana ~nd possession of. paraphern~lia in MC Distri~t Court. ~~s _fined a totat of ~500 for 
the secona (;aunt o~ posrwss!on rir parapnemaJI~ . piare.J. tm prnbat1on untu f·ebn.i..qry r.m ?.O <~ ! and 
'.·eiqu~:~~- '? _r.~.>i;:pl~ta r..ornmunity .r,,r::rv1r:!.~. ~tated he wt::s pt~-Jcact •:Jf> p.foh~tkm befor!l j1Jd~?ne.11t 
lfc M1 ... , t.J;,~:r'(r'd 1 • ..<~r.m.. . 
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~tated he informed -and 
msarrest in 2008 immedia~ng to WO . 
mllatnd ~f the arrest. ~tated he met w 
~ weel<TOJiowing the i~tTri'F!Tovember 2008. 
made aware of the. arre~t b~efore he spoke with 

, Specialists, Office of Security, FMS of 
nd - advised him to inform 
womenTo inform them of the arrest 
believes - had previously been 

(Exhibit 6) _ . 

In a second interview with TOIG, -stated sh~formed o-arrest b in 2008. 
~tated she was also told ofreih'cident by _,r -.V=itOccurred. dvised 
~ew of the possession of paraphernalia, but was not t~ut the possession of marijuana in 
~~tated she had forgotten about the incident until TOIG's initial i iew in October 2011 . 
... ei)Orted she was never made aware of the bench warrants issued for arrest in 2009 
and 2011. lllllstated she did not lie in her first interview, but had forgotten abo · cident due 
to the temporary stat~s o1111t and the lack of follow up information provided by -
acknowled e at it was tier responsibility to follow up on the developments of the case a~ 
never did. stat · that it is her job to report incidents involving employees to LER, but she 
never repo incident. (Exhibit 7) 

•
s Nota:tm-vas interviewed a second time due to discrepancies in subsequent interviews. 
nitially told TOIG, she was first made aware of~ arrests by-sometime during the 

week of October 171 2011 .] · 

In an interview wit T~tated he had no ~ecord of a notification to FMS involving -
being sent t ~ DO drafts and forwards letters informing bureaus that their 
employee ha een arrested and to look into the matter further. DO does not inform bureaus if the 
employee is of the GS-15 level or higher. llareported that a lack in notifying a bureau is common. 
In addition, many arrests of Federal employees are not discovered until the re~investigation of 
bacl<grounds. (Exhibit 8) 

In an interview with TOJG, --eported he was never informed of arrest. --
receives information on em~sts which.bject to adverse n as a resutt of an arrest 
or misconduct This information originates with or - described previously 
held monthly meetings between LER and to discuss issues t at arose. These meetings 
stopped abruptly six months ago and is unaware of the reasons behind the 
discontinuation of these monthly meet1 gs. tated that elayed •. formation to I.ER 
before and after~ arrest, but neg!ecte a.mo hem o arrest. lso 
stat~d that student employees do not have appeal rights to disciplinary action unless it invo ves 
:;;exua! harassment or narfrsan 3ffi!i~tkm . ;'f1"'hihit :J) ' ' . 

M.~'\ 
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~j Findings 

The investigation detennined the allegations are substantiated . ..... as arrested in November 
2008, for one count of possession of marijuana and two counts of possession of paraphernalia. He 
was also arrested in February 2011 for driving on a suspended lice~wo bench warrants were 
issued in 2009 and 2011, as a result of these arrests. Additionally,-nitially did not repo~ 
full details of his arrests on his first certified Standard Form-86. However, being told to do so, -
provided the full details on a second Standard Form-86. 

With regards to~estigation determined the allegation is substantiated. ~as made 
aware~~ 2008, but ad.. that she never obtained any further details for two 
years. ~ti~orted to !W.,lhat ever informed her of his arrests. However, upon a 
second interview ~dmitted -informed her, but she forgot 

Based on the find ings of our investigation, it appears that the following pertinent statute(s), 
regu!ation(s) and/or policy(ies) were violated or could be applied to the case: 

• 31 C.F.R., Part 31Part0, Employee Rules of Conduct, Subpart B· Rules of Conduct, Section 
0.213, General Conduct prejudicial to the government, Employee shall not engage in criminal, 
infamous, dishonest, immoral, or notoriously disgraceful conduct, or any other conduct 
prejudicial to the government. 

• 5 C.F.R. , Part 2635.101 (b) (1 4}, Employees shall endeavor to avoid any actions creating an 
appearance that they are violation the taw or the ethical standards set forth in this part. 
Whether particular circumstances created an appearance that the law or these standards 
have been violated shall be determined from the perspective of a reasonable person with 
knowledge of the relevant facts. 

Distribution 

Patricia M. Greiner, Assistant Commissioner for Management and Chief Financial Officer, FMS 
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Exhibits 

Number Description 

1. Original allegation, Correspondence, dated October 5, 2011. 

2. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated October 28, 2011. 

3. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated November 7, 2011. 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-dated November 7, 2011. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

Memorandum of ~ctivity, Interview of 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

dated November 28, 2011. 

dated November 14, 2011. 

dated November 17, 2011. 

dated November 29, 2011. 

dated November 29, 2011. 

This Report of Investigation is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and its contents may not be reproduced without 
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Office of the Inspector General 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Re ort of Investigation 

!1!1!111 
Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency 

Case Type: Criminal 
Administrative L 
Civil 

Investigation Initiated: December 22, 2011 Conducted by-
~ 

Investigation Completed: JUN 0 6 2012 
Approved by: John L. Phillips 

Origin: ace Special Agent in Charge 

Case #: OCC-12-0496-1 

Summary 

On December 22, 2011, the United States Department of the Trea ffice of Inspector General, 
Office of Investigations (TOIG), received information from Office of the Comptroller 
of the Currency (OCC). regardi~issued laptop. eported the laptop was 
issued to OCC Bank Examiner - and was stolen at Union Station in Chicago, IL. 

The investigation substantiated that -left his CCC-issued laptop, badge-and credentials 
unattended in Union Station, and all items were stolen by an unknown subject. lied a 
report with the Chicago Police Department (PD) on December 22, 2011 . 

On December 29, 2011 , OCC was contacted by an unknown subject stating he purchased the OCC 
laptop from another unknown subject for $200.00. TOIG used the contact information provided by the 
purchaser of the OCC la to and obtained an Inspector General !G sub oena for T-Mobile 
tele hone number which had been registered to TOIG contacted 

and er mo er, - regard ing the s o en ap op, but neither could 
provide any tn ormation about the s~ 

r--i:h;~~-1?;;;,;;:t· :.~1 ·i;;~ ;:-~r1~1;.~i:i~);~-,;~~;; r.) ~~:;:µ~.;·~7·.~;i7i;;:·i.ST~;,;~~ i;i1 :;;;:;:;;.~ fii~~frz;.1.~: -::rt·i;~·:~~~;.~·0:m.;[: ... ,;t ti ~·;,:-)1:1;~~.; ~i:~:;··· ............... ··-·1 
I Gl;'n();ro;:!, t~ ·~ )"lt.oilnf.i ~""::m:~e.iv·~ 111w ~mf!Jfr.:~.mi~un ~1~fcrm~tj.i.:m ~!KA St ti; c1Y..~1~t~ ;:)4'i°V fi . .;11. tro n."r.itc:du<:tXI 'A'.it1wut ; 
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Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

This case was initiated on December 22, 2011, based upon a referral from 
the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) informing TO!G of a stolen OCC issued laptop. 

he investigation, TOIG conducted relevant inteNiews with: 

• Technical Support Agent, OCC Technical Support 
• 
• Bank Examiner, OCC 

• an Teller, Urban Partnership Bank 

.. ··- -· - · •• _ ...... _ .... .,.,,,,...-'Dt 

Office of 

• 
• 

Public Service Administrator, Department of Child and Family Services, DCFS 
Manager, Gary Comer Youth Center (GCYC) 

• Manager, GCYC 

• Security Director, GCYC 
• 
• Global Security and Investigations, JP Morgan Chase (JPMC) 

In addition, TOIG reviewed pertinent documents, including; 
• JPMC Bank Account Information for -
• CLEAR Report for 
• NCIC Report for 
• CLEAR Report for 
• NCIC Report for 
• TCIS Results for 
• JPMC Bank Account nformation for 
• Subscriber Information included in IG Subpoena results for T-Mobile telephone number-

• l!!olice Report Numbe~ dated December 22, 2011 

f nvestigative Activit~ 

On January 4, 2012, TOIG Interviewed,-,, Technical Support Agent, OCC Te-c· al 
Su ort. regarding a-ele hone call she ~n individual who identified hlrnself as 

Chicago, IL stated he purchased the laptop for $200.00 frorn an un~:nown.in ividua . 
ontacted OC eil!ni ort in res on.se to a message he en::o11nterad "~t:en attemptin9 

o :..iset th•.1-ased !apt, . ! >1e 'Ni~!~ nnt t:<'h'i;!f-.°.1 the la to wa':f :1 !:0!(·~i'1 q(;1'i~)rm?1~~nv 
")f'1'"')~· ""''·' P'·~"•·kl,~-·J "' 1" .. 1\1?, ... · t:. 1•;~ I rh•"'·:"r."-'· , .. ,.. ... ,,...i v.">i . W~"•:.1••:i. ;,.,:;. (_,.,. · 1.,~ ·~·,p, ~· ,;~ . ,·~&}"~ >'. J'\i~,.~ ... ~. ,~ ~. f..,.4 J ,. , .,,.,, 1. i . ,,~1 .l :· c..lf '' ' '" . h ... i\ . .. • '-·• .. • \.C~.1 ,A;. .. ... 

:,rn:(;!': f;\'f. i xhibit~.; ·; & :.n 

ffiir; R;,r.;;-r !, ;f!!r;.;;~i~;;.;.h,_~~1~;~-.;;;:.;p;,:;.~y ::.1 i.h~ .. i.5~1Tt; ~~,-t~.~~~iiii.ai;;~:;: 1 ,-r;i~-~;;y ~,;:,~&(;;~;:{ t}\; fr»~1;e;~:~. ·-~---·-·--1 
I r' l••j"'ll f~ "°'" '<f'2'° a,, ,,_ "11•/i'!•'<'<· ! •n•v ..... #,~ ''""' ""'~ ,j, t •('VI" 'H,•n '"' r• 1't4 ,.. ~'"' /'"'' '( ••'·" .,, • . ;. f- ro: '' "'" <;:11;• ..I "l!.'' (· < 1 .• ':11/!r "' <·.I. ·~ ~·"'""""'~·;.l,. .. ~,,-., ........ ~.,. ·l•w• . .,,;,, ,,,-1, ,.,..f.~~h ' "' i,., ,J1,:ik1 ,) •7, ' ,.,.,.,.1,(,,. h'1.A1.r.; ,t, 1 .. ;~ r ...... ... I .. # t·~~ .. ,,.,. , ."'"~Q.1(• 1.t! : ~r.r. I 
; wr.Utan µ'llrm~filOH ~(l• -1r: . .:;1,mk~.M'X~ witit ~ ~l ;S,f~ , !~ t.1~r.t lN1' 1.~poi't f<t?J i-fJR Of.Pl~(;i,a.L 1)~~~ Ot1tt:.·· riinri' it~; ·,l!~Jdf.l/.;(9?"·f/ ~ 
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default of payments. TOlG attempted to call the number and found that the number was no longer in 
service. (Exhibit 3) 

On January 9, 2012, TOIG performed sever atabase queries for 
ossibly lived a as records indicated that 

Bolingbrook, IL. 
(Exhibit 4) 

was also listed as a resident of the 

honicall intervi • who stated she is the mother of 
said was 1 

year as a senior. aid a psyc ologist diagnose 
Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD). In addition 
has the mental capacity of an eight-or nine-year old child. 
had her iden times recently by several individuals. 

urrently in her third 
bi olarwith 

male tricked into signing paperwork concerning th a vehicle, possibly 
a Cadillac. a female n m stole identity and 
received benefits intended for . rem the Social ecurity Administration (SSA). -

b · ved-worke at a bank ln the area of 451
h Street or 461

h Street in Chica o, IL. 
co~provide details of the method- used to steal 

identity. believ lived on 45th ~r 46tn Street in e area oft .e ank 
where she works. has never received SSA benefits. (Exhibit 5) 

Global Secur~· and Investigation, JPMC. 
owned solely b and lists her address at 

informed TOIG that U. . reasury checks made payable 
account at JPMC. -s JPMC account was o~n 
a tive. sairrr.nreasury check number -

of Chicago, IL., was deposited 
said banx. account number 

as a co-signer on tt:e l!ccoi..!n1 The acc-r.j\.mt 

f'-rh.i.iP:~;;.;:;11·~r-i;r;r.~J;;;1~:;u;r.;'1;; ~1;.,~ ~;;;;,,c..n.;r··;.rt~,~-\ .. )t11r.:i.·;.;t1.;.~;:~·t;i~i'.i).r,,;rc-~~r.;~~;·:,:1ri"ifo·7~;;r,;}1·~···i;i~i:::~ .. ;., .. ;;··-···· ... .... --.'. 
1 >;?-er:nr)r»*~· It ·:;1:~.:.;!~f.nf.f. ~w·n~'~"'ll'Fi l~~w \~;rif;:;r1·::~m.1~~·t lnf,!.~>rmGJf1t:rf·11i . .r1d l~:r,:. t-~·, ~r.f.~Ml~:+ n·M.;v rwt b~ r•;}'fftdr.~1'. tid wt~l r:~':>i.·;~ ~ 
i l.'H(f1~m j;•t:~rm li>S.1('4~ Ji~ ~1:<1 -i.;~·r.!n.w:.e .. _-,,.;dt 5 !), ').:'.: . 5 1) .~ii:. Thi.!! ci;p::ut \'1! N~H1. (Wflf..'iAl USt: O~V.t '( i'.!~i\ ii'Z' 13!!h':k .t.mrn ! 
I t(.l 1Jrn;u~~orin'd 1'~~·!rnns i~ I~h!M~4i. . 
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M --••• . . ... - .. .... . . ..... _ · - ··· · .. -·-·\0-.,..,, ....... ~ .......... ~ 

On March 13, 2012, TOIG interviewed-- stated he was eating dinner in Union 
Station around 6:00 PM on December 2~ ~ackpack was stolen. -said he 
went to dispose of trash approximately ten feet from his table, and beca~~ 
approximately five minutes while speaking to a fellow commuter. When-retur ed to the 
table where he had been eating dinner, his backpack with his belongings were gone. 
backpack contained his OCC-issued laptop, badge , credentials, and Personal ldenti · a ion 
(PIV) card. -reported the incident to his supervisor and the Chicago PD. reported 
the incident~icago PD as a theft, and does not know why it was classified as lost property in 
the Chicago PD report. (Exhibit 9) 
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Referrals 

NIA 

Judicia.I Action 

N/A 

Findings 

The investigation substantiated that-ft his OCC-i top, badge, and credentials in a 
backpack and unattended in Union ~hicago, IL e distracted and returned 
to his table to find his-backpack and OCC-issued items missing. reported the incident to his 
chain of command and the Chicago PD within a reasonable amount of time. 

Based on the findings of our investigation, it appears that the following pertinent regulation(s) were 
violated and can be applied to the case: 

• 31 CFR 205 (b) (c)- Care of Documents and Data. Employees are required to care for 
documents according to Federal law and regulation, and Department procedure. The term 
documents Includes, but is not limited to, any writing, recording, computer tape or disk, 
blueprint. photograph, or other physical object on which information is recorded, 

• 5 CFR 2635.101 (9) ~ Basic Obligation ot Public .Service. Employees shall protect and 
conserve Federal property .and shall not use tt for other than authorized activities. 

With regards to-stealing - ·s Social Sect!ri~ts. ~~c~ 
unsubstantiated. TOIG founi:-J d~stim;,1ny r.~f bofh ~n~i-
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Exhibits 

Number Description 

1. Original Allegation, Correspondence, dated December 22, 2011. 

2. Memorandum of Activity) Interview of dated January 4, 2012. 

3. Memorandum of Activity, T-Mobile Subpoena Results 1 dated January 91 2012. 

4. 

5. 

Memorandum of Activity) Database Results tor 
2012. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

dated January 9, 

dated January 10, 2012. 

6. Memorandum of Activity, Database Results for- dated January 10, 2012. 

7. Memorandum of Activity, Interview o dated February 22, 2012. 

8. Copy of the Chicago Police Department Report Number#-

9. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated March 13, 2012. 

10. Memorandum of Activity, Interview o~dated March 14, 2012. 

11. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated March 15, 2012. 

12. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated March 15, 2012. 

13. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated March 15, 2012. 

14. Memorandum of Activity, Interview o dated March 15, 2012. 

15. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated March 15, 201 2. 

This Report of Invest igation is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and its contents may not be reproduced without 
written permission in accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552. This report Is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its disclosure 
to unauthorized persons Is prohibited. 
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Office of the Inspector General 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Report of Investigation 

Case Title: 
Senior Regulatory Policy Analyst 
Federal Insurance Office 
Departmental Offices 
GS-15 

Investigation Initiated: July 31, 2013 

Investigation Completed~()CT 0 7 2013 

Origin: - Dlrector 
~rity Programs, 
Departmental Offices 

Summary 

Case#: 00·13-2057-1 

Case Type: Criminal _lL_ 
Administrative _x_ 
Civil 

Conducted by: -
~ 

Approved by: Jason Metrick 
Special Agent in Charge 
(Acting) 

On July 31 , 2013, the Department of the Treasury (Treas~ Inspector General, 
Office of Investigations (TOIG) received information from -Director, Office of 
Security Programs, Departmental Offices (00) concerning informatfon discovered during­
-., Senior Insurance ~ry Policy Analyst, Federal Insurance Office (Fl~ 
~nd investigation that ~rchased cocaine and was subsequently charged and 
arraigned. (Exhibit 1) 

1 

The investigation determined that the allegations are substantiated. 9:>rovided false and 
misleading statements regarding international travel, arrest/arraignment dates. and dates of 
cocaine use when he submitted his Office ot Personnel Management (OPM), Electronic 
Ouestionnaire for Investigations Processing {e··OIP} . 

•• , •• , . . . ........ , , ·-·• •• ...,.,. _ ... ., , ,. i. , .,.,.u .. · - + ... ., ... ,_.. "" • • ,_,.,, •• ,.,., ...... "_,, .. •-•• •H'•• / •• •, ......... ..,_ ...,,.. ~~"-"'~:-,.··• • ••••?· ,, ,,,,_,~ • • • ·-- • " '- '' _,,.._, «•••·•~• · • ,+,·•- , ....... \••au •"• • ·••••,,_,._ ,,, .. ., .. -~ - " .,._, . • "" '""'"\ 

l ·n:~ R~~t!:ni t:::if 1AN 11;-1;tigM~•!"1 i:~ tl1:~ f:1·u~11n1 :';·f !lM ~fimc~ id Ji"t'foo:ti~r;~t~cn, 1"1'1\"!At\\t<~~ (J.ff~::."G (If t.~.w i~1'k~l'l\":~c~ .( 
1 ;:~1mf)~a!., '.tt C.-t!'rta'iut . ~~r~iY-0- ~~w ,,:1,n.r1>r.t::~m~r.t 'rd·~rmati'i1;;n bim!I H~. 0::o~t'Etnt~ :m~y !tot b~ rnprnr.iw;i:t,'.i wm'l.~~i( ' 
! w .rmM t'.:'~1fffS~U!>. lw at::e:•'.)td~iH;;t1 w~tt. ~ 1,U.M::. ·~ 55~t i'hi~ :~j.)t'-;;t fa~ r.tt.•;f' f.fff~lC~f.}i'~ fJSi;-i CN"lt':f :~.\1".i ii~ Pi'ir.11,1:~ W'i!. 
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Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

....... ... , . ........ ·····• ... ... ~· · ,.,. . • ..,,,,,, _,.,,,.. ••• , ............. "11'1ftll!"-"f1Llo.1d\l!llf.IM•l 

On July 31, 2013, TOIG received information from -concerning information discovered 
during .ms background investigation that - possessed cocaine and was subsequently 
arreste~eptember 9, 2011. 

A TOIG document review of- Treasury Personnel File revealed he was charged with one 
count of possession of a controlled dangerous substance; to wit, cocaine, pursuant to DC Code 
48-904.01(e). - OPM e-OIP, date~ember 9, 2012, is part of the overall personnel file, 
which also revealed dates reported for - initial arrest, as well as his use of cocaine. -s 
e-OIP submission Indicated his first encounter with law enforcement regarding the charge for 
possessing cocaine occurred in September 2011. 

-e-QIP submission .indicated the estimated first uiie f cocaine occurred in May 2011 and 
his most recent use was estimated to be July 2011. nswered, "No" to ever having been 
involved in the illegal purchase, manufacture, cultivation, trafficking, production, transfer, 
shipping, receiving, handling or sale of any drug or controlled substance within the last seven 
years. 

-told an OPM background investigator he was stopped in his vehicle by the Metropolitan 
Police Department ~MPD) after purchasing cocaine after submitting his e-QIP. 

-as been employed with DO from ~bar 5, 2012 to the present as a Senior Insurance 
Regulatory Policy Analyst in the FIO. -is the lead analyst assigned to the International 
Association of Insurance Supervisors Insurance Group as a life insurance representative. 
(Exhibit 2) 

A TOIG document review of DC Court Case # docket entries, confirmed -as 
arraigned and charged in Washington, DC Superior Court on September 9, 2011. On February 
27, 2012 the charge was noUe proseque on the basis of pre-trial diversion. {Exhibit 3) 

fAgent's Note: PraMtrial diversion allows offenders to maintain a <.:lean criminal rn~xm:.f by 
pleading guilty and then completing a prescribed substanci:; ab~J!>e ~m.:igram am.! 1w~: t~tJf1lmrtdng 

additional offonseftl .. At ths conc.hJ$k:ir1 :.~r the diverslormr~ p~:i-i.l.:id . th~ :JV.!!t y- p~t:!a >.~ v e".1t1te(), ~ht?. 

'-~'°'sa IH r.Fsmlssad, ~nd th fJ offen;,;tor l~~;!1 i1-)f.~£f~f.y· o!~.dro1 liCi"•'·!!f to h,1v+"!I bi~Hn an-1u;t~d P~" <Jniwk:ted ~:ir 

i:.hJY'if1Q._!jll.~~l.~·1·hf.!· ~fiV~:!!~ t·i[lMkf.,~: , t'Olf; t;nnc.~,;r:t~t~ th~ ~OiirTv,(f(t). ii°ll'J::''i;-fr.=W}) \:.: it"h ; 
fl' - Spei;-i11i Agerrti· F~dar<ii Burnau -:-;t .! '.-rvm;t\gatlofl {FBil 
~ Special l\gont .. f 8l 

cl~i At;-ent , Fm 
DJ1\~r..-~1.:·r r H(i, r;.Q 
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• , Senior Insurance Regulatory Policy Analyst, FIO, DO 

During the course of the investigation, TOIG reviewed the following pertinent documents: 
• ~Treasury Personnel File, including his e-OIP dated November 9, 2011 . 
• 'DcCourt Case ~ocket entries. 
• Treasury Enforcement Communication System (TECS), Custom and Border Protection 

(CSP) foreign travel records for-
• FBI Form 302 dated, March 11, 2011 . 

Investigative Activity 

In an interview with TOIG, - stated the FBI identified -during an ongoing 
investigation and subsequently conducted a traffic stop of- vehicle after..bi.las witnessed 
by the FBI purchasing cocaine from a known drug dealer in Washington, DC. ~as detained 
and interviewed by the FBI, at which time he admitted to possessing 1.5 grams of cocaine. 
-confirmed the FBI previously investigated - but does not currently have an active 
investigation. (Exhibit 4) 

In an interview with TOIG, -stated during an FBI investigation, the FBI identified -
and documented that he p~ocaine almost on a daily basis and that-expressed 
interest in purchasing significant amounts of cocaine. The FBI worked with MPD to nolle 
proseque the misdemeanor possession of a controlled substance in an attempt to entice -o 
cooperate, which was unsuccessful. lnitially,-howed interest; however, after the charge 
was dismissed and he was granted diversion, he never returned the FBl's telephone calls . 
(Exhibit 5) 

In an interview with TOIG, -stated the FBI conducted the traffic stop of- vehicle and 
subsequently detained him on February 28, 2011 . The FBI completed a report on March 11 , 
201 1, and-as charged and arraigned on September 9, 2011 . (Exhibit 6&7) 

A TOIG document review of TECS foreign t ravel records for-rom November 2005 through 
November 2012, revealed in addition to what he reported on his e-OIP, that he also traveled to 
Barcelona and Madrid, Spain; Monaco; Nice and Cannes, France; Berlin, Germany and one 
additional trip to London, England. (Exhibit 8) 

In an interview with TOIG, - stated . specializes in life insurance and is the lead 
analyst assigned to the lnte~ Association of Insurance Supervisors Insurance Group 
which requires significant foreign travel. --· d official Treasury travel taken by 
.. o Frankfurt, Germany and Basel, Switzerland. stated there is no excuse for illicit 
~use and any such activity conflicts with the Integrity and confidence which is essential to 
FIO's work. (Exhibit 9) 

This Report of Investigation is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement lnfonnatlon and Its contents may not be reproduced without 
written permission in accordance with 5 u.s.c. § 552. This report ls FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its disclosure 
to unauthorized persons Is prohibited. 
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In an interview with TOIG, ~tated he forgot to add travel to Monaco; Nice and Cannes, 
France; Barcelona and Madrid, Spain; Berlin, Germany and one additional trip to London, England 
within the last seven years when he completed his e-QIP. 

~tated when he was detained by the FBI for possession of cocaine in the fall of 2011, he 
~ust returned from vacation and received a telephone call from a man he previously 
purchased cocaine I asking if he wanted to buy cocaine. ~tated he was charged in 
September 2011. confirmed that he went to 16th St~W Washington, D.C. to 
purchase cocaine. tated he used cocaine once a month. 

[Agent's Note: - e-QIP submission indicated his first encounter with law enforcement 
regarding the charge for possessing cocaine occurred in September 2011; however, the FBI 
informed TOIG the actual traffic stop occurred on February 28, 2011.J 

TOIG asked-f the incident when MPD and FBI detained him for purchasing cocaine actually 
occurred on February 28, 2011, at which time he answered, "Yes." -ould not provide an 
explanation why the dates he reported on his e-OIP were wrong, but stated he never used 
cocaine after the traffic stop. 

[Agent's Note: - e-QIP submission indicated the estimated first use of cocaine occurred in 
May 2011 and his most recent use was estimated to be July 2011, which falls after the date of 
the incident with MPD and FBI.) 

-dmitted that the dates of first and most recent use of cocaine on his e-OIP were incorrect 
and suggested his first use may have been between September and October 2010 and the date 
he most recently used were during the months of December 2010 and January 2011. (Exhibit 
10) 

Referrals 

On September 10 , 20 13 t TOIG presented t he case to the U.S. Attorney 's Office (USAO) for the 
District of Columbia, and the case was declined for prosecution. (Exhibit 11} 

J udicial Action 

NIA 

This Report of Investigation is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and its contents may not be reproduced without 
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Finding~ 

···- -·--·- ·· ... ····-· ···-·-"' "•••\ •:•• '" "'" ' 

The investigation determined that the allegations are substantiated. -rov1ded false and 
misfeading statements regarding international travel, arrestJarraignment"Ttes, and dates of 
cocaine use when he submitted his e-OIP. 

Based on the findings of our lnvestigatton, It appears that the following pertinent statute(s), 
regulation{s) and/or policies were violated or could be applied to the case: 

• 5 CFR 2535-101 Basic Obligation of Public Service 
• 31 CFR 0.208 Falsification of Offic;a1 Records 
• 31 CFR 0.213 General Conduct Pre}udiclal to the Government 

Distribution 

Senior Advisor, DO 
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Exhibits 

1 . TOIG Complaint Intake, dated August 1, 2013. 

2. Memorandum of Activity, Document Review, dated July 31 , 2013. 

3. Memorandum of Activity, Document Review, dated August 2, 2013. 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-dated July 31, 2013. 

5. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of -dated July 31, 2013. 

6. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of~ated July 31, 2013. 

7. Memorandum of Activity, Document Review, dated August 9, 201 3. 

8. Memorandum of Activity, Document Review, dated August 5, 2013. 

9. Memorandum of Activity, lnter~iew of~ated September 9, 2013. 

10. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-dated September 10, 2013. 

11. Memorandum of Activity, Case presentation, dated September 10, 2013. 
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Office of Inspector General 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Report of Investigation 

Case Title: Chief, GS-1 5 
Consumer Financial Protection 
Bureau (CFPB) 
(Non Treasury Employee} 

Investigation Initiated: May 14, 2012 

Investigation Completed: OCT 2 2 2012 
Origin: Hotline 

Summary 

Case#: 
Case Type; 

Conducted by: 

00-12-1718-1 
Criminal 
Administrative X 
Civil 

Special Agent 

Approved by: John L. Phillips 
Special Agent in Charge 

On May 14, 2012, the Department o·f the Treasury {Treasury), Office of Inspector General , 
Office of Investigations {TOIG), init iated an investigation based on ~omplaint 
alleging conflict of interest and employee misconduct violations by -Chief 
Administrative Officer and Acting Chief of Operations (COO), Consumer Financial Protection 
Bureau (CFP8) (formerly Chief of Operations, Office of Financial Stability (OFS). The 
complainant alleged tlllllllesigned from OFS in July 2011 and immediate ly went to work as 
t he Senior Vice President (VP) of Market Development and G~ent Services for _ 
Inc., an Information Technology (IT) Govern~tractor. -eportedly participated in a 

-

c ment meeting w ith OFS on behalf of - in an attempt t o secure a contract for 
with OFS. (Exhibit 1) 

~e~n determined that the allegation is unsubstantiated . While employed w ith 
_ _,et twice with - Director, Fimmcia! Services ,& Opera tions, 
OFS, however, there is no i~vide~t - violated past-emp!oym~nt cestrlctbn 
I t 'rj' fir1""~ 1·;. t·" "1 ~'r' r"• t :' ~· · : ' n • t<>k l '"'I/ {'>·ff' ,.,; •. • '" ' ''•"1 1 ·f'.., ', 'f .,, .•• ~·· ' t .,, 1 l Jl.1 . e ,, ..... . ...1 .. 1:::1.,, _...,.i..~ ,,) .::t •.. 1~. n 1 .. 1 ,_o .o. ,(, .. r 11 ··" ,r,, , .i1 1.1,. 1., , ,· .. i i.. .. r, <i .......... 10 l •.• 1 .c. 
1jir.t, ni:Jt ~tt<·Jr<'1pt 1.0 1.n . tYJ-f'i~~ i': him i'i ;-.m\, r:·1 :;w.r n:;;·. 
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Basis and Scope of the lnvestl9.!!_tl.on 

This inv~on was initiated on Ju-ne 26, 2012, based on information received by TOIG 
alleging - while employed with , entered OFS premises and participated in a 
procurement meeting between OFS and , in possible violation of 18 USC § 207 -
Restrictions on Former Officers, Employees, And Elected Officials of the Executive and 
Legislative Branches. 

e investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 

• Director, Financial Servicas~ations, OFS . 
Director, Electronic Payments, -• 

• Chief Administrative Officer, CFPB . 

• Deputy Assistant General Counsel Ethics, DO . 

In addition, TOIG reviewed pertinent documents, including: 
• Post-Employment Issues Memorandum to-dated April 12, 2011. 

Investigative Activity 

In an interview with TOIG, -stated he me~twice, first at the OFS offices, 
located at 1801 L Street N~gton, D.C. and later at a Caribou Coffee. At the first 
meeting on August 1 6, 2011, -mpl s d by - s office to check in on him. 

tated that they did not discuss A~ meeting in September 2011, 
as accompanied by another-employee. This occurred soon 

after Treasury announced in September 2011 , that Treasury bureaus would be re~ use 
the Internet Payment Platform (IPP) which was of interest to --an~ 

~tated the meeting was about ervices a~le to the Financial 
Management Service (FMS} and the IPP. opined-wanted to meet with him 
because before working for OFS in 2006, was employed with FMS. - dded 
he had little information to provide nd bP.cause it had been~x1mately six 
years since he worked tor FMS. specified he was not asked by - cJ- to 
:·nal<e anv r.:;.:;11!s: tn flv~S for ·r. h<~ffi, provide r:my· retenJnct11~, ~:;r r.~"ike ;;nv ,,..;ther type ::).f official o.r 
'.!W.lHie;al ?\:.;;:ion t.F 1 ~t.wir b"lh .~I L \Exhibits 2 .~~ 3) 
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Federal Reserve Bank of Boston and they discussed people and employees they both I< new. 
sserted was not asked to take any official or unofficial action on behalf of 

- or and she did not attempt to intluence-n any manner. 
atd she never contacted or solicited any Treasury Departmental employees with intent to 

inf uence them or cause any official action. (Exhibit 5) 

A TO!G document review of the memorandum from - to - dated April 12, 2011 , and 
titled "Post -Employment Issues" discovered it was created in response to-'s request for 
adv ice regarding post-employment restrictions with respect to- s proposed work for 
-The memorandum states -was a senior employ~er the definitions of 18 
~(c) and t herefore is prohi bi~r one year after her service with OFS terminates from, 
uknowingly, with intent to influence, making any communication to or appearance before an 
employee of Treasury's Departmental Offices (including OFS), if that communication or 
appearance is made on behalf of any other person in connection with any matter on which you 
seek official action by any Treasury employee." In addition, -is restricted for one year, 
pursuant to 18 USC 207(c) , from making any contacts w ith ~ry Departmental Offices if 
such communications are made with intent to influence official action. (Exhibit 6) 

In an interview with TOIG, ~tated-s post employment restrictions does not restrict 
her from contacting, making an appearan~re, or attempting to influence, Internal Revenue 
Service, FMS, or non-DO employees. According to - when the April 12, 2011, 
memorandum states, "Treasury's Departmental Employees" and "any Treasury employee, " it 
specifically refers t o DO, to include OFS. (Exhibit 7) 

Referrals 

NIA 

Ni A 

f"" -·· .... - ··-······· .... ·--·-··· .. ··-···-··-· - . . ····-·- ............ . ··-- ... .... - .. ... ··--··· . ... ····-·· ..... _ .. _ ...... ·-··-· ..... - ·-·-· . _....... .. .. . .. ... - ...... ···--- ·- 1 
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i 1t " •··1"'t·•'•1.-• .. r. •. • ·1 ··1·~1··, ··~ ~ .. , .•. , ·~1·1·\,,. .. , , ... ,.,,n..,'t 1'.1'-•~r·•"···-·· 1~•11• '""td ~ ... , .•. " ")1·1·1-.•r· ~···· r·•••·'"' 1• .. -" ' '"'· ~1 1;.,,,. ~1· 1·1·•1•"' · 1.fl~1·11.· , ....... .......... •1 • I, v;..o14' (/. r ... , .;, ........ 1 .• ·~ t,;.t l ( l V'I' • ,. c .. r t ~•.1~ ..., ,, ~1· ·" • ' ' · '·'·~''- , ., ~•2 ,, • \., .. • " ' 1 .... 1' s C.:1, . • 1w, Ll'I.• 11 .,,o1ot . t1, ."' •''"'I " ~ •'~~'" " 'Ill' r .•.• 1 . 
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. -·· · --··- ·-··· _ ...... - ... - ... ---- .... . .-·. - -. ... ,., ...... . . a1•r-.• 

Ba sed on the findings of our investigation, it appears that the following pertinent statute(s), 
regulation(s) and/or policies were violated or c;;ould be applied to the case; 

N/A 

Distribution 
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Exhibits 

1. Lead Initiation, dated May 9, 2012. 

2. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

3. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

5. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

dated July 12, 2012. 

dated July 23, 2012 . 

dated July 24, 2012. 

dated July 24, 2012. 

6. Memorandum of Activity, Review of Post-Employment Issues Memo, dated May 31, 
2012 . 

7 . Memorandum of Activity, Interview of dated September 18, 2012. 
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Office of the Inspector General 
U.S .. Department of the Treasury 

Re ort of Investigation 

Case Title: - Misuse of 
Credentials 
(Treasury Employee) 

Investigation Initiated: April 23, 2012 

Investigation Completed: 

Case#: 

Case Type: 

Conducted by: 

OCC-1 2-1 383-1 

Criminal 
Administrative x 
Civil 

Special Agent 

Origin: Office of t he Comptroller of the 
Currency (OCC) 

Approved by: John L. Phillips 

Summary 

On April 3, 2012, the Department of the Treasury, Office of Ins 
Investigations (TOIG), was contacted via OIG Intake by 
following complaint reported to her by a third party that 
his .occ badge in a private family es tate legal matter. !Exhibit 1} 

Special Agent In Charge 

r General, Office of 
OCC, regarding the 

nappropriately displayed 

The allegation stems from - s visit to the property of-s uncle, 
inventory property related to the estate o s Grand~ is a 
beneficiary of his Grandmother's est ate. s a national bank examiner serving as Assistant 
Deputy Comptroller in the OCC's Syracuse, NY field office, 

Based on conflicting statements of the complainant and witness, and interview of the subject, 
TOIG could not substantiate the ;J.ltegation t hat -misused his OCC issued badge or 
credentials to infanldato, h1:m~.~.;s •x infltience. 

i. ri·;j;·R~~;:;;~;,,-~1f ~i IV!;~t-/1i.-.>t :;~~.1~; j,~· ~j;;~;· l:;tt;~·;i:·i:; nf"t:li~~ -6ffa;~!-~:i i.~:·v.:;;.tJ~H.·t .·!;.:;.:~-.-;:;;;-~;;:,:;:;.:;;sr.~:;;;;.~o'.i'"t.ib;;;· ;;;si1tic~;;;--·--·-· ·-·i 
•• ·~:;l;f~J tff.'l~. ~t. c-~~;~)hdr,:~' A\(.1~• ~1ti~t~J rn:w 1tr~forct:trl~$;* ir.i1eini~tfr..:.ii l.lm~ ;~~ ~::<CJ14,~1·*i ,1~~'!1 l"W!l° l~;.fi' 1rr.~rril'.f\L°~.~~:1,1~ w!~h(}trt i 
! ·n )1tl3t'I ~~<f':fi~"$fl,)rl ir: AM:t.'.'<i!i:-lfl{;!'. wdh s tz.S.C. § :s.1;). _ H:ifi: <'1:!n~t ttS fCR. ;)t!.!~2CL4.t. t1:.;1~ GN(... ~ (;.f'.-<J im \il~{;!o:::':.lt~ i 
; ~.f.! umu-,thmt.t.<•d ~i~m i.:1'.'~ i~ ~W'<}hfbitr..-J . ( 
1.-,.-......., . ...... ......... -·-·- ··- · ·--· .. .... - · - ···-- .... · · ·· ·--· ...... ·-·· ··---· · ........ ........ -·- .. - ............. - ........ - •... _ .. - ·-·-·· ·-···-·--· -·-···. - --· .. --·-··- ··· .. ....... . 



-

estigation 

383-1 
Page 2of7 

Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

~2. TOIG hotline received a complaint by Attorney representing 
-· reporting that inappropriately displayed his OCC badge in a 
private family estate legal matter. JS a national bank examiner serving as Assistant 
Deputy Comptroller in the O<;:C' s Syracuse, NY field office. 

During the course of the investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 
• , Complainant 
• puty Assistant Comptroller, OCC 

• itness 

In addition, TOIG reviewed pertinent documents, including: 
• Written complaint from Attorney representing Allie Swears, Jr. 

Investigative Activity 

On June 4, 2012, TOIG interviewed 
in reference to a complaint received indicating 
credentials. 

-said that 
beneficiary of his 's grandmother, 
mother are also t;>eneficiaries of 

) mother'~is a 
' estate. ~her and 

- said that-has been contesting the estate for seven years saying that his 
mother's estate has ~een allowed to see what was in the barn o 
~Y· property is directly adjacent to s om property. 
~as given access by the court to view the property owned by 
more specifically the barn. In May 2012,-had an appointment to look i 
- said tha!Wlilllshowed up ear~ppointment and when 
~m,9111PuUed out hi.s badge, - stated that neither he no 
.:myttiin9 at that point. A coi.mle .minu!.e$ later, when- a~k1..'4d to see the barn .• 
,,.;!J. ..... 11 "·'~ ~. -~ , 1.1.r~'> .. 1 .. ~\r.·~ .. ..-.n•• 1' • t • r;~I> ~l·f !' ... " \lif,,J..,.\~ •·h~G'I r.;1: n i '-': r~,t .• " ... -:1 111 .• 10 •J t 1r,.J,1 J, ,-,. "'* . .._. i::''"it>I ·1l·1~"1' i.,*' t·h('.•1•.•1hw.i.,,·:><• ,,,.!~,,.~1"ng h~, • .,. ...... , . .:. h-;-.;· ..... i.•;e•, .. ,,..\/'°'i'\• 1·•·11·~, .. 1 1"••1 1-11•" ~ ...... r;'", 11;··'~"'· ~,,· , .• ~ad'"" 

/\ g{Ji1~._,,t~H~~d c:t1.1 1s h;.;;dgs. ~~Gi!d Hmt ni:xth~n~~ Vr!>.:s~~ S.(iid .it th~t fm<:'-· -
-adv~ ,/id:"'.''t ~.,'lU\N w·ir.~1r. ·w.~~s l.l,IJ~tl9 r:tt t5iM p1.~;l··t. ~:iut rt dh1tlt ~l!fJ.ni Wo!{' ~·:., h~d 
1M·;-y i:'r.trn:r w~;·mcm to {:•ul! (:1 . .rr. r.h~.i tmdgtrl ~;~Y'-~'-'Pt 1~·.:r m.a~·.!~~\t. a 1.'.iolni: {c tt.~ ~<fri.1 it. 

-saidtha-1; 
' .. h.::)t a few m!n1.J~as ra er 
Upon ~f!~i1":.9 thlr•, 

began ~.ak:inq pk;!:l.;··~,3 of the pror~~rt•t ;.md th11n le'ft. 
c .arrn·l hfw~:. nnd si:::.·~ .. !.·~,<l 'U)f<(ni~ µ~A;o~uret> .:~t 

':~(l\,i i'li~ l'l1'i.'fi·1~:ii:' 1•i•l€1.f1't 1'1.•1; ·1·.::;~ ~I.it~ ~i,;h:~Ti, . ·-··-··-.. ··--·-···'" .. '" ... ·-··-··•"··-·-···· .. ··-.. -····· ..... -.. · .. ·-····· ........... --··-·····--·•""" .......... -......... , .... -·-· ... -................... -....... ,. ......... --·-· ........ _ .. _ ......................... , 
" ·~:hll1 Nt'lf,lf)f'f ~~f !.fM~S~igatft.m i~ ihf:.' ''fCJ}i~t(;y 1,11' tiF.$ r.mr..i::e .;;1~ tnw>':'S:l~~:~i\Qf):€i, r.-•.1.::r:.1.lrt' ;:iffl'Gt!} t;tf ~:fl~ fl\:li.t~W.t'1'( I 
. (l~m;t.~~. If •:m:r.t•-i~n:t ~~m~ft!ve fa.w ~ofo,~!.Om'il'm frrfm-matf.on :;;.ri'~ !1e ~1.H\'.ems mey- -~~"t l111 :.o.-p~o:·r.far.:~a -witl1vti·.~ · 
> • • 

~ Nritf€~ p>'.'11.'ft'·f~sl,:"flr il1. 11.1;1::or.>.;:l~i1.;~ Wit.ti i4! ~J .. ~~J'.': .. § ;f.151. .. 1"l11~ 1m1r-'rt ;~ f'(i~ r~fH~.::U\L U~t:. ONt...Y .illr.:<j Jbli .;;/i.,(;(Ct:!t•:H'I ! 
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informed him that that pro erty was not part of the estate. responded that he had the 
right to take the ~s. advised he tol that he was going to call the State 
Police, to which--esponde , a, State, I'm Federal" and pulled out his badge and said, 
"call whoever you want, I'm taking pictures and recording". . said that his mother 
then aske~ who he worked for and-said "Treasury". . said that_ 
never said~ was on offic ial business. 

- said that if 
mother right after 

as trying to intimidate them, it worked. -·told his 
left that they... ''for sure were going to be audi~' (Exhibit 2) 

On August 1, 2012, TOIG interviewed-Assistant Deputy Comp.troller, OCC, 
Syracuse, NY, relating to an allegation that-misused his OCC issued credentials. 

said that he is a beneficiary of the estate of his Grandmother, as is his 
uncle, -aid that there has been growing "an er" between the beneficiaries 
because a lack of movement to liquidate the estate by . - owns the 
property directly adjacent to his Grandmother's property. said~ of the es tate 
liquidation, he was allowed, by court order in March 2012, to have access to his Grandmother's 
property to do an accounting of all the property regarding the estate. 

After receiving· permission by the court to view the property,- said he made arrangements 
with-.to visit the property. In May 2012,-aid he went.to the property to 
acco~ estate pro erty. said that he arnvea at the farm and parked in front of 
the barn. -said that cousin, came out of his house and told 
tlllmthat~uldn' t take pict ures. sa1 that at that point he conference called. his wife 
and his attorney. tmadvised after the call- finally agreed to let him take pictures, 
91!1aaid that he entered the barn to begin taking pictures but the camera he had would not 
tak~ go!)d pictures in the dark. Wiii went back to his car to get his other camera. ~aid 
that because his camera was in his l:>ackpack, ha dumped his backpack contents onr;'his'Tront 
car .seat to 'find the camera. While dumping everything out,- said that his OCC credentials 
fefi onto the ground. -said that- picked his ~tials off~und and 
asked, " Do you still w~r the Fed?~ded his credentials back tewllll -
responded that he did , 
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State Polic.e. ~aid that he responded, "I don't care who you call". ~xplained that 
he actually would have liked them to call the authorities because he believed it would have 
defused their anger. 

-said that he has no idea why - would have said that-s credentials were 
shown numerous times and that he never said, "I don't care who you call, call the locals, I'm a 
Fed.'' ~aid that he did not intend to intimidate, harass or influence based on his 
Federal Government position. -denied ever showing his credentials. said that he 
has been very careful the entire time to not send an email to ' Attorney, 
-from his work email because of the perception. aid that he just wants the 
estate matter, "to get to a resolution". 

-provided a sworn w ritten statement addressing the above. (Exhibit 3) 

On September 12, 2012, TOJG reinterviewed was asked if he could 
describe the badge that he alleges was shown to im said that "it was 
gold". When asked if he could describe it a little more, said he cou not see it very 
well, he only saw that it was gold and could not tell if there was any other identification 
attached to the badge. -said that- seemed to flip open his wallet and he saw the 
badge. ~aid that the other side of the wallet was not black but didn't see anything 
there. (Exhibit 4) 

, .. '.r ~~; .. ~1t,f;(.:ri ~,i.ii~\::,~'$if~~~\~;;:;-·~:s-·t.f~;··p;;l·µ~~·,,:;:~ .. ;.l;f ~i;-i-;:ifii;;~~ ~~ii~·j;,:;1;.i·iu-;~f't;.;;-:: ~r;~;~;~;~·:i . "6(~;;; (;;f t e·1ii(, -~~;~-;~(;;··· ..... -· ·--· .. i 
f \~~'~·~r~t i~ ~~·•t'.~·~m~ i:\~1i~1~r~·1¥~~ t~w.~nfo:~c?m'~~ lri~~rrr.1•£li?1l an~ ~:"r ~~1'·~~$-'~~b~::~J.~y w~,~.~~- ¥_•?JP,~•7:~·x~~1,~ .• )_1~: ~r~;<.~1t . . ! 
• WJ~~foel ~iOHh·S$1tJV11it .u .. .f.-(;J~t .• -.1~ 1.~ •i\lM.h :> •• J.S .•••.. ~ ,1 ••. i. TrU':'i' W(j.f(.11 t ,t; F\ .. ? ,JfFiClA.t. i.h)~~- •• )ti ... J ul'i-d nm ,ii!l\.Jm.rnm. ! 

! ~<~ v~nat~tht:1rh:~d })ar.tt.;,H'i5 i.r;i J,t~l'l!ft:,~ti;:.d . · 
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-said that she never called the police and ~ot in the car and left w ithout further 
mcrdent. She said she has only seen him in court since that incident and he does not speak to 
them. -supplied a sworn written statement. (Exhibit 5) 

Referrals 

None 

Judicial Action 

None 

Findings 

TOIG's investigation of the misuse of OCC badge and credentials in violation of 31 CFR 0.213 -
General conduct prejudicial to the Government and 5 CFR 2635. 704 - Use of Government 
Property led to differing accounts by witnesses and uncorroborated statements, therefore TOIG 
finds the allegations unsubstantiated. 

Distribution 

Senior Advisor, Office of the Comptroller of the Currency. 

This Report of Investigation Is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and Its contents may not be reproduced without 
written permlsston In accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552. This report Is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its disclosure 
to unauthorized persons is prohibited. 
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(i1.~r'll:\.'~t fr ·t:1·~1·rt<t~rt·S •.;r,m:il·ti.f.~•.f'J .)'l:tW l')l."lfol"l'.':f1nl~1't.· {!tk1i'\!W.tlr.m ·itf3~f It!> ~~<mf~rn~!.21 m~y not 0o{il f&!'ir"-d;.f.CM~i wi'!r·i1~1~~ ( 
.,·~.; ........ n ....... ~ ..... f.,,,, ,.,. '"'·' ,.. "'" .... , . .,1., • .,,.'" •.t ,~. i~ .t.:i:-. ..,, ·r~3 • .. • " ,,. 1 ... :.,. i:r•ytj 1-~-;:•~·c · ... l\l ,. t.r,!·i:: 1 ... ~. v N • •• •,1,,. .. ti ....... .,, . ...... 1 ,rt, Hf.·,.t11H l" W.it1 "1·~·1i11 ·1A1 .,JrJ :hr. :~"•"·~t1·V;r.; •• .,..J ._1,..fl rrf1t,h ·~ J,.f •• ~ .. ~'" i) ·;,.'"!"~:.. t \ ;_., e~~,,~ 'r 11.P • i,lf"· ., .. j r f-.c.i.. ~1':.. \,, ,,u:,, ,.,.'l ,p\;- ., • .. 1tJ;~ t~.v. ·~·11,~· f..,i·~ ... ~~·Uu 11 t 

U.11m1u1U;1;wf·vt.d pe.n<WFI~ )!J'; 1:~r\.~ MMitJ:r1. 
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Exhibits 

1. Complaint document , Letter from Attornery 
2 . Memorandum of Activity, Int erview of 
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5. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

dated March 30, 2012. 
date June 4, 2012. 

ated August 1, 2012. 
dated September 12, 2012. 
dated September 12, 2012. 

r· :;;i;;f.f:"i~;~:;~'. ~:,!· ;~# ~~~~;~~~r!l·~t.~:.;:;.:~:;; ~·i;a: .. i,;.~~~-,~;.:1.;· ,;1; ~i~1~ 6it~i~G .. c.~ ·f:;;.·~~;f,;~iui~t.i.~r~ ·j: r~@;·,,,;-r; ·;D1Wi~-=~ -t,(;;,~ :1?;:1;,;,;;~~.i,t~,· ·---_ ........... .. . 
I ·:.~\.!:.l~ '!!:tai. ~t 01':W1..>tfrl:!li flfl.~~~{iii;~ ~"h"f ~nifor.i:~·!Y'",.,~1 !·r1~~:1iT!'i~~k1~' ·)l'J.l.1. j#~ ~:CJ'Jter.(t-: n~;,y !~·::i~ bill i"':\Pli:l<lm.;,~li wfrn··)r .. t. l 
: ~W~lt'SI~~ ~1m·mafl1Jti(m la ::t~::~1>H'>i<!w;~ ''N~th .') ~.1.~l.C. 2 l;..5;•. nt~!" r.<.Q !'i"l.W~ 1.~$ y:·!~lf'- C(-'f~CJ.IK \ iSE C\':ti.Y ~!fl~~ lttJ '1.t~:Jt:k·~~lil'O ' 
: t.cr. ~t. mwUmrt;i-:1wl. p.P:~'.:1':'$ ~~ ,prQ·h!hl~·~·d, 1 
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Office of the Inspector General 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Report of Investigation 

Case Title: 
(Treasury Employee) 

Assault 

Investigation Initiated: April 23, 2013 

Investigation Completed: JUN 2 4 2013 

Origin : Bureau of Engraving and Printing 

Case#: BEP-1 3-1 243-1 

Summary 

Case Type: Criminal 
Administrative x 
Civil 

Conducted by: 
Special Agent 

Approved by: John L. Phillips 
Special Agent In Charge 

On April 23, 201 3, the Department of the Treasury, Office of Inspector General Office of 
Investigations {TOIG), was contacted regarding t he complaint of Bureau of 
Engraving and Printing (BEP), who reported to BEP Police that as waving a knife at 
her and that he pinched her cheek while exiting an elevator in BEP Headquarters. (Exhibit 1) 

On April 18, 201 3, was on elevator # 1 B at BEP with a pocket knif~o ened 
cleaning his fingernails when the elevator doors opened on the second floor and 
entered the elevator. -engaged-in conversation with the pocket knife open. A er 
~omrnented about her being fearful of the knife, ~losed the knife and continued 
engagmg in conversation. On the third floor, upon exiting the elavator,-pinched~ 
left cheek. Numerous interviews of BEP employees and viewing the security video did not 
substantiate the assault allegations. 

On /\pt.'il 24. 20'\ 3, TOIG rnr.;eiv~d a cr;py of tho vicfr10 surveii!:.:i n1~.e (r::im SEP f)oiiG•~ f.>f the 
incklerri, 

f"°:fti.i~; ~~:~; r;1);;"~ .. (;t,·~:.r;;;;~;~f, ig;1(;~r;·/i;· ~~r:r ii~;-p~rtji· ~;f iil;;~]i{j ;-i~~ ~;i lr.:1~·~ ~~t~~~;~ni~ ~·:7~:;~~;;i·:~; ~~1 ft!·1~ ··;:;i t.~t.(.~~;·1~~ p~~;i;i i . -..... -···· -· ..... ~ 
·~ G.¢mi,m1. Jt et.>n~ir.:ff ~en~mve. l~~f 0nrorceni'it·'1t i1•(o~·;:n.lit~1:i~' f..\f'J~ ;1Js -c-.:.·ntt1r~~~ 1.~;'.if1i h·tJ•t btt. l'\'?).trQdur..~~! wHl!-r~riJ( ( 

! w•R~P-.1'.1 p~rr~is~ki.-. i11 att:brda,-s•!.o Wllfl 7 fJ.$ .C. q ~51. "!f'1>~ r1"~0it. !•& F(ifl OfP-'~iA1_ U~E ONt ¥ c.'it}d ~ tU&~i·::,su~ ; 

L~?-: ! ~~.i.~i:!!~.'.?J.Y~'.t~~P.~~~:~~~ .. !.~.P~~~:~.~!!~!:~~~ .... . "" "'·-··-··· .. -..... ... . " ...... ..... ....... ·-·· .. .......... ···-·"-... _. -- ··-.. - ·-· ___ ,,, . " ... ··-... -... -.". . .... ' -· . ..J 
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~asis and Scope of the lnvestigation 

On April 23, 2013, TOIG was notified by BEP Police of an incident reported to them by -
--reported that - was waving a knife at her in a SEP elevator an-;r-
~~ek as he exited the elevator. · 

During the course of the investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 
• Complainant, Information Systems Specialist, BEP 
• Chief, Office of Enterprise Solutions, BEP 
• Deputy Director, BEP 
• reduction Manager, BEP 
• Specialist, BEP 
• Inspector, BEP 
• xecutive Assistant, BEP 

!n addition, TO~G :-o-viewed pertinent documents, including : 
• BEP Police incident report, dated Apr il 18, 2013. 

Investigative Activi~ 

On April 30, 2013, TOIG interviewed 
reference to her complaint of harassment by 

Information Systems Specialist, BEP in 

~rovided the fol.lowing information in substance and in part: 

-said that she has been employed at BEP since September Z005 in the Chief Information 
Officer's Office as an Information Systems $pecialist (GS-14) . She said that she works on the 
BEP Enterprise contract with - She said that- is a GS~15 and~ 40 vear employee of 
BEP, 

A.or;r(.rxim~~·..r~!-y· .~.\ ·1(11:"1~· (J.g;.1 7;::,'1iid ~t:rr :.i;he I' t:.pnnn;::l n:;. hrl'.~t ~.11.wer .. •\!1:~.'"· ~~>\"'IJJt Jin 
mnail stie recelvmi :rorn at .E:ald "Kl~4 .. S my feet"' tn r::~ ':J.pm~~~'-* w an ~rn'.)il .S \-Jn t ·;:t1 

- s;Jid her emai . rns~on~ot) .~m.~ 1Nf~rf';d a ~fl)Ctn ~:'.n ~bour~i~~Jil!~m: :.iatit <~o.d aboc.11: :)r1 

1nc1derit ·v\ihare st.w::k lw; rruc:!dli7 t mgr;,,r ~1ot '1t n~ l."nde ~h~. - <md anotrisr ~mr!o~,;e~ 
. • • ·;:1 , .. "'t·•·l··v·, , . . ...... ,..,. , ... , .... , ,., ,, .. , . .. - -·~! .. 1 ·i·ti···· '1·,., .... , . '" ''" f<. '"'("·(" .~ ,.···~ (. .. .. ~·· r1· ·u ,.., .. ,r ... ,~, .• Vr ,;U .~ · ;t•4 ',i r. ... ;r ·~:.J ,.P#c1 .;, ._ ..,,;." ~"'~ " -.0: 1, ,J ~'*.:.11., ~,I i .. 'J( t.~ . .:.. ~ . .... J ~• fr•t'.1:,~.\ U' '\•'· ~.~~of..o\ .. '.t n.':°»J •. (~ .... ~: _,iJ . .. .. ~~i 

;1·""·r~1;,~·r.;.;p;,~;;,,~~iTr;~;·;.\;;frij;;,~:~;,;n ;~ th-0 int;'~>t1ify· (>t thfll (;~il·i~;· ~;, 1.(!~re~~~t~~~;:;·;·;··rj°~~·;a-:;~·~·~,jtt~~~ "!.:·~7t.i;-w-·:;;'*;i·~t~~;,~:· ............ · ·-·; 
. l.:i l)tm:·;fi.. Jt ~:...r;.nt:J.h1.$ 1;0\i.~if~1,·~~ !:i!w fi·~f,·.trr;emEr~~t hif<.H1~1snhi11 m;d 11'5 Ct,,~·:timt.I!\ rna).r nr.11: t:fl! !'ol'!f.itr..d1;,~:1uj wrth"l~t. 
·
1 

'MHt~rn i-:it.!tt~~~skm 1~~ ~e~~ttd•u~t;!'~ wlHt :5 \J.:~ ,t:;, ~ tM'~J. .. lhls rn·r.101~ is .rf.)F! -:J.fl~1c; .!l,t USE ONJ:...'( ;.u:,d ~1i~ d'i1J.•'.::.(.J•~vr .. ~rr.1 i 
1 1.-.:. i.tm:1uth1)< r.r.~J ~~¥~·~?ti! j.s m11:1fhlt~·J. ! .. -...... _ .,. .. ____ . .... .. ... ,, .. ......._ ....... -... --......... --....... _ ,,.. .. , . .., __ . ., ... ... ........ - ... . ·- ··-···-·· .. .,- - ___ , . _ ,. ___ , ....... .. .. ,,, ____ -· -·-·-.... .. ------... -................ -----~---·--··---·-( 
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finger without the third employee seeing it. -said she has tried to avoid-since this 
time. 

- said that on March 18, 2013 she went to the cafeteria for breakfast. As she was 
returning from the cafeteria, was waiting for the elevator on the 2nd floor and the 
elevator door~· She sa1 was al ready on the elevator by himself when she entered 
the elevator. -said that had an open pocket knife and she debated whether to get 
on the elevator but decided to do it because it would have been too obvious not to get on the 
elev~ said that she tofd'9that she was "a little ared of the · e'', She said 
that~d the pocket knife up, but did not put it away. asked "who is 
going to be your buddy?" referring to a co-worker bein t ransferred. said she felt 
intimidated because he changes moods so fast. sai the door~ on the 3rd floor 
and-..,as leaving the elevator when he pinched s cheek. -said that-
did not say anything as he pinched her cheek and left the elevator. 

-said that she reported the incident to her supervisor, ..... later in the day ~fter she 
went back to the elevator to see if there w security cameras. She asked if she could 
get a copy of the elevator security tape. said that she was told that (~ 
manager), the Labor Relations Mana er and e Human ResOl~anager were going 
to meet and discuss what to do. told her that-has no violent 
history and "pretty sure he won't do harm to her." was told that they were going to put 
the 1 O~foot rule in effect (saying that neither party could come within ·10 feet of the other}. 

-said thatllllllspoke to- an said he ~ ~o come apologize to 
her. She didn't want to be alone with him. said that -came to her cube and said, 
"I'm sorry if today's event upset you, wasn' my intent. I apologize."-said she felt no 
sincerity or remorse. 

- said that she felt like nothing was going to be done so she went to the BEP Police and 
asked for the security tape. She filed a report with Officer who told her that 

w asn't supposed to have the knife on BEP ro erty. T~ morning (Friday)-
told that she had f!led a police report. aid tha- already knew because . 

had his BEP pass red-lined ~suspended) . her that management was meeting 
ay to figurt:J 01.rr. how ·w handfe ;.ha slt•;~tion. s~nt an errn.~i! tc4i11111 ab~·.;t br.:•,fr;q 

f1.:~;.lrfii) unJ h~,;; ~!'.Hd :.:i rr."p,;·nr::- '1Nod 1) i:Jl.l r:.rov'i::ktd i't1 hat .:ind shfi1 w::Ul tv.:1kJ to t~::iev:.i o.d< for i:hF.:l »s~.r,: !: 

',JV(~f~k.. -s~:iid ~hat MH~ V11<·W ~hi.:t::: ~o.d w r•.f.lal -on -~ .. ~1.mft+.n'l-flf.~(1 ·t:::.~u ... :m Tl,•:1Sd:~v 1Nht.~JI 
.~he ca1~Sh1..-t said o ust 1)! ·1 h~ 'i G-f:Jr)t r\.tl~ -sa~d ·that- t i ,_.d .co to~·.:i<.:M1 f·c;r·~·1~~ in i::; ;~·.1ia-:\r 
., .,. ~y : ,..,., ... . n~ r_,, · ~~ "v i~ · l 'l-.. •. ,.,,r ,l t 1• ,.. ... t ""r" { (!~ ·· ~~ ; f•i·" ·1·. i h ·; I., · .. .. ~,,. .. ,, . .. .,t . oc,, 1 11 \\1 . ..... \ Jt ·1~ •••• .. " "' '-~ ··· . ... . _t,; .. .r: ,,, .... \ . .i:.1 

On May 8 ,. ?.01 :~ . TOIG h-1tcn1iewe~. - h<J:-> bi;-H.m-·~ aup{1rvi::;:c\ i-•·;f t h~1 
tmit ~Jll' .. 'l~;~ 1/ t~::ts:.~ i i~ -cr-.~3 O!fa'..~ o~ f~:it<~ rrid~e Soh itions. 

:.· ~;···i ;~~-·~ft;.9;, ~1:'t'{rf: !; ; ~;t~::-tf'1 ~ii:i~;~f· ~;; ·\:~:t'.f-~:~l~;~;·'-~tt· ~·rt·!~i~ ··;:::;;,t~i~·;;·;,;r;.·,~.\;~~~iu·;t,i;.;;~: ·:r·;:;;~·;z;.-;·); ·;){ii;::; of· th~-i-i1~1·;;,;";; ;:1 ;; · · ·-· · ··-· · · - ·· 
l Gim-i:a~~f !t ~f1n"·~!·1V; $0fil)!ll:ltiv11· i..w tHi~•:1r1:~Hi<ff.,nt. 'n'or~1t.'l~tk1.r, mi\l it!t ,~,)~~tcr,;t.r. m'A'f n:t\l b~ .tf.J.p !.i ·r~~:.'.':~J wrth1.w~ 
:' ?1t!l:t.tJn J~ 4Jr.:ml l'i:tt!•;~f~ If» i:t<;·c~m.f~1~r;t• w1~:h 5 U,S, (~ .• fi t~ i;·t. TM~ i'ol;~~•.rt 19 Fi;..'lfl OFHCtAL LlS£:: OM.Y 1~ r1d it~ 6it..c:.fp.;s;.u·.:;i: 
! tc.i Vf~~\1tl1(1dl"i-w perH~t!<'S i'.s cm:sr.lt1i~i.!ti. 
~ •-•• ·- - • •- -··•• '"' •• • • · --~·-U·--·-- -- "' • •0 .. 0_..._.,_ .,••••••J•-·-••- .. •.-.- - ·--- -·- •- •-· '' ' ''" ••-••- •• ...... ·- >• - ·- - - - · - - -• .. •- • t ·-·· • • .. - -• ,.. .. ,. _ • J o • •--•••• ,.,_,.,_ 
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-aid that he found out about the incident In question on T~~rsday, April 18, 2013 ... 
said that -came into his office at 10: 1 ~o tell him about the Incident and asked him if 
she was overreacting. ~old him that -had a knife out, waving it." She felt like he 
w as waving it at her~ She ·told him that she though~t not gettin~o the elevator, 
but got in anyway. ~aid that - told him that- s~e~ how'~ing?" 

responded by saying, ''frankly pretty scared right now". -explained to-that 
inched her cheek and s · " erything will be alright" as he was walking out the 

elevator door. -said that lso brought up an incident about - giving her the 
middle finger about a year ago, that had never heard before. 

~aid that in approximately March 2012, -brought to his ~ion that ~sed 
ina~i~te language, but had never heard the middle finger story. - said that he spoke 
to ~bout the inappropriate language and t old him that it was not appropriate. 

-said that-had never mentioned anything to him o,.about her being 
uncomfortable a~r working with ysaid that is a good performer and 
has no disciplinary issues. ~aid that seems to have a otal distrust" of 
management/government and feels like this w1 be swept under the rug. That is why she asked 
to get a copy of the security video tape. 

- said that because of the incident, both-and - have been issued a stay away 
order. llllllllmust call in to meetings that both are scheduled to attend, and~as been 
teleworking more frequently. -said that if there were a violation of the stay awa order, it 
is to be reported to Human Aesourc~e stay away order (10 foot rule) says that nd 

are not to have interaction. - said that there was a miscommunication by 
supervisor) on one occasion, where -attended a meeting in person whe . 

was thought to be teleworking. When she teleconferenced in to the meetlng,~as 
present. ~as upset because was supposed to call in to all meetings where -
"could" be present. ~xplained that would not have known whether or not she 
would be present at the meeting. a1 t at it ' s been corrected so that-must call in 
to all meetings where Shiang and re to participate. 

irnrnediateiy after-was told of the elevator tncident, Human Resour~es was Gaffed nnd tha 
•,;;Oi"'n<'"' ! -·,t:,.1·1•\•" T0 ""m m"·•· .u .. t·"'t;' ·t ~;,,.·t ·r '"', .. .,. -~#'!~·err,,; ')"""' t~ ..... t·1·~t-'1·r.-. 'A/c•s " .. '(. '.JI \ U , .1'V r~ "~l., ~ •.. \ 'J~.f t r'l:.f(.t q...,7 .. t •. ~· . •.. 0

, 1 q, ~ .. ',•y.(;t,,'J ,.$..,d1 ••··~ 0.}yjf . t;".,i'-~ • .,l l!f:f'. .. t .. r ,;,i \P1 f.'A<t .~J 

i«idic;;~dor., Ul: l"i!~k. l}'f Vifi'h:-nG!.i:' •. c·~ . 

.6i~id frr-;·1~a.:!l ;·~:;:kt~(~ fof rHrrJir.::-r:wt~<:m t1) br!nM rm:tc~>. o:J'!i1·~'. h~r l'"~l",:; H%• b.J''idi:r.·}1. 
St:tid ~h~t h~ fi~~ H~! f.::,::d !.(; Bf;,~; r'·O!i~:s al'\d '.".t\ ~y. ~{~hf hi rn th''~ l: lt. ;;;W'; i.~t~ 0 f. l'l tl Gr'. i ed, h1.11. ~ /ii?:~I 

·Noul preft-;t' t hJt it net be .;1t.<thmiz~:.cf. - said - has noi. t1rought the iss~e ot ;rt;;tC<t up 
~Jga in . '93aid th.~: ~~ ~f',Jioves that the e':'p!oyaes are author{zed tt1 brin~, ft ~nifo int~. BEP 
;;,;;; h:mn m~ :t 1s ;;mrhn ~:{. m c; n tt1 !lJnft - 1lllll~rn1d tt·!rJ~~J'.110:w::.• l.~~~:cs .:f hnl''f1 h~ d\-i. ~\n l"', ~t-. 
iirl1J!~f n.:.~ t~·.~ .. o:;xh1b,it ::~ ': 

-··-- -•• • • •-••«-• •< •••'"-""""" oA,,.<O>,•«•«"« ' U•« ""-' --.. •-«••••••-••-••••"••>«, '' ••-•••• , , "'• - ••< 0. «••"-·•••• ... _,,_>•••o•w-•>o••••- _, '"" ••• ••• •" '"'"' • ••• -'.•• «•• ••••• '""'-" ••' ""! 

TM~ P~.(\~~·t' M .~~~vll).~u.aat1~·n ~<;lo r.l:f.13 l~ifo;:;~;rty of t.b.1 Cil.'1'1f. t• 1;,f ~i1N<1.,~l'~"&1~ini.w, · ~ n-11a-e.U"r:r 1.:.mfo.~ ·u? t~'r.il 1~:1sr.1t.tr,~t1~11 r 
<Jene.r.!t H .::,:mt.-.~ns '"''°~·'»ltlv~ ~.'fJ.w m·.1-::~r;:;f!ff'l~r,.~ in1'1,mri;i,t\~1l. lWti ih;. c1:-nf.w;1~e .v-~~)!' not. b~ mf)r.1~~w.;;,1i, ':NiW1.1•.:t \ 
.v.dt1.~11 pi:n'm!s.~k~?> i~~ «!1~~:~:r.rtanc·i1 w/tft !ii ~J.2,).::' .. ~ ~5.i. n<I~ rn.~lloti ht. ~f.H~ <Wf~~:iAl. USt.: ONtY ;;'!r.111. lt1~ t.Ht<.id ... .,i':IJro i·' 

~.~ :·~.l?:.U.!.~!?!.~~~~~.}:.~~?..~~~}!:l'.t.~~k!.~~-l.t.!f:.~~: .. ·- .... ' .................... .. _,, ·- ·· - -· ··-- .. .... " ........................... -.. .... , ............... __ .... ·-·· ...... .. ..... - -· ···· --- ~ 
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On ,May 8, 2013, TOJG interviewed .llllllt~ immediate supervisor. · 
-has been -s supervisor for the last four months, but has known him for 10 years. 

-aid that ~ut about the incident in question on Thursday, April 18, 2013,' via a 
phone call from --. ~ t-s office and told him the story about_ 
waving a pen knife and pine~ c ee . msaid that after hearing the s~ 
.. he called .. to his office and asked him what happened. said that ~old 
him that he had gotten on the elevator and was cleaning his naifs w en ot on the 
elevator. - said they were talking and when he got off the elevato pmch~r cheek. 
~aidtlieY'were talking about a colleague that was transferring. told .. that 
pmching he k was inappropriate and not to do it again. When asked about he knife, -
stated that has brought it in numerous times and that BEP Police say it f aJI~ within 
guidelines. told- not to bring the knife back in and was told to apologize t~ 
which h!il did. 

lllllasaid the next morning, - called him and told him that he was red~lined {not allowed in 
~-said that he me~wit egal, Labor Management Relations {LMR), Security and 
-· It was decided that stay home that day (Friday) and be allowed to come back 
on Mondey. - said that over t e week.end ~ecame more concerned about incident 
and being in the building with-. -said that on Monday morning he met again with 
LMR and legal and discussed options on what they could do. It was decided to·· lement the 
"10 foot rule" which means they are not to have any contact with each other. said that 
so far ,- worked from home for a week and no~ has been sent to Texas for a week 
whictl'is part of his tesponsibility. -said that there was some miscommunication about a 
meeting last week where both were to participate. ~as upset that-was present at 
a meeting that she called into. It has been decided that- will call in to all meetings that 

9111awm be a part of, whether in person or telephonically. 

-described -as never being violent in the 1 O!iar~ that he has known him rncluding 
daii'.Y""contact he ~ad· wit~. the 1ast 3 y~ars: . has never been disciplined. as far as 
he 1s aware. He said - ts quirk an strnng in his opin ons and when Is passtonate 
about somethin.g he. is outspoken. never ~sas~ language tha has ~ea.rd and 
does not consider him a threat. s cons ider-to he stubborn. .. said that 
tllllllhas '1e1,;er said anything ,;.)bout and that they iiVrJrk weir together. asn ' i: 
seen evl11ence' o·r-beln~ tltouchy/ feely" w;th ,..,.ny runpk'·r·ee.s. {ExhibH .~ } .. , '"'"'""'" 0- S I ·(,· , .. , ... ~ .. , . JI 

-

\~::<1",~ ·r'~"'t 1.,,,., :1.1 .~ .... ,,,.,,,,, ... ,.,. ~·•"'l'•'.t·· .. 1 .. ,, .. ~ ,_,,·t· qt::~) ,,. .... r.d 1 .:1. ~•"1 .. ::.1•,;·t i·"·"'' ~-~·"·"'\"~s1·nce .•. i.t"'" . .... ,,,'\-I "f'""" , .,_/, / , tfJ .l11Jl 'VlJlo,1' <': • .1t-.~t1~~~.,.~: ....... (.,. ,,. # .... k'I .,,,,, •. :, :7" ' .. .,~ •• ~6' ti•,,,,. 1f1.?;;J ~"!'i.·11o • . ,,.., , , .._.. :i7 • ·Q~ 

time. He. s~1es hirri ai"l"'!c$i: driiiy for ~offet~ ~n tha rrimnklg eimi -~ee$ hirn tn.itsido of ;ivc•rk t1NrJ 

t.fmef; « YN'lr for h~fafay p~rt1~& *·~~xi fo:;H<t~t. 
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-said that ~as never been violent. -s very knowledgeable of BEP. He is 
well received, has never threatened anybody and is willing to do anything to make it better . 

.-iasaid that -is a great guy, he umpires little lea~ames and has taken mediation 
classes to be a med~for the U.S. Government. He said- is opinionated and strong 
minded and will call "BS" depending on the audience, but never uses profanity. He gets along 
w ith 99% of the people at SEP. He said-is "touchy/fee~ever in an inappropriate 
way. People still respect him even though he is opinionated. - said that back in the 
1970s or 1980s, BEP was doing an audit of time cards and they found that they actually owed 
Wiii money. - said he is one of the most honest guys that he knows. 

- said that- has never spoken about- and is "disillusioned by the whole 
thing" (incident). 

-feels that everything was fine until-s partner was transferred and all the 
responsibility fell on her and she can't do the job and is trying to make excuses.-said 
that it is his opinion that- is asking too much with respect to the restrictions being put on -
When asked about the knife,- said thatllllll has a habit of cleaning his nails with 
anything he can. He said it's a habit of printers . He has his knife to clean his nails and that is 
the only reason he has a knife. (Exhibit 5) 

On May 8, 2013, TOIG interviewed apeero~s. 

-aid that she has been employed at BEP since 1998 and has known-ince 
approximately 2006. She works on the same project as-

-aid that the morning of the elevator incidenh_- came to her appearing very shaken 
up. When sked her what was going on, -tOld her what happened on the elevator 
and asked f she would come with her to try to get t he security video tape from the BEP 
Police. 

~aid that she has had only one meeting with - since she has worked at BEP and didn't 
~ him until they worked on the same project. She said - is very arrogant and bossy. 
She said that has never talked to- and~er talks to her.W said that'-
told her about "middle finger" incident and h~always uses profanity, but she has 
never seen or heard it directly. · 

- said that she was asked on Friday morning, April 19, 2013, to go take - s computer 
and then in the afternoon she gave it back. She was concerned that- would retaliate 
against her, but she said her manager told her if - retaliates, to notify him. aid that 
she is concerned that - will retaliate against her for going to the police wit . -

This Report of Investigation Is the property of the Office of lnvest.lgatlon, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
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said that the only people that know she went with-to the Police are W119 
(supervisor) and Officer- (Exhibit 6) 

On May 17, 2013, TOIG requested information from SEP, Employee and Labor-Management 
Relations Division, on any/all disciplinary action related t~ 

Employee and Labor Relations Specialist, BEP, responded via email stating 
that there is no disciplinary information related to (Exhibit 7) 

On May 22, 2013, TOIG interviewed He has been employed at BEP for 
approximately 39 years and has kno for approximately 2 or 3 years, from working on 
the same project. -said tha is t e Information Tech~ Lead and he is the 
Business Lead for the Data Management Module (OMM) project. - said that they would see 
each other every day when they worked on the same project for approximately 1 % years and 
then approximately 2 or 3 times a week after they finished the project. 

- said that on the morning of the incident referenced in ~he was riding the 
elevator up to his office when the elevator door opened and -got on the elevator. 
- said he already had his pocket knife out cleaning his n~cause he had b-n ardening 
the night before and was trying to get the dirt out of them. -said that when got on 
the elevator he was commenting to her about the other Business Lead on the DMM project, 

, being transferred to Texas. -said he was expressing his concern to 
explaining that he knew that there was more of a need to help her out on the project 

because of -s departure. -explained that, as a whole, the line workers do not trust 
IT because ~el that IT does not know what they need and doesn't understand the business 
workings of the Bureau. - explained that he believes IT needs an ally on the business side 
of the house, and that is what he was trying to relay to ---admitted that he is very 
animated when he talks and tends to "talk with his hand7_-saT'd that he does not 
remember what said to him on the elevator, but knows that he put the knife blade down 
at some point. said that he doesn't remember all the details of the incident because the 
incident on the elevator was a non-event in his mind and didn't think t wice about what he did, 
because he was trying to comfor-

• 
said that he "tweaked '._s cheek as he left t he elevator, but it was like a "Paternal 

ee tweak" or like a she wa~e sister type thing. - said he was trying to comfort 
- "kind of like, it will be OK". He said he had no intention of causing her fear or to feel 
~ortable. He said the way she took it was 180 degrees different than what he was trying 
to relay to her. 

tlltaid that-.Deputy Director, asked him about the incident later in the day and it 
was recommen~ go apologize to - - aid that he w ent up to s 
Office and peeked around the corner to apologi~ rea 1ze she was on the phone. 

This Report of Investigation Is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
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said that when hung up the phone, he went back and apologized and said something to the 
effect that in no way, shape, or form was he trying to make her feel uncomfortable. 

-said that he,- and-used to work together very regularly. He said 
~ey have all travelled toget~t they had a trusting working relationship. 
- said tha as never mentioned not wanting to work together or that she was 
afraid of- aid that he never had the feeling that she was afraid of him. 

-said that his personality is that he talks with his hands and will sometimes put his arm 
around someone's shoulder to convey friendship or understanding. He will sometimes shake 
hands with somebody and~rab their arm as well. He said he tends to do this more with 
males than with females. -said that there was nothing specifically said during the cheek 
tweak, and stated that he was trying to relay his concern, not about the project, but his concern 
for her ability to carry out the project . 

• 
s~ has carried a knife since he was a kid and the habit was passed down by his 
-knew about the BEP guidelines referencing pocket knives and was told that the 

pocket knife he carried met the guidelines . He said the pocket knife he was cleaning his 
fingernails with during the incident was a leatherman brand knife that he removes to open boxes 
and perform his daily functions. -said he was never questioned about the knife whenever 
he came in to the building because it was within guidelines. ~aid that he will never carry 
a knife to work anymore. 

~aid that he is opinionated and "doesn't suffer fools easily". He does not consider 
himself viol nt. He said he can be free with his speech, but he considers his audience before 
speaking. said that if he has ever used vulgar language in front of- it would've 
been a slip. said that-is a "nice lady" and they had a very good working 
relationship. He said he has nothing against her and he is sorry for having offended her. -
said that he feels bad because he knows what was in his heart and mind and it w asn't to make 
her feel bad. He said that he will not approach her at all . (Exhibit 8) 

Referrals 

None 

Judicial Action 

None 
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Findings 

Investigation determined the allegations of assault could not be substantia~ed, although, 
improper behavior, relating to the pinching of Shiang's cheek, was substantiated. 

By definition, assault is described as any willful attempt or threat to inflict injury upon the 
person or another, when coupled with an apparent present ability to do so, and any intentional 
display of force such as would give the victim reason to fear or expect immediate bodily harm 
without legal excuse of justification. Based on investigation, there is no indication that there 
was a willful attempt or threat to inflict injury upon Shiang. 

Based on the findings of our investigation, it appears that the following pertinent statute(s), 
regulation(s) and/or policy(ies) were violated or could be applied to the case: 

• 5 C.F.R. 735.203, Conduct prejudicial to the Government 

Distribution 

- Manager, Security Investigations Division, Office of Security, BEP. 
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Exhibits 

1. Complaint document, BEP Police Report, dated A 
2. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
3 . Memorandum of Activity, Interview o 
4. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
5. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
6. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
7. Memorandum of Activity, Email fro 
8. Memorandum of Activity, Interview 

8, 2013. 
dated April 30, 2013, 

ted May 8, 2013. 
, dated May 8, 2013. 

dated May 8, 2013. 
ted May 8, 2013. 

dated May 17, 2013. 
, dated May 22, 2013. 

r-······ .. ·--··-·- ................ ---· " ...... ........ _. ,., ___ ,, .............. ~ .............. - ........ _ ··--.... -.............................. ~ ·-......... - ...... -._ .. - ...... ,. ....... -·- .......................... i 
I 'i."hlill t:t~~rmrt ~Jf f.d'~'! i f,K~~i9,ol\.f.fmi l~:t ~iMl ~l'W/~Wf.'.'I' ~):~~I.ti' C'lr,Ji!;f/, ;'},f (\~':f~~'.t'-f,;)(t;~l~. ~ 'f1!'1[1;:)fJ!.U)f' ~:Ht~~·.~ •.rf ~i11il rt~.\)it~!;tm• I 
! (;;fimm;;~, ;t i:.wnr11.lna a1m'/ittf.\1.'! ~-Yl:;lii 1!!fl~i·::t;m~~::f.. ~~'ft:mr..«lific-~n :i;:~d !l~ 0c~:mtnn1<1-. im~y ~ttt\. ::;..,., nmr·r.1~·h~r:.o~ wiUP.i:a.·~ ; 
; ~l.,ldifr:1(' pctn:tt~tsl.\l~m fr• 11.1":1:,mfa~'';~ "!'#Ni~ t. iJ,s3.:;;, n 5~:t.. rM~ \'i~ff'~"f. I~ f 'C:'f?. ornc~f~t l:'~f: ::.v.a. .. Y ii;ari i~t. i~rt.1t~~1'.l\'..~·.r.~· ; 

i_ t_~--~~~-!~~i~~~.2!.:l.~~--P:!~~~~r,1_'!'.}_~_ .P!.~~~!:~!1.~~!: ..... ··--.. - ..... _ ............ _ ............ ----·- ....... __ ,, . _____ , .......................................... -·-·-·· ... , _ ...... .J 



REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 
D0- 12-0526-I 

j .. 

t I· 
j · Office of Inspector Gene:r.«a1 1·' ! . 
f 
! ~ ....... -·-··-'······---·· ·-~ .... .. ~ ...... .... _,_,, ............. ,.- ........... _ .. _ .. · ·-·"""""~ ............ ........ ,_,_··-···-·-··-·-.. --... ., .................... . __ .............. ---... ·-··-....... 1 

i ; t 
j! U:td . t ed St:n. ti.?.~:i De:pa:r.:· t.J;leJ.tt <.>.e t:.h.e 1~J'.'.'eaau.1:·y 1 · 



Office of the Inspector General 
U.S. Department of the Treasury 

Report of Investigation 

Case Title: Case#: D0-1 2~0526~1 
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Investigation Initiated: January 6, 2012 

Criminal 
Administrative _x_ 
Civil 

Investigation Completed: 

Origin: , Director, Office of 
Security Programs 

Summary 

APR 0 2 20¢bnducted by: Gina Buchanan 
Special Agent 

Approved by: John L. Phillips 
Special Agent In Charge 

On January 3, 2012, the Treasury, Office of Inspector General, Office of Investigations (TOIG), was 
advised by the Treasury Office of Security Programs, Departmental Offices, of an allegation of 
mishandling and improper dis~losure of a "Secref' classified document. 

~tion stems from an incident which occurred in September 2011, in which 
~reasury Executive Office of Asset Forfeiture (TEOAF). allegedly shared a "Secret• 
classified document with a subordinate and then subsequently referred to that document in a meeting 
that same day with other non-authorized personnel present. 

Upon being served with two notic~tential security violations for these occurances, a third 
vroiation was discovered in which ~id not properly secure an unrelated "Secref' classified 
document. · 

Our investigation determined the initial allegations t.o be unsubstantiated. The separate inddent, 
which occurred 1:>r? ~tam:ary 3, 2012., was substantlat1;to . 

• • .... ~ ........ ........ _ .. , ....... .,. • ..,. .. . , ........................ ... ................ ... - .............. - . . ... ,. .. . ..... . . 4 ......... .. _ • •• • ,_,. , ............ ! .. ... . "'"'·-· .......... - ..... ..... ,. ... . _ .,_'""" "''"'"''" ~---......... . , .... .... . ........ ..... ,.., •••• •• - •••• • ··-·· .. ·-1 I r M-u 'i-'flll!'X··r-t ·1~f 11.~ ~·.,$tig;;-~f>n~ fo. ~f~~; r.n·op\1i;r°':JY ~'!' U~fll icm1~~ -.,f fn\·<~ti{iJ1~l1111., trN:nm~· :.:,flit,~;,~ ~:r1 ~~r.t :·Mtµt11GtN~>' I 
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Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

On January 3, 2012, this investigation was initiated based on in~ received from 
Director, Departmenal Office (00),0ffice of Security Programs.-rovided information regarding 
an allegation made to his office regarding Improper disclosure of "Secret" classified documentation. 

During the course of the investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 
• TEO AF , 
• Program Analyst, TEOAF 
• Director, Strategic Policy Office of Terrorist Financing and Financial Crimes 
• Assistant Director, Strategic Policy Office of Terrorist Financing and Financial 

• 
• 
• 

Program Analyst, TEOAF 
Director, Office of Security Programs 

upervisory Program Analyst, TEOAF 

In addition, TO!G raviswed pertinent documents, including: 
• Notice of potential security violations issued by the Treasury Office of Security Programs. 
• TEOAF Office Calendar. 

Investigative Activity 

On January 3, 2012-and- Director aiiiiiinlnvesti ator DO, Office of 
Security !!!:2atams, ~he so~egation was Program Analyst , 
TEOAF. -reported the allegation several months tater due to 1s a·ck of knowledge on reporting 
requirements. (Exhibit 1) 

~tated that an additional violation was issued ~n January 3, 2012, due to the recovery 
of unrelated "Secref' classified documentation from~esk when asked to provide the "Secret" 
classified document allegedly referred to during a meeting. ~rovided a summary of corrective 
action taken including counseling and installation of an addilroii81Safe in.'s office. Upon 
advising TOIG of the situation, DO ceased any further corrective action. 'hi it 2) 

On January 10, 2012, was interviewed by TOIG. - reported that prior to a meeting 
~ptember 29, 201 , "nstructecmll to review a document that was classified usecret". 
-advised~ e did not posse$S a dearance ~o which ~dvised that as 
r.eing granted o~di.d a$ ifistn1t;:;ted ;;md if.>.Vlewed the docu~cordin.g t later .::.i-i 
the satne date .. duling a rr.eetJrig !nvofvirig ~·ne.rr1bms of TE OAF t-lnd the Str.at.aglc P~:>U'l!y ice of 
Terrotist flnandng :arw f~'lnat:c~~j ~~!~"J!;~~~:~.P?,Tr~C)-refe~J~~ t~l thtfl. d°':~m,~~n~.t~ '~~,~~~. -:· As- t J1r~c.:.k .. , .~1 O ~. , <.11, ,.,,J.estron.ed"ihe"Cleamrn:,e !~ ~~ •. dr11rdu.i.l.S 1h .te 
~as physical handitng of the document in question. -responded that 
e~ery~~ .. e in_ t_Me, r.oo~ had the .Pro~~r .;iear~~~;e H~ ·:~also mumbled an. incoherent statement 
re.e.n,1~ to tJ,e tmys1.c:.aJ h'lndfmg ;Jf Led{) . .,ume~1t ,f:~ 
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On January 17, 2012, TOIG interviewed--stated that he cannot recall any type of 
"Secref' classified documentation presen~eetiii9. nor could .he recall que~tioning the 
clearance levels or the handling of "Secret" classified documentation. He further stated that if any 
documentation were present, it would most likely be "Law Enforcement Sensitive". (Exhibit 4) 

On January 23, 2012, TOIG interviewed-Program Analyst, TEOAF. -was indicate!ib 
~s being someone who had similar situations with arding classmecrinformation. 
~ked if he had experienced any situations in which · hared "Secret" classified documen 
or information with hi~tated that he had never exper enced such an incident. (Exhi~it 5) 

On January 27, 2012 TOIG interviewed-Director, SPOTFFC, who was able to recall the 
meeting in question. liiiiiltated with ~no "Secrer classified documentation was 
present an~ an~ocumentation was presented, it would have been "Law Enforcement 
Sensitive". -urther stated that any documentation utilized on any project between his office 
and TEOAF would not be of a "Secret" classified na~re, but rather .. Law Enforcment Sensitive". 
(Exhibit 6) 

On January 27, 2012, TOIG intervie~ ~tated that documentation, if any, 
presented during the meeting in Septem~~ been "Law Enforcement Sensittve", 
although he does not recall referring to any documentation. The meeting was an initial meeting to 
establish a-tra e y and information gathering and therefore, no documents would have existed at 
that time. urther stated that he does not recall the exchange between himsetf and l!lmrior 
to the mee mg, but stated that he would never provide "Secret" classified documentation to a 
subordinate that did not possess the proper clearance. 

~lso advised that TEOAF deals mainly with law enforcement agencies and therefore the 
n;ajOrity of documents that pass through the TEOAF offices are classified "Law Enforcement ·· 
Sensitive". 

Concerni~anuary 3. 2012, incident in which a "Secree classified document was discovered in 
his desk.~tated that he did not secure that doctiment correctly, 

-tated that he believes the allegations levied against him are retributive in nature due to an 
~actory performance review given to9in October 2011. . 

-provided .a written t~tate1rtent re~3art1ing his recoliedkin of the iad der1ts tn qt;estion. {Ei<hibit. 7) 

On F~bruary 'j;~, '2'0'12 .. TOi.G ln~eNhr~wtHJ-Si!pesvi~~ty ~..:i~r.)~Jr~~r Ana!~~t. TEOAF .• 
G~lfeo th~1t shr.: was pr~~sf.!:m. <Jonng 1he me~esm.m arm. ai:r.nt..ed t:n~it n(:1 • ·.~.),ec.1<-?.:t · 
d('.1(.umotmfatlmt lN~a f.ir~s~~r'~t ·~ill' nal'etre'~ fr) du~il ig 'h~1t, 1.."lr. sut1:'!ir':l'q>.~~mt rni1iEYl.inus (.i,~ thh; r.1Jb}'1~r;t. 
w~~h~crt: a} 
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Referrals 

None 

Judlclal Action 

None 

Findings 

Our investigation has determined the initial allegatlons involving mishandling and improper disclosure 
of "Secret" classified documentation in September 2011 are unsubstantiated. The separate incident 
involving a security violation on January 3, 2012, is substantiated. 

Distribution 

, Senior Advisor, Departmental Offices 
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Exhibits 

1. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
2012. 

and DO, dated January 3, 

2. Security violation issued by the Office of Security Programs, DO, dated December 22, 2011. 
Security violation issued by the Office of Security Programs, DO, dated December 28, 2011. 
Security violation issued by the Office of Security Programs, DO, dated January 3, 2011. 
Email correspondence from ~ated February 21, 2012. 

3. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 

dated January 10, 2012. 

dated January 17, 2012. 

5. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-dated January 23, 2012. 

6. Memorandum of Activity; Interview of dated January 27, 2012. 

7. Memorandum of Activity, Interview o-dated January 27, 2012. 
Advice of Rights, signed by 1~27, 2012. 
_,tatement, signed by dated January 30, 2012. 

8. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-dated February 13, 2012. 

This Report of Investigation Is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and. Its contents may not be reproduced without 
written permission In accordance with S U.S.C. § 552. This report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its disclosure 
to unauthorized persona is prohibited. 



 



REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 
D0 - 12-2326-I 



Office of Inspector General 
U.S . . Department of the Treasury 

.llcport of .Investigati.on 

Case Title~ 

Departmental Offices 
15/6 

Director, Office of Environmei1t 
and Health Safety 

Investigation In itiat ed: August 7, 201 2 

Investigation Completed: 

Origin: Anonymous Complaint 

_Summary 

Case ti: 00~12-2326-1 
Case Type: Criminal 

Administrative X 
Civil 

Conducted by: 

Approved by : John L. Phillips, 
Special Agent in Char~Je 

On August 7, 2012, an anonymous complaint was received by the U.S. Department of 
Treasury, Office of Inspector General (TOIG) regarding an allegation ~aud by 
Departmental Offices. {00) Environment Safety and Health Manager_- (Exhibit 1 i 

The investigation determined that the allegations are unsubstantiated. The allegation claims that 
- allowed to use his travel time to and from his residence as telework time and does not 
have to use his annual leave. The allegation further claitns tl1a-s permitted to baby sit 
his children white teleworking. 

i\dditional allegations include racisrn .. inapproprh:ite behcvior ro include i.15C of fou! l~mgua~lt~, 
screaming ln en1ployees' faces an<j ir~tr! behavior. 00 Hurnan Res(:>Ufces is in the process of 
·:idcJressing r.hese issues direct!·.,· V!ili't Laut~~r bv rnovidinc1 c r.itin~~ei i ng and mc1nzviernent t.rsininq, 

"' . ' ·~ ,. '' ... 
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.:t!;n;;Jed C·'(!i>rir.<rn,-y vi~i<•tic'.15. ::.;n,'1 i~jlt-:~oed \"i~l.~fl)n:; 1.;.f p; :::ici..!l'e·me.m ;·im<::N"hn.1 b·1 ~-~·o;f: 
i::v!';:"ili!¥·1\:'::-ci ~hc~~1':1 d~. ;m~ and .:f,·J~.en'fii~"ir.uJ that tr~<: ulft>:0at!or:~ .;,re ~.11,_ fo;;r•.-:-; r~d . 

.... . _,,, ... ., ................ ' ..... ................... ·- ----· .. -··· ...... -· -._,_,,,,,.,., ..... ,.,, .. ~., ... _, .. _, .. _ .......... --··--· .................. -· -· ~ .... -....... . . , ................. ,, ..................................... -·- .... ··-"· ............ '-.'•"•" .. - ........... . 
r.~i!.t Hf.l~ru-r. : ·~\' h'11~·, ,,,\,1;J,<'1ti.:lr.: i".:!: 1)'·i~ 1!1.;<i•~<1J:.l('l'' :ll tt·:.:1 CHt/1•:1.1 rJt i 1·1~~:> '.iG1:1~; .. m, l1-..,(~.t; ·1 ... , ,, •1)·,1-ifo"!l' .,:if 6r• !<!:,•rr.· .. ;·::i); (o:'.i::J1<:J:•1i. i 
/( r:•1wt1.:.~1~.c- i~·<:;1.~:1t;~.;».• l.1111•.11 '3-rtt'!J1"e·rdj':·i·:w1 Irr: .. 1r.m1.1J.~;"t1t :w·i:: f~!'..' :::.·~~\<mt.i; m~l 'r i-. 1:•t. hf., t<-p ·: ,;•ti~;: .. r1'f 1,•it;v~1c..;t "Mfi;;~,-~,. 
)"Juni,1;.~;ic:1n t~c a~i~:::'i'\., · c-J.r.:t';i~~lj v~·~~ h ~ U. s:. !:,. !~· 1.:";~j~! "f'·ht.); r .,,~,~·~·;, :£ l .. t:~f (~: Ff:~f..';i ;~ i. ~:.;!.i1 :!.~ 1;~:·!~t·;1 ~;ir.i-!~ ~t~ :~}tH''~':,~:!fr+;• ¢n 

~ 
' i 

... ··---··--··· .. •····• .. ··· - -............. -········-····---· ____ ,J 



ifiiilr" 
Page 2 of 8 

Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

This investigation was init iated on August 7, 2012, based upon information that Lauter misused 
his telework time to travel to and from his post of duty (POD) and care for his children. 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

f the investigation, TOIG conducted relevant interviews with: 
Associate Chief Human Capital Officer, DO 

Director, DO Operations 
ety Technician, DO 

Safety Occupational Program Manager, DO 
Environmental Safety and Health Manager, DO 

SHIMS Program Manager, DO 
Program Executive Officer, HSP0· 12, DO 
General Counsel, DO 

Contract Specialist, Internal Revenue Service 

Investigative Activity 

J• '~ • ._, .... , • .., ,,.,,,. \\C''• - :• ,,,, . .,,.., ... .,, ,•• ,,,.,..,.,., • ..,,-,. ,.,- • _ .... .,,_,,,,.,......_ ••••n.o~ ... ,,- ,.,.-, •. ,. ... ,.,,.. ,;,, .... .,, , ,.. ·•- ,._,.,,,,,,..,.,. ,,,.,. _. ,..__,_ "'• '' ., .... ..,,.,,.. ...... _ . ., ... , .. ,.,., '~'' "' ,.,., • . _ .,,,,,,, ... ....,-,.,,.,,. ,.,. _ ...,_,_ , - '-"'"•• • •: 

i ·,~-;·,,\!I, t-i·,~-',.hlr'~ ,af' ''1'1·~·~,. ~~~lW~'liNt ~·.; i,h« .1-.rr.1iMi1 t;;· ti!: 1-h(• 1!) f'<'lca !!!'!' !":11.,wrl.'lt~~•ttwrr, i'n:l"M~tf1 OHk11~ '"~ ~1·~:.~ !tt~'"''»~.Nr G1,;~1H1.rJ1~. l 
J ~t C.:)rt1:,.ltt1r.; .~~1J'1$t.~ru.µ ·l!v~1· 1!r.i·r.1~1~~r.l°1'·,.,~·r~ ~.'l::i·~wm111H~~ :~"ij irl~ ~~.:mi'll·~~N ;.i-..1J:'Jr' ~w~ h"41 :·~lf)~'l::'t~rJl.'i4'.11·i •.N~"t(>,.:;t Wi·itt1~1;: , 
\ , , ,..,. ... 1,,., L ., • ..,,,.,, . ...... , ~ . :.r 111 'I'! ,.. fl 1~11:".i· ·~·t,1,, .,,,,.,, . • lL. ,,..,, ... ,;:, .:"'· •:t;>r:;•"•.'•I ,,,..•:' /; ('•r-•~U h • .,,.,. "''•• ................ .... "'' I 

l
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On .August 3~, 2012, forwarded9as time and attendance record tor pay 
period 13 which encompasses June 28, 2012; the date the email exchange took place between 
~nd.he report indicates that 91lhad taken 4 hours of sick leave on June 
~2. stated that these instances would not normally be noted on the office 
calendar. (Exh1 rt 

On September 15, 2012, TOIG interviewed Safety Oc-u · al Health Manager, 
DO. was asked if he had observed any telework abuses by nd advised that he 
did. outlined that-is permitted to utilize telework time in order to commute from 
his home . ...,rovided one exa~here he attempted to reach -via telephone on a 
Friday, wh~telework day for .... -eported ade;";tatement to the 
effect of "I am w ith my son, can we do this another time?" did not provide any other 
examples of telework abuse b~ 

-brought one other issue to the attention of TOIG. -stated that when-egan 
working at DO, the Safety and Health department was close to completing the procurement of 
an lnformatio~~IT) application that merges the Health and Safety databases. 
~to _ _.. stopped the process in order to propose adding a new vendor, 
_,into the application process. -further advised that -was a General 
Electric (GE) software product which led -to believe there is a conflict of interest in the 
situation. (Exhibit 6) 

On September 17, 2012, TOIG interviewed Director of Environment, Health and 
Safety, DO. ~as asked to explain his telework practice. stated that as part of his 
acceptance of the position, he and his supervisor, agreed that he would be 
permitted to telework two days per week on Thurs ays and Fri ays. Due to issues within the 
department, requested he telecommute one day per week, to which-greed. 

On Mondays, ~ommutes from his residence in Charlottesville, VA and arrives at DO at 
approximately ~-10:45 AM . • continues to work until approximately 7 PM and 
remains in the Washington DC area ru Thursday afternoon departing at approximately 4 PM to 
commute to his residence. On Fridays~teleworks and is available via telephone or email . 
'9 advised that his time and attendance reflects 8 hour days, but his actual hours worked 
supersede the standard 8 hour work day. - advised that he views that as a responsibility 
of his pay grade which is GS-15/6 • 

.... was asked about his subordinates attempting to contact him during his telework days 
~ceiving resp~hat he was not able to speak with them because he was with his son 
or other children . ..... stated that he could recall an instance where he received an email with 
a request to speak with one of his subordinates on a day he had taken a half day of sick leave. 

This Report of Investigation Is the property of the Office of lnveatrgatlon, Treasury Office of the Inspector General. 
It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and its contents may not be reproduced without written 
permission In accordance with 6 U.S.C. § 552. This report Is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its disclosure to 
unauthorized persons le prohibited. 
01'-.0.1-2010! 
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~advised of one other instance when he received a phone calf from a subordinate at 
approximately 5:30 or 6 PM on a Friday. He asked the Individual if it was an emergency 
because he was with his family. The individual stated no and the call was terminated. 

-provided Information regarding childcare arrangements for his 3 children . One child Is 
regularly attending elementary school and the other two are in regular attendance at a daycare 
facility. -.lso stated that he and his spouse employ the services of a person who regularly 
responds to pick up the children from school and transport them to their residence. (Exhibit 7) 

-was asked if, at any time, he utilized telework time in order to care for his children. He 
responded that his spouse works from the home and that there have been 4~5 occasions where 
a child was home due to illness . He advised that due to the age of the children, constant care 
was not necessary. Occasionally, water or medicine would be provided to the children, but 
otherwise his work was not impacted. Since he and his spouse were home, he did not feel it 
necessary to utilize sick leave hours due to the minimal amount of time and attention the child 
needed. 

- was asked about~t he required his subordinates adopt. -stated that he 
provided the forms to~s an example when creating a Treasury template. -
stated that the forms are not proprietary and are often shared between companies in the name 
of safety. 9'stated he did instruct ~o utilize locks that also were from-ecause 
at the time, there was nothing securing certain equipment and he felt it was a safety hazard. A 
short time later, he was made aware that General Counsel advised that the forms as well as the 
locks should not be utilized due to the possibility of copyright infringement . 

.. tated that he had utilized the -software program while employ~ He is 
very familiar with the p~am and rates it as one of the best on the market. ~as a 
~m developed by Wbut as of 2007 is owned by a Limited Liability Company {LLC). 
~orked with the president of the company for over 1 3 years and has st rong opinions on 
the product. -dvised he does not hold stock in the company. According to~hen 
he began wo;rearoo. the process to acquire the needed software was slowly progressing 
1lnd was not far along in the acquisition process. He reviewed the documentation and felt that 
It was substandard at best. In particular, the sections indicating th~ requested capabflities 
inch.tded !ten:s that no s~ftw.are would ~e ti bl~rfor~n. B~sad cm ~hF.J &~ flt"ldin~$, he felt it 
wa~ ~·e~ponsibS~ tc re-wr~ta $~'i.'eral secnQn~. ~·.t<11-st::id me n~···wr·rre did n~t 9ivtt -
the fn~~de track !.'in lh$ conrract sim~e his prc;;p.o!3ad req~1ken·v.mt.s (:~Wk~ he met hv :c: isv~ 
\~·n~1pan!~$ i·~~ ~nd·udf~ - a ted that ~t~e bidding u:ir.~t:S$ ha.d / 1t..lt 'fl'll ,;Jf.111.t.'d •NtH.~1·~ 
t'\fl ;;-.orm;wtf!c:j th& President o · od ~~1..1esteO. vt. Ir; i:-t. bid for' ·i~~e c1~1ntr.ctc1t 

'Nhkh WA~ done. Accordlr1g to ·s r10 longer eirt (~ .cm"lsideH~ri frH the com:ract 
duu to their noP··n~~punse for fu er m ormat1on.119understo~1d this (0 mean th~t­
w.!,,~ f'Ot !nt~rt'm~d in hMimng a .gc'.Jetr'1moot· c orrfP:lCt . · 

~·· :i·~;i.~~il-~o/.;;;icl "i·;;.~;;~~ji~~;t~.;;"i~ · ;;;;·~;:~;,;,;;;,1;~-~~t· i~';;~r::l..~ii;;;·.:.i:f· ·1;.;;;~~(jf;.~~r.~·t~;.~· ::;~~;~:1~;;,~;:;;-::if1i(;~;· .;~;-:;;.;;·/; ~:;;:;;;.,;:;~j;,,~~.~,~.;,.::··-..... , 
; l'i ~m•l·.o;f,,,f., tim.~·;r.r1,..9 l~·.,1 Jf>l'A.ft;;.!·,.1r,,i.W:1n!: !rit~·.<mwi·t·I.-,~':· '.\1IH~ .I~.~ ... 1r;1;~~.ei'r1t-:{ me;,r n r.'lt :~rv· rr.~11:1t"G1'i\.tir.;t:iiJ 'Ntthoot 1t.i'ritl~• 
j p~1m:1l~~fo!i! 1~, ;,;\t~v.:(!ol. ·d~•W:4!1 wf(t\ 1~. l/ •. v.c. ~ :li:;';:!.; fri&.r. ;:1.~r.11vt. 1fi ffl'tl ctti:n:;!,~.t. 'i,i:$1:~ ON!./ :eiM.: ,tL1 J•uct1~!Jr.>1J \ oti 

I tm.~•iti'''"~i1:~" ~t!l1llfl;\~·1...~ f.:!1: ~~~·i~h-ttiae.{'J . ! , 
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~as ask~d if he was a member of the Technical Review Panel (TAP) a_nd advised he was 
not. -dv1sed he does not know the members of TAP. He also stated he did not contact 
anyone regarding this contract In order to enhance the consideration of xhibit 8) 

On September 19, 2012, TOIG met with Program Executive Officer, HSPD-12. 
had previously supervised the Environment Health and Safety Department of which 
as a direct report. -confirmed tha~ad contacted him and asked his 

advice about what she should d'O"'Wlt'h~ instructions-. -advised ... hat she 
should follow her managers instruction~bit 1 0) 

On September 19, 2012, TOIG met with P~anager, Safety and Health 
Information Management System (SHIMS), DO. According to-, when-came to 
work at DO the process of selecting an IT software database vendor was close""'tO'being 
presented to the TAP. lllllJ.>topped the process and insisted that the market research be re· 
done and consider ..... 

-stated that each vendor makes a presentation for their product with little to no 
discussion by the attendees. -advised that when-made their presentation, 

id not remain impartial and inserted himself into the presentation by supporting 
stated that competitor presentations were met with a negative attitude from 

giving the impression of dissatisfaction from - - stated that she spoke wit 
and gently advised him that as a government ~yee, he needed to remain impartial and 
discussions regarding the bidders would take place at a later time. · 

~stated that although it was clearly evident that ~as partial to the -
program, to her knowledge, he was not in violation of any procedural standards. (E'X'ii'ibit'TT) 

On October 1, 2012, TOIG spoke with · General Counsel, DO regarding the 
conversat ion he had with ....., - had forwarded the documents in question. mllf 
advised that he responded as to err ontm:'side of caution, any use of . ocumentation or 
equipment should cease. -advised that after providing this counsel, he did not hear from 
~gain. {Exhibit 12) 

This Report of Investigation is the property of the Office of Investigation. Treasury Office of the Inspector General. 
It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and Its contents may not be reproduced without written 
permission In accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552. Thi• report fa FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and Its disclosure to 
unauthorlied persons Is prohibited. 
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On ~ctober 11, 201.2, TOIG spoke with Contracting Officer, Internal Revenue 
Service. ~dv1sed that this ~ontract is not close to completion. -advised that when 
th.a contract pro~ess start~d certain procedures were not done, including a required consultation 
with the ~RP which c~mp1les the tec~nical requirements for the software. _.dvised 
c~ntact with the TRP 1s usually done in the beginning stages of the procurement process. Since 
thrs was not done, the procurement process is on hold indefinitely until the · specifications are 
written. -ad~i~ed -would not have any participation or input during this process. 
~tarecrtliat tt 1s soley up to the TRP to produce the requirements. 

- stated that he does not recall any occasion where he had a discussion with - any 
time and specifically not in regard to - (Exhibit 13) 

Referrals 

N/A 

Judicial Action 

N/A 

Findings 

The investigation determined that the allegations are unsubstantiated. 

Title 5 USC 6502 states that an agency's telework policy must ensure that telework does not 
diminish employee performance or agency operations. The allegation regarding telework is 
unsubstantiated. supervisor finds that his telework did not diminish his performance or 
agency operations. completed and accomplished the required preliminaries and has 
remained available to his supervisor's satisfaction. The instance regarding the email 
correspondence and phone call does not establish abuse of telework. -s alleged use of 
telework time for commuting purposes is also unsubstantiated. Accordfri'Q'to ~nd his 
~isor, lllllts permitted to adjust his schedule on the days he t ravels to and from work. 
-reports an 8 hour work day on his t ime and attendance; which Is accurate. 

The allegation regarding copyright infringement is also unsubstantiated. DO General Counsel 
advised not to use the- ocuments and they were removed from consideration. The locks 
initially used were also removed and were not used at a later time. 

The allegation of conflict of interest is also unsubstantiated. As defined in Title 18 USC 208, in 
order for there to be a conflict of interest,~ould have to participate " ... personally and 

This Report of Investigation la the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector General. 
It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and its contents may not be reproduced without written 
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substantially as a Government officer or employee, through decision, approval, disapproval, 
recommendation, the rendering of advice, Investigation, or otherwise, in a judicial or other 
proceeding, application, request for a ruling or other determination, contract, claim, controversy, 
charge, accusation, arrest, or other particular matter in which, to his knowledge, he, his spouse, 
minor child, general partner, organization in whfch he is serving as officer, director, trustee, 
general partner or employee, or any person or organization with whom he is negotiating or has 
any arrangement concerning prospective employment, has a financial int erest ... " 

t19'ecommendill!d ie for the government contract, but did not take action in an 
attempt to ensure was awarded the contract, nor was he in a position to assert 
influence over t he se ect1on process. 

Distribution 

~enlor Advisor, Department of the Treasury 

Signatures 
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SYNOPSIS 

On April 15, 2009, the 
Inspector General (OIG) , 
complaint reflecting that 
government as a "political 

US Department of the Treasury (Treasury), Office of 
Office of Investigations (01) , received an anonymous 

received a position with the federal 
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Defense (DoD) as a Schedule C appointee, but the DoD was unable to convert her 
position to a career position. The DoD then made an agreement with T~o 
hire ~d detail her back to DoD. According to the complaint, .....,..s 
now a Treasury employee, but claims she is a DoD employee in meetings. 
(Exhibit 1) 

Based on the evidence and information gathered during the investigation, it was 
determined that the allegations regarding the improper hiring and detailing of 
- , Deputy Assistant Secretary, Office of Intelligence and 
Analysis ( IA) and Senior Resource Officer, OIA, were 
substantiated . It also appears that and ~ollaborated with officials at 
the DoD to "burrow" -into federal employment. "Burrowing" is the transfer 
of political appointees ~manent federal positions. 

DETAILS 

A. Allegation: It was alleged that Treasury and DoD employees were able to 
"get around the federal hiring system" by having Treasury hire ~nd 
detail her back to her former position at the DoD, after the DoD was unable 
to convert her from a Schedule C appointment to a career position. 

B. Context I Background: - is the Deputy Assistant Secretary for 
Intelligence Community Integration in the OIA, Treasury. ~a Senior 
Resource Officer in OIA. The Do~ed are -
-Principal Director, and_._.....Deputy Director, 
~ffice of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense of 
Counternarcotics, Counterproliferation, and Global Threats, DoD. 

INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY 

Contact with the Bureau of Public Debt 

On June 1, 2009, the OIG/01 contacted the Bureau of Public Debt (BPO) to obtain 
Officia l Personnel Folder (OPF) information regarding - Intelligence 
Operations Specialist, Treasury. The OPF reflected that~d a Schedule 
C excepted appointment as a Defense Fellow, GS 0301-GS 14, with the DoD on 
August 6, 2006. 

,·-This rep~rt- i; the p;~perty - of- the Office of Inspector Gene;;,, and is For Official Use Only. It cont;ins I 

lsensitive law enforc.em .. ent information, the. use and dissemination of which is subject to the Privacy Act, s / 
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On January 20, 2009, -eceived a term ination due to change of pres idential 
administrat ion, as a Defense Fellow, GS 15 w ith the DoD. 

On February 1, 2009-received an excepted appointment as an Intelligence 
Operations Specialist, GS 15 with the Department of Treasury. 

BPD provided the OIG/01 a Treasur Departmental Offices Reimbursable Agreement 
#TDPR0075 si ned by Director, Office of Financial Management, 
Treasury, and Director, Office of Operations and IC Integration, on 
March 13, 2009, and a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between Treasury 
and DoD signed by~n February 26, 2009. (Exhibit 2) 

On July 16, 2009, the OIG/01 contacted Supervisory Human 
Resources Specialist (HRS), BPO, to obtain more information regarding the hiring 
process of--stated that when the government wants to hire an 
employee t~n excepted appointment (Schedule A), as-was hired, a 
vacancy announcement is not required. The government official who wants to hire 
t he employee, completes an "HR Connect Recruit Request" that is sent 
electronically to BPD. BPD then assigns the task to a HRS in BPD who prepares all 
the necessary paperwork to hire the employee. - stated that BPD was not 
involved with~etail to DoD , and was not aware of this detail until notified 
by the OIG/O~ obtained the MOU and interagency agreement between 
Treasury and DoD from the OIA, after it was requested by the OIG/01. 

-stated that -s hire and immediate transfer to DoD seems suspicious. 
"'rt;ears that Do~ not continue her employment at DoD so an arrangement 
was made with Treasury to hire her and return her to DoD . 

-tated that in the spring of 2009, BPD changed their policies regard ing the 
hiring of excepted employees under Schedules A and C. The requesting I hiring 
manager must now write a memorandum to Human 
Resources Director, DO, regarding the requested applicant before compl eting the 
electronic paperwork. In addit ion, now reviews the elect ronic 
request before it is assigned to a HRS. state ·that the process changed to 
reduce the appearance of conflicts of interes (Exhibit 3) 

On July 17, 2009, the OIG/01 received documents from 
These documents w ere requested by the OIG/Ol and inclUded 's 

. -----·· ·····--- . ..., 
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resume, hiring documents, and several e-mails between Treasury and BPD officials 
regarding -s appointment with Treasury. (Exhibit 4) 

(;ontact with the Office of Personnel Management 

On July 24, 2009, the OIG/01 conducted a teleconference with several 
management officials from the Office of Personnel Management (OPM) to discuss 
the hiring of - The group advised that OPM requires agencies that have a 
Schedule C appointee hired through an excepted appointment to notify OPM if the 
agency desires to convert the employee to a career position. The DoD sent OPM a 
request on April 2, 2008, requesting to convert - from an excepted 
appointment to a career appointment. On June 20, 2~M sent DoD a letter 
denying the conversion. The OPM letter provided to the OIG/01 reflected that OPM 
disapproved the conversion because the position "appears to have been designed 
to appoint-,, the requirements were established to make -he 
only one qu~certain level, a veteran was inappropriately rate~e 
rating process for determining the best qualified applicants was flawed." 

OPM officials stated that Treasury and DoD officials did not violate law, but did 
circumvent OPM's decision by Treasury hiring - and subsequently detailing 
her back to DoD . It appears that management at both organizations conspired to 
hire~hich violated merit principles. (Exhibit 5) 

On August 18, 2009, the OIG/01 received records from Group 
Manager, Philadelphia Oversight and Accountability Group, records 
were of the applicants for vacancy announcement 173-07-207-DEU-NT, for the 
position of Foreign Affairs Specialist, at the DoD. The applicant list reflected that 
there were 11 applicants for the position, however, one withdrew his or her 
application . It also reflected that all were found non-eligible or not qualified except 
for three. One of those three was a veteran . A review of the records showed the 
selected applicant, - had a bachelors and masters degree, and was a threat 
finance coordinator ~ew of the other candidates showed one candidate had a 
PhD in International Relations, was a Counternarcotics Specialist and a Senior 
Threat Analyst, but was not selected . (Exhibit 6) 

On September 25, 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed Associate 
Director of Human Capital Leadership and Merit System Accountability, OPM. 

Thi• rnport I• tho pwpe.fV-;;f tho Offl" of ln•peot~ Oon0<~. ood la Fo• Offiol~ U•e Only. h oom•"" / 
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-stated that the OPM is responsible for rev iewing all requests by agencies 
w ho attempt to convert Schedule C appointees to competitive governi:ient 
positions. He explained that this occurs every fou~en the President of the 
United States and his administration changes. -stated that the OPM 
denies very few of these conversions because agencies follow all the necessary 
rules. In the case of- the OoO followed the rules by posting a vacancy 
announcement for the pos1t1on, but appeared to design the announcement for 
-and their applicant rating appeared flawed. - could not recall all of 
~cities regarding this attempted conversion. - Deputy 
Associate Director for Merit System Accountability, OP~ reviewed 
DoD's request to convert- but -reviewed OPM's denial and signed 
the ref us al letter sent from""C5'P'M"'to the~ 

-tated that he was not aware that Treasury hire d detailed her 
back to the DoD until he was informed of this by OIG/01. stated that it 
appears the DoD and Treasury colluded to bypass OPM rules and authority to 
improperly convert an employee's government status so that the employee could 
maintain government employment. It is also suspicious that Treasury detailed 
-back to DoD shortly after she was hired. ~ad no additional 
~tion regarding this matter. (Exhibit 7} 

Interview of 

On July 30, 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed Senior Resource 
Officer, Treasury. -s direct supervisor 1s stated that she 
handles t he operations of her office to include hiring and budget . Her office 
consists of 151 full time employees; 80 are Intelligence Operations Specialists 
(IOS); 30 of these IOS were hired as Schedule A appointments. 

In January 2009,-came~o with -s resume and informed 
that he wanted to hire as an !OS,~ 15, from the OoD. He 

- to use the Schedule A aut ority which did not require their office to 
announce th e vacancv . She contacted the BPD who hand led the necessary 
paperwork to hire - Shortly thereafter, - spoke with members at the 
DoD and Treasury ' s Office of Genera l Counsel regarding a MOU to detail -
back to DoD . General Counsel, OGC, wrote the MOU. It was signed 
by - on February 26, 2009, and Principal Director, 
Transnationa l Threats, Office of Counternarcotics, Counterproliferation and Global 

l This report is the property ~t the Office of Inspector General, and is For Official Use Only. It contaln;l 
i sensitive law enforcement information, the use and dissemination of which is subject to the Privacy Act. 51' 
I U.S.C . § 552a. This information may not be copied or disseminated without the written permission of the 
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Threats, DoD, on February 27, 2009. -wrote the in teragency agreement 
listing the method and amount of reimbursement ot OoD to Treasury. The 
agreement was signed by - and Director, Office of Finance 
Management, Treasury on ~ 3, 2009 . It was signed by and 

Director, Programs, Resources and Assessm.ents, DoD, an March 31 , 

~tated that -ecama employed at Treasury on February 2 , 2009, and 
~ailed to DoD sometime in M arch 2009. ~as also not aware that 
OoD attempted to convert - from an accepted position to a competitive 
service position and was den~PM. (Exhibit 8) 

Interview of -·- - - ·- --....... - ·-

On August 4, 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed - Senior Counsel, 
Treasury. 9stated that she received a call in ~rom-who 
~tated he wanted to hire as a foreign affairs specialist from ~ and 
detail her back to the OoD. also stated - was a Schedule C 
appointee and DoD 1,.vas having dif 1culties converting her to a career position. 
~anted Treasury to hire her as a career appointment, and wanted to know 
~was anything illegal about the conversion. xpressed some concerns, 
but informed him that there was nothing illegal. then prepared the MOU 
between Treasury and OoO, which was signed by and 
from DoD. 

with - and informed her that she (- would represent herself as 
In February 2009~ began empioyment at Treasury. '91ad a meeting 

a DoD employee. informed her that she could not represent herself as a DoD 
employee because s e was a Treasury employee. - insisted that she needed 
to represent herself as a DoD employee, and that the matter was decide~ 
-and -..,with DoD. Later that day, she and ­
~lraq w~eting , and it w as apparent thcit members at the 
rneeting believed -was a OoO civilian. -contacted- via e-mail 
regarding the matter, but he did not ri~spond promptly . - en spoke I .~) -

- Counsef, Treasury, r1.~gardinq the matter. H i:) did not f.;i::em :~om~emed 
;~e rr1 i~~ repff.,s0ntatk1n rl~ 1N~s :11.r:r!f\ i::nneemed about thti nurv;r;:;- ir·, -..1\Ji1id 1 
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Officer, Treasury, regarding both matters. •F•IR;eemed irritated that she knew 
nothing of this hire. (Exhibit 9) 

Interview of 

On September 22, 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed , Senior Counsel, 
Treasury. -stated that in February 2009, ame to his office and was 
concerned about the hiring and detailing of was concerned because 

- was a form~le C appointee of the DoD who was being detailed 
~the DoD. ~tated that the hiring was not an issue since -
was hired as a Schedule A appointment and not a competitive position. However, 
he and-decided to speak with - regarding the matter. -shared 
their concern that although the hiring and detailing of --was proper, it could 
appear that Treasury was assisting DoD in impro~onverting a political 
appointee to a federal position near a presidential transition. -stated that she 
would speak to someone in OIA regarding the matter. 

A few days later, 1i9 called -to his office and asked -if 
Treasury's Office of General Counsel had problems with the hiring of_ 

stated that the hiring was legal, but may appear suspicious to an~ 
assured -that-was highly qualified and that she was hired 

based on her merits and not as a favor to DoD. (Exhibit 10) 

Interview of 

On August 5, 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed Deputy Assistant 
Secretary for Intelligence Community Integration, Office of Intelligence and 
Analysis, Treasury. -stated that he knew-since approximately 2007, 
from working with her as co-leaders on the Iraq ~inance Cell. ~erved 
on the team as the Treasury representative and -served on the team as the 
OoD representative. 
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the detail of .. from Treasury to the OoD, 
MOU was then signed by - and 
dates. 

which was reviewed by lllrThe 
~ould not rec~ll the 

began at Treasury as an Intelligence Specialist under the 
supervision of Deputy Assistant Secretary, Intelligence and 
Analysis, OIA, Treasury. Approximately three weeks later, her detail began at the 
DoD. She now is located at the DoD, but- and his staff have daily contact 
with her by telephone or at meetings regarding Iraq and Afghanistan . 

"

recalled an incident that occurred the week-began at Treasury . 
met with ounsel, Treasury, for a routine meeting to discuss 
and resp~easury. -was not present at the meeting, 

but was informed by - that ~as going to represent herself as a OoD 
employee instead of a;-:"i'reasur~yee. - then spoke with- and 
instructed her to represent herself as a Treasury employee. - stated he did 
not inquire as to why - desired to represent herself as a DoD employee. 
(Exhibit 11) 

Interview of 

On August 14, 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed , Policy Advisor , 
OIA, Treasury. -stated that he met -in approximately 2006. At that 
time, she was employed at the DoD, and was working in the field of threat finance . 
He would have monthly contact with -at meetings and teleconferences 
between Treasury and the DoD. 

In March 2009, she became employed at Treasury as an Intelligence Liaison, and 
was almost immediately placed on detail to the DoD . Current contact consists of 
monthly meetings at Treasury . 

-stated that he was not surprised how - was hired , but was more 
interested in the fact that others appeared more qualified that were not hired . 
~tated that he felt someone who had been in the military or the Defense 
lntellige~ncy (DIA) or had written papers on threat finance should have been 
hired . ~pent time in Iraq, but was never in the military or the DIA, or had 
written any notable reports on threat finance. - did not and does not believe 
she is an expert in the field of threat finance as she cla ims. 

! This report is the property of the Office of Inspector General, and is For Official Use Only. It contains/ 
:.i sensitive law enforcement information. the use and dissemination of which is subject to the Privacy Act, 5
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- stated that when a new employee begins at OIA, he wr~tes . a memo 
welcoming the new employee, with a biography of the employee, which .1s sent to 
all OIA employees . In -s case, -requested that no memo be sent to 
the staff. -did not provide a reason, but - believes that the hire of 
-was to be kept quiet from Treasury employees so DoD employees would 
still believe she was a DoD employee. -was not certain of the reason. 
(Exhibit 12) 

Interview of 

On August 27, 2009, the OIG /01 interviewed Deputy Director, 
Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense of Counternarcotics and 
Global Threats, DoD. 

Illa' met -n approximately 2006 at the DoD. They had contact twice a 
~regarding work. Their socia l contact has consisted of two dinners . 

In approximately 2008, the Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense of 
Counternarcotics and Global Threats attempted to convert her position from a 
Schedule C appointment to a career position. She explained that ~as a 
Schedule C appointee who would lose her position with the change of 
administration in January 2009. Her office valued her work in threat finance and 
did not want to lose her. A vacancy announcement for the position of Foreign 
Affairs Specialist was created by her office and several applicants applied. -
was selected as the most qualified applicant. .-was not certain w~ 
selecting official was. Shortly thereafter, OPM~ the conversion of-­
from a Schedule C appointee to a career appointment by her office. -and~ 
her office then "reached out" to colleagues in the Department of Army and 
Department of Navy to hire - but received no definitive response or offers. 

-believes the Treasury became aware of --losing her position through 
conversat ions with - - does n~eve she (- directly 
contacted ~r anyone else in Treasury . 

After-- informed - s office that Treasury was interested in hiring 

- ~nd . could detail her back to the DoD if needed, - assisted with 
writing the MOU and interagency agreement between the two agencies . In 
January 2009, - s position was terminated at the DoD. In February 2009, 

; This report is the property of the Offic~ of lnspect~;-(3;~;;;, , ~~d·1;·For Official Use Only. It cont.ainSJ 
; sensitive law enforcement information, the use and dissemination of which is subject to the Privacy Act, 5 / 
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~as hired by Treasury. Approximately three weeks later, she was detailed 
back to the DoO. From February to August 2009, - S~w her daily at the 
DoD . However, - would also go tcf T reasury regula rly for meetings. In 
August 2009, she~etailed to Afghanistan for one year after a new MOU was 
agreed upon by the DoD and Treasury. 

--stated that she never advised ~o misrepresent herself as a DoD 
~ee and not a Treasury employee. She simply informed 11119chat she was 
working under the OoO authority and would represent DoD at interagency 
meetings . 

.. stated that she bel ieves -is an expert in threat finance because of 
her "incredible depth of knowledge" in the field, her business background, her work 
in Iraq, and her contacts with others in the field. -believes Treasury benefits 
from the arrangement because Treasury would still have a representative at the 
interagency t hreat finance meetings. - does not believe anything improper 
occurred in the hiring and detailing of ..,,Y the OoD and Treasury . (Exhibit 13) 

Interview of 

On August 27, 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed Principal 
Director, Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense of Counternarcotics 
and Global Threats, OoO . 

~et- in approximately 2005, when-was briefing 
his office on he~hanistan. In 2006 , - was employed as a 
special ist w ith Special Operations Low Intensity Conflict, DoD. She never worked 
for but worked in his office on deta il from 2006 until January 2009 . 

and his office were aware that ~as a Schedule C appointee 
w ho would lose her pos ition with t he change of administration in January 2009 . In 
the fa ll of 2007 , and his staff wrote a vacancy announcement that 
listed her current job description, as the position's duties. Several people applied, 
but she was selected as the most qualified applicant by 
Director, Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense of Counternarcotics 
and Global Threats, DoD. Shortly thereafter, OPM denied the conversion of -
from a Schedule~ to a career appointment. . was not aware 
of the reason. - added that he placed the vacancy announcement out 

I This report Is the property of the Office of Inspector General, and is For Official Use Only. It contains 
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 00-2009-0060-1 

several months before the change of administration so it would not appear that his 
office was guilty of "burrowing" or improperly converting a· political appointee to a 
career position. He also stated that he asked the DbD Human Resources Office in 
Dahlgren, Virginia, to review the announcement and make certain his office was 
not violating any rules or regulations in their attempt to convert-

•••was not aware of how the Treasury became aware of 
her position, but believes it was probably through conversations with 

losing 

(Agent's Note: - stated that contacted him telephonically in 
January 2009 regarding the hiring of Ledeen.) 

~ad worked with members of Trea~gency meetings for three 
years. Once Treasu~als informed -s office that they were 
interested in hiring ..._and could detail her back to the DoD if needed, 

- an~assisted with writing the MOU and interagency agreement 
~two agencies. 

In February 2009, -was hired by Treasury. Approximately three weeks 
later, she was detailed back to the DoD. From February to August 2009, 

saw her daily at the DoD. However, - would also go to 
Treasury regularly for meetings. In August 2009, she was detailed to Afghanistan 
for one year after a new MOU was agreed upon by DoD and Treasury. 

stated that he never advised-to misrepresent herself as a DoD 
employee and not a Treasury employee. He and .. simply informed -
that she was working under DoD authority and would represent DoD at interagency 
meetings. He stated, "he did not care how she introduced herself ." 

stated that he believes -s an expert in threat finance because 
of her knowledge in the field . She was also the only one in DoD handling threat 
finance for the last two years . does not believe anything improper 
occurred in the hiring and detailing of ~y DoD and Treasury. (Exhibit 14) 
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Interview of 

On August 13, 2009, the OIG/01 int erviewe'd , Intelligence Liaison , 
OIA, Treasury . -has been employed with Treasury since February 2009 . 
She previously was employed as a Defense Fellow and Program Analyst in the 
Defense Reconstruction Support Office, DoD, and Counter Threat Finance 
Coordinator in the Office of the Secretary of Defense, DoD. She also worked 
closely with and met with officials from various agencies, including -In approximately the spring of 2008 , management at the DoD created a vacancy 
announcement for the position of Foreign Affairs Special ist . - was a 
Schedule C appointee and the position advertised in the vacancy announcement 
would be a career position. - applied and was selected. She later learned 
that OPM denied the conversion so she could not be selected for the pos ition. She 
did not know the reasons provided by OPM. 

In December 2008, she received a letter from the Obama DoD Transition Team 
requesting her resignation and informing her that she would lose her position on 
January 20, 2009. - decided that she would not send a resignation, but 
would send a let ter stating her case to keep her position . She would also send 
references from individuals within the federal intelligence field. - recalled 
that she sent e-mails and made telephone calls to individuals at Treasury, the 
National S~ Council, and the Joint Staff Committees. She recalled that she 
contacted - but w as not certa in if he rep lied . She was also not certain if she 
sent the proposed letter. 

- was terminated at the DoD on January 20, 2009 . She stated that her 
resume an~escript ion at the DoD w ere sent t o the OIA, Treasury, in January 
2009, by - Sometime in January 2009 , she received a t elephone call from 
OIA, Treasury offering her t he posit ion of Int ell igence Liaiso n, GS 15 . -
co uld not recall who called her with the job offer, and was not certain of her start 
date, except that it was February 2009. In February 2009, - began at 
Treasury as an Intelligence Specialist . Approximately three weeks later , her detail 
began at DoD . She now is located at the DoD, but comes to Treasury 
approximately three times per week for meetings. Her supervisor at DoD is 
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-tated that she never deliberately misrepresented herself. According to the 
~tween Treasury and DoD, she is to inform employees and individuals that 
she is a Treasury employee representing DoD on threat finance matters. -
has informed everyone she meets that she is a Treasury employee. 

~tated that her being detailed to the DoD is beneficial to Treasury because 
she can work on a daily basis with DoD officials regarding Treasury OIA matters. 
She added that she is an asset to Treasury and DoD because she has a Masters in 
Business Administration, has worked in Iraq and Afghanistan, and is one of a few 
people who understand threat finance. She stated "no one else does this." -
stated that the manner she was hired may be "confusing'' to an outsider, but does 
not believe her hire and detail is suspicious, and does not believe Treasury or DoD 
officials acted improperly. (Exhibit 15) 

Interview of 

On September 22, 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed Deputy Assistant 
Secretary for Human Resources and Chief Human Capital Officer, Treasury. 

tated that she was not aware of the hiring or detailing o ntil she 
( was contacted by ~nd - in February 2009. ould not 
recall all of the specifi!i"cs re arding the meeting, but recalled that and_ 
were concerned how was hired and immediately detailed back to the DoD 
from where she was ired. - s~ed that she was concerned, but did not 
have all the facts so she informed-and -that she would look into the 
matter. - also stated that she was frustrated with the BPD because they did 
not inform anyone at Treasury Office of Human Resources that a former Schedule 
C appointee was being converted to a competitive position close to the Presidential 
transition . - added that BPD handles Treasury ' s staffing, classifications , 
benefits, and retirement matters , but Treasury Human Resources is still supposed 
to oversee BPD regarding these matters . 

~sked ~ty, , to contact BPD regarding this hire. -
learned from -that as hired with the use of Schedule A authority, 
and did not know she was a Schedule C unti l they made the of f icia l job offer to 
-9 BPD stated that they did not contact the OPM regarding the hire as 
requ ired when a government agency attempts to convert a Schedule C to a 
competitive posit ion near a presidential t rans ition, because it was unnecessary 
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since she was being appointed using Schedule A authority and the transition 
t imeframe had elapsed . She stated that -agreed with t heir decision, but 
informed BPD that they should contact Treasury Human Resources regarding future 
appointments of Schedule C appl icants. 

tated that she or -also contacted- He informed them that 
was hired because she would be an asset to Treasury, and was not done to 

accommodate DoO . -was not aware that OPM denied DoD the ability to 
convert -from a Schedule C position to a competitive position. -
stated th~formation would "raise alarm bells" and make her look further into 
the hiring and the reasons OPM denied OoD the conversion. However, -
stated that Treasury did nothing improper by hiring -since she met the job 
qualifications, and is performing Treasury work. (Exhib7t""'1'"6f 

Interview of 

On September 25 , 2009, the OIG/01 interviewed 
Chief Human Capital Officer, Treasury. 

Deputy 

~tated that he received a telephone call from - in February 2009, 
regarding the hiring and deta iling of - He was not aware of-ntil this 
telephone call . - was concerned because - was a Schedule C 
appointement from another agency and was hired close to the Presidential 
transition . - explained that there are rules regarding the conversion of 
political appointees to competitive service near a Presidential transition, whiCh 
include notifying the OPM. -contacted , BPD .-explained 
that was hired usin~le A authority, and would b~ed to the 
DoD. informed her that BPD needed to make Treasury Office of Human 
Resources aware in the future of any hiring of former Schedule C appointees near a 
presidential transition. - agreed that future notificat ions would be made . 

- stated he was not concerned that - was being detailed to the DoD 
because several Treasu ry employees are det ailed t o other agencies. - was 
not aw are that OPM denied Do D the abil ity to convert - rom a Schedule C 
position to a compet itive position . - stated that ~rmation would not 
change his opinion because he doe~ieve OIA w ould use a limited Schedule 
A appointment to hire someone that was not needed. - stated that he 
could not recall anythng else, or any other conversations he had regarding this 
matter. (Exhibit 17) 
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FINDINGS 

Based on the evidence and information gathered during this investigation it was 
determined that the allegations regarding the improper hiring and detailing of 
-by-an~ were substantiated. 

REFERRALS 

Criminal 

Not applicable 

Civil 

Not applicable 

Administrative 

The investigation determined that -and ._improperly hired and detailed 
.. back to DoD subsequently circumventing the OPM's rules on converting 
former Schedule C positions. It is recommended that this information be provided 
to Treasury management for any action they deem appropriate. It is also 
recommended that this information be provided to the DoD OIG for any action they 
deem necessary. 

DISTRIBUTION 

Assistant Secretary of the Treasury for Management , Chief 
Financial Officer, and Chief Performance Officer, Department of Treasury 

- Director for Investigations of Sen ior Offi cials, Department of 
~Inspector General 

----Associate Director of Human Cap ital Leadership and Merit System 
~Office of Personnel Management 

---Attorney, Office of Special Counsel 
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EXHIBITS 

Number - Description 

1. Memorandum of Activity, Predicating Documents, dated April 15, 2009 . 

2. Memorandum of Activity, Review of Official Personnel Folder documents, 
dated June 1, 2009 . 

3. 

4 . 

5. 

6 . 

7 . 

8. 

9. 

10. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Resources Specialist, BPD dated July 16, 2009. 

Supervisory Human 

Memorandum of Activity, Review of documents regarding ~ 
appointment with Treasury, dated July 17, 2009. 

Memorandum of Activity, Teleconference with OPM officials, dated July 
24, 2009. 

Memorandum of Activity, List of applicants for DoD position, dated 
August 18, 2009. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-' Associate Director 
of Human Capital Leadership and M~ccountability, OPM, 
dated September 25, 2009. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Officer, Treasury, dated July 30, 2009. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Treasury, dated August 4, 2009. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Treasury, dated September 22, 2009 . 

Senior Resource 

Senior Counsel , 

Senior Counsel , 
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11. 

12. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of - Deputy Assistant 
Secretary for Intelligence Community ~, Treasury, dated 
August 5, 2009. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
OIA, Treasury, dated August 14, 2009 . 

Policy Advisor, 

13 . Memorandum of Activity, Interview of Deputy 
Director, Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense of 
Counternarcotics and Global Threats, DoO, dated August 27, 2009. 

14. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of Principal 
Director, Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense of 
Counternarcotics and Global Threats, DoD, dated August 27, 2009. 

15. 

16. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Liaison, OIA, Treasury, dated August 13, 2009. 

Intelligence 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Secretary for Human Resources and 
Treasury, dated September 22, 2009. 

Deputy Assistant 
Chief Human Capital Officer, 

1 7 . Memorandum of Activity , Interview of Deputy 
Chief Human Capital Officer, Treasury, dated September 25 , 2009. 
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DATE OF REPORT 

REPORT ST A TUS 

CASE NUMBER 

CASE TITLE 

PERTINENT 
STATUTEIS), 

REGULATION(S), 
AND/OR 

POLICYUESI 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

Final 

OCC-10-1724-1 

- NB-0905-06/2 
~el of Enforcement 
Enforcement and Compliance 
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency 

31 C.F.R. 0.213 - General Conduct Prejudicial to the 
Government (SUBSTANTIATED) 
5 C.F.R. 2635.704 - Use of Government Property 
(SUBSTANTIATED) 

SYNOPSIS 

On April 23, 2010, the Department of Treasury (Treasury), Office of the Inspector 
General, Office of Investigations (OIG/01), initiated an investigation based on 
in formation received from Senior Advisor Office of the Comptroller 
of the Currency (OCC), regarding an allegation that Special Counsel 
of Enforcement, Enforcement and Compliance, OCC, misused his credentials and 
badge during a traffic incident. (Exhibit 1) . 

Case Agent: Supervisory Approval: 

John L. Phillips 
ial Agent In Charge 

(Signature) 
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At the request of OCC the OIG/01 looked into the application for a concealed carry 
handgun permit in the State of Maryland, submitted by ... and -s 
involvement in a second road rage incident. · · 

, 

The invest igation determined that while driving to work - misused his 
Treasury issued OCC credentia~uring a traffic incident, presenting his 
badge to the complainant, - and to Sergeant 
Washington Metropolitan D.C. Police Department (MPD). 

In addition, - admitted during an interview that he did not use his OCC issued 
credentials and badge for OCC purposes during this incident. Therefore, the 
allegations of general conduct prejudicial to the government and use of government 
property are substantiated against-

DETAILS 

A. Allegation: It was alleged on April 13, 2010, - misused his OCC issued 
credentials and badge by presenting/displaying the credentials to the complainant, 

and later to Sergean~ MPD. 

B. Context I Background: -is a Special Counsel of Enforcement, Office of 
Enforcement in OCC. -has been employed with Treasury for approximately 
ten years as an attorn~iew of-s Official Personnel File (OPF) revealed 
no disciplinary actions during his tenu~ the government. 

INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY 

On May 4 , 2010, OIG/01 interviewed complainant . - advised 
while she was driving to work -cut her off at a traffic merge point, yelled at 
her, beat on the back of her car and later beat on the side of her window with his 
credentials . (Exhibit 2) 

On May 5, 20 10, OIG/01 interviewed Sgt . Maryland State Police 
{MSP). Sgt. - advised - applied to the state of Maryland for a 
concealed carry Handgun Permit. In order to be approved for a concealed carry 
Handgun Permit in t he state of Maryland a background investigation must be 
completed by the MSP. On January 20, 2010 the MSP assigned the background 
investigat ion of to Trooper First Class (Tfc.), . Sgt. 

- advised application for the concealed Handgun Permit was denied 
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by the MSP based on the findings of Tfc._s investigation. Sgt. -
advised . the official application and invest1gat1ve file was maintained at MSP 
headquarters . (Exhibit 3) 

On May 12, 2010, OIG/01 interviewed Trooper - MSP. Trooper -
advised he assisted Tfc . ._in completing-s background investigation. 
Trooper -advised during the course of the background investigation he talked 
to , ~supervisor, because-had used his employment as 
an attorney for OCC as a reason for his application for a concealed carry permit. 
Trooper - advised that - stated - did not have a need for a 
concealed carry permit relativ;tohis'duties an~onsibilities as an attorney for 
the OCC. (Exhibit 4) 

On May 13, 2010, OIG/01 received a facsimile copy of the completed Maryland 
State Police Licensing Division background investigation regarding -·s 
application and supporting material submitted for his concealed carry permit. The 
background investigation revealed ~ad previously been involved in a similar 
traffic type incident. The background investigation determined - does not 
need a handgun related to his employment and indicated-has a propensity 
for domestic violence. The application for a concealed carry permit was denied by 
MSP. (Exhibit 5) 

On May 14, 2010, OIG/01 interviewed the complainant . - was 
interviewed again in an attempt to gain information that would help identify the 
District of Columbia MPD Officer who arrived at the scene of the incident. (Exhibit 
6) 

On May 21 , 2010, OIG 01 interviewed Commander MPD, in an 
attempt to identify and interview the officer that arrived at the ·scene of t he 
incident. (Exhibit 7) 

On June 7, 201 0 , the OIG/01 interviewed MPD, Office of Unified 
Communicat ions (OUC) in an at tempt to locate and obtain any 91 1 recordings of 
t he incident in question and to ident ify the offi cer that arrived at t he scene of the 
incident . (Exhibit 8) 

On June 8, 2010, OIG/01 interviewed Assistant Director, Critical 
Infrastructure Protection & Security (CIPS), OCC. - stated - s 
supervisor, advised him they were aware of the concealed carry 
permit application because- w as contacted by the MSP during a background 
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investigation for the concealed carry permit to determine if-needed to carry 
a concealed weapon in the performance of his duties with OCC. (Exhibit 9) 

-advised -told the MSP that-did not need to carry a w~apon 
for his ~ent with OCC and OCC was unaware of any specific threat made 
toward ... n the course of his employment. - advised the MSP told 

- that -s application for a concealed carry permit would probably be 
denied because of anger issues they discovered during the background 
investigation. 

On June 8, 2010, OIG/01 interviewed Assistant Director, 
Enforcement and Compliance, OCC. -advised the MSP asked him if -
needed to carry a concealed weapon as part of his duties in his position with OCC. 
-dvised he told the MSP that-did not have a need for a concealed 
weapon in the course of his employment and referred the MSP to -s 
supervisor, the Director of Enforcement. (Exhibit 10) 

-advised he was aware of a second incident concerning- where it 
appeared to be a similar "road rage" type incident. - advised he does not 
know all of the details regarding the incident but he knew that -had gone to 
the police about the incident because he claimed to have been shot at by the driver 
of the other vehicle involved. 

On June 9, 2010, OIG/01 interviewed Special Counsel, Enforcement 
and Compliance, OCC. -was inte viewed during a telephone call to set up an 
interview regarding the incident with -provided information to 
assist in identifying the MPD officer that arrived at the scene of the incident. 
(Exhibit 11) 

-expressed concern that because of his knowledge of a previous dispute 
~n OCC and OIG/01 and his participation in this dispute, that this interview 
would be seen by his supervisors as retaliation against OCC by OIG/01. -was 
assured the impending interview was based solely on the allegations brought to t he 
attention of OIG/01 concerning the incident in question. - agreed to be 
interviewed at a later date. 
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Street in heavy traffic behind-s vehicle "stop that car", "stop that car" and 
flashing a badge out the window so that Sgt .-could see it. (Exhibit 12) 

On June 21, 2010, OIG/01 presented this case for consideration for criminal 
prosecution to Assistant United States Attorney, U.S. Attorney's 
Office for the District of Columbia. On that same date, AUSA - declined 
federal prosecution of (Exhibit 13) 

On June 24, 2010, OIG/01 interviewed ~as advised of the 
nature of the interview, provided personal history information and advised of his 
rights. -agreed to waive his rights and be interviewed. s· ned the 
Kalkines form indicating that he understood and waived his rights. advised 
he presented his ace credentials and badge to - at a red light during the 
incident and also to Sgt. _.... MPD while driving and again after Sgt. -
arrived at the scene of the ~t. (Exhibits 14, 15) 

-tated he recognized in hindsight he signed an ace form stating he would 
only use his credentials for official ace purposes and he recognizes that he did not 
use his credentials for official oce purposes in this incident. 

The interview of- was videotaped. 
videotape including a Memorandum of 
completed. (Exhibit 15, 16) 

On August 6, 2010 a copy of that 
Activity for media conversion was 

On August 6, 2010, OIG/01 interviewe~ MPD/UOe. ~d 
MPD/UOC had no ~teleph~e 911 center~s 
cellular telephone, - (Exhibit 17) 

FINDINGS 

The investigation determined - used his oec issued 
inappropriately, presenting them to - and Sergeant 
during the traffic incident as alleged in the complaint . 

badge and credentials 
I MPO, 

In addition,-admitted during an interview he used his OCC credentials in an 
unofficial capacity. Therefore, the allegat ions of general conduct prejudicial to the 
government and inappropriate use of government property are substantiated. 
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U.S.C. § 552. Anv unauthorized or unofficial use or dissemination of this information will be penalized. 
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REFERRALS 

Criminal 

On June 21, 2010, the facts of this case were presented .to 
Assistant United States Attorney, United States Attorney's Office, District of 
Columbia for violation of Title 1 8 USC § 242 - Deprivation of rights under the 
color of the law and Title 18 USC § 712 emblems, insignia and names. The case 
was declined for prosecution on the same date, and returned to Treasury OIG for 
appropriate administrative action. (Exhibit 11) 

Civil 

Not applicable 

Administrative 

The allegations of misconduct by -were substantiated. It is recommended 
that this information be provided to OCC management for any action they deem 
appropriate. 

RECOMMENDATIONS I DISTRIBUTION 

Senior Advisor, United States Department of Treasury, Office of 
the Comptroller of the Currency 

EXHIBITS 

Number Description 

1. Memorandum of Activity, Predicating Documents, dated April 16, 2010. 

2. 

3. 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview o 

Memorandum of Activity, Interview of Sgt . 
May 5, 2010. 

dated May 4, 2010. 

MSP, dated 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of Troope- MSP, dated 
May 12, 2010. 

This report is the property of the Office of Inspector General, and is For Official Use Only. It contains 
sensitive law enforcement information, the use and dissemination of which ls subject to the Privacy Act, 5 
U.S.C. § 552a. This information may not be copied or disseminated without the written permission of the 
OIG, which will be granted only in accordance with the Privacy Act and the Freedom of Information Act, 5 
U.S.C. § 552. Anv unauthorized or unofficial use or dissemination of this Information wlU be oenalized. 
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5. Facsimile of background investigation report received from Troop~r-
MSP, dated May 13, 2010. · · ·• 

6. Memorandum of Activity, Interview o 
2010. 

7. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of Commander 
dated May 21, 2010. 

8. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
June 7, 2010. 

dated May 14, 

MPD/OUC, dated 

9. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of•••••I OCC, dated June 8, 
2010. 

10. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
2010. 

, OCC, dated June 8, 

11. Memorandum of Activity, Interview o~ OCC, dated June 9, 
2010. 

12. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of Sgt. MPD, dated 
June 16, 2010. 

13. Memorandum of Activity, Criminal Referral, dated June 21, 2010. 

14. 01 Form-25, Advice of Rights (Kalkines), signed by dated 
June 24, 2010. 

15. Memorandum of Activity, Interview o OCC, dated June 24, 
2010. 

16. Memorandum of Activity, Media Conversion, dated June 24 , 201 0 . 

1 7 . Copy of Videotape of Interview of 

18. Memorandum of Activit y, Int erview of 
August 6, 2010. 

MPD/UOC, dated 

This report is the property of the Office of Inspector General, and is For Official Use Only. It contains 
sensitive law enforcement information, the use and dissemination of which Is subject to the Privacy Act, 5 
U.S.C. § 552a. This Information may not be copied or disseminated without the written permission of the 
OIG, which will be granted only in accordance with the Privacy Act and the Freedom of Information Act, 5 
U.S.C. § 552. Any unauthorized or unofficial use or dissemination of this information will be oenalized. 
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Office of the Inspector General 
U.S. J:?epartment of the Treasury 

, .. 

Report of Investigation 

Case Title: 

Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency 

Investigation Initiated: May 20, 2013 

Investigation Completed: )'UN 1 3 2013 

Origin: Anonymous 

Summary 

Case#; OCC-13-1250-1 

Case Type: Criminal 
Administrative X 
Civil 

Conducted by: -
~ 

Approved by: John L. Phillips 
Special Agent in Charge 

On April 21, 2013, the US Department of Treasury, Office of Inspector General, Office of 
I ions (TOJG) received an anonymous complaint regarding -former., 

Office of the Comp~urrency (O°CC) 
owning securities in the orporation in violation of federal ethics 
regulations and laws ( 1 xhibit 1) 

The investigation determined that the allegations are substantiated. ~id own securities 
in the . orporation and should have signed a recusal per OCC ethics regulatio!"ls. She should 

l have signed a recusal for ational Bank because she owned shares of~_. 
ecause of the apital Retail Bank, and the ~orporation~ 

at1onal Bank, are 1s e as commercial holding companies, but~ of these organizations 
was considered a conflict. of interest to OCC employees until J1..ifv .2011, when the OCC began 
i t.~ oversight <)f them. Pde{ w that date, t~H'' Offlc:-s ·~f Thrift ~~u µen.iiskm \GTS) h~.d 1N1~rnfght 

... 1veir tham_ 11i119s01a the !~''"~1.Lritles in ·"vfor~h l:\r:·d ,.:;.pr}; 2.fn 1, af\d ii~t9d th(~ tHvesh1i~ i~1 her 
() f"fr .. ~·~ of G~Jv·,~r nrne.Pi f·t f'rk ;a ti.JG£/ f-.1rr·:-. '2. 78 "'t::<.rJ.ct. i'!'.iv~ i:~'-Wii'lh P~.r.e;<.\\'H~a\ P·ubtic F1.~i.:?.nr:\;,~ 

n;.~i,:.'.kY:ttH~ Ht:j~·nrt .. 
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discretionary trust on his/her OGE Form 278 if he/she receives a distribution~ trust. 
-did receive distributions and did list them on her OGE Form 278. ~en sold 
the securities in March and A pril 2012, and listed the divesture on her OGE Form 278. 

Although there were no ethics violations per OGE regulations, there were ethics v iolations per 
OCC's ethics regulations. According to OCC ethics rules, an employee who owns the 
aforementioned securities, should obtain a recusal for particular matters regarding the financial 
institution. If the employee owns $20,000 or more in securities in one institution, t~mployee 
should contact his/her ethics official and obtain an expanded recusaf. Because the -ond was 
greater than $20,000,-should also have sought advice from her ethics official and 
signed a recusal for m~olvin~tal Retail Bank. She should have also obtained a 
recusal for particular matters lnvolvin9111P'Jational Bank. -isted these securities on 
her 2011 form dated June 12, 2012, as required, but never o~recusals. 
Ethics Counsel, OCC, suggested a recusal to- June 2012, once she reviewe 
OGE Form 278, but a recusal was never si ned because ~ad sold the securities in 
March and April 2012. It is unclear when ecame aware that the discretionary trust 
held securities in .orporation and It appears that~versaw no enforcement 
activities on either organization, but records indicate that she was aware in~ 2012, of a 
large merger between . apital Retail Bank and-ank. Although ~hould have 
recused herself of any role inl9:apital Retail Ba~old her securities in this institution 
before the merger and possibre'Trnancial gain for___, 

1111119 aforement ioned OGE forms were reviewed by ethics officials at the OCC and Treasury, 
and no conflicts of interest were noted. An OGE official was also contacted and stated that 
Treasury's ethics program is reviewed periodically, and always performs well. The case was 
presented to the US Department of Justice, Public Integrity Section, and declined. 

;Basis and Scope of the Investigation 

Hp1.it.y t•.s:sisu:mt. G~:mmai Cmmr.ii.:;·'. f~v' LV'J :•t.:.~ ·f'r·:~ ·:!.Jurv 

tt)i,:;~ Protffa;·o ;~pi<) r.;bii !St Tri.·a~{.~ty 

Officer, Qffa:t:! of Guv~mrrHH~t Ethics 

r ·;r·:i·ii;"~fo~j;;rt,·::;n1~~~~~1~1~:~i.i!·. -:i~· i·:~:~ ··~;;~~~:1r·1·1.~,: ;::.r ~~;;·i~>-14;;:.~i· :.~:i· f~~·~:.~f~:i·'.:!;;;~~;;:i.,'~r:r;;;~:~·il~'.;:-~61~~t:·; ;;'i· i.;;~;··1~;;;r;;;~:i,,;:~--- · -.......... · ·[ 
i '.~;;:rM·1r:1~. ~~ 1;~mtaif•:~ ~~:&nsi\~''\) J~w 11~'!lfo·;;:,(~~~1;r.-n~ ~i-,1!4>'"'''"f.~.Jt.m ~r.i.d it~ r.:i:.·ntlim(~ 1r:~y llt.'11 tJi.~· r·4'.'pt<..~·13.1.11:s;i:~ 1t1~t1tlf·.lt , 
• 1 · • " ..i It:}.. ft; H >1.• "" f<f. 1ur' 1''~· " "'" ~"'V'i f"''""-f("' "·L· 't'"'l" f.'•NI " · '~ ~· · •' f •Nr. .• tte.ri ~i:irmts'll~C:l1'1- m ac::cn.,.~,.q·~'M~~ w ·~ •. H •.• 1,•··· :7 .... ,... H!l~ "rop~:;h u:-.; n .. !!"f .... ,d .... 1n • .... ).-: .,. ,, , ~n-d "" 1.,,it .• c:, •. ;.1~-11m~1·' J 
i ~~.~ ~r1:1;tiil'O~~rf.:'l'.t:d r.;~~-s;;;t,:Si i·;; p~'0~·1 lt.1if:«t.O J 
: ............. -..... .............. ...... ....... .............. -........... ,., ....... .......... ~ ........ --·-.---...... _. •' . ·-·· .. ·--· ,, . .... ..... --.. - ·-··-.. ··- ··-·-· ...... .............. ........... __ ,, __ , , .. _ .. ·- ······"· ... ..... ' --- . 
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During the course of the investigation, TOIG reviewed th'e following pertinent documents: 

• Office of Government Ethics (OGE) Forms 278 ''Executive Branch Personnel Public 
Financial Disclosure Report" 
• A Comptroller of the Currency Form CC-6026-03 "CCC Confidential Financial Disclosure 
report tor Covered Employees of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency" signed and 
dated by -n May 1, 2012 and-n July 16, 2012. 
• Memorandum entitled "Ethics Updat~d Ethics Bulletin on Bank Securities 
Prohibition" dated August 13, 2012. 
• Memorandum from Thomas Curry, Comptroller, entitled " Retirement from 
the OCC" dated August 1 2, 2012. 
• Memoranda from - Deputy Comptroller for Licensing, OCC, to­
entitled HLicensing N~ry 2012. 

Investigative Activity 

TOIG obtained and reviewed the following documents provided by the OCC: 

An OGE Form 278 "Executive Branch Personnel Public Financial Disclosure ReportH signed and 
dated by ~n June 12, 2012. The form showed the following securities with financial 
institutions owned by Williams: 

joint interest checking valuation $1,001 - $15,000 
- insured joint money market $1 , 001-$1 5, 000 

insured money market $1, 001-$15,000 
insured money market $ 1,001 -$15,000 

- money market account $250,000-$500,000 
~-Trust·· $500,000-$1 M 
~reditcard 

ank credit card 
o - corporate bond .. $50,000-$100,000 

Co -- corporate bond - $50,000·· $100,000 
Co-· stock· $L001·$'l 5,000 

orporntkm stock ~atk'>na( B.::ini<} .. ~ 1,{J01 -i!l ·15,GOO 
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Assistant General Counsel, Treasury, on April 15, . 201 3. The form liste.d the same securities as 
the previous OGE Form 278, but also reflected the following transactions: 

I -trade 4/3/12 settle 4/9/12- $50,001-$100,000 
- trade 3115/12 settle 3/20/12 - $1,001 - $15,000 
Corporation- trade 4/3/12 settle 4/9/12 $1,001 ~ $15,000 

A Comptroller of the Currency Form CC-6026-03 "OCC Confidential Financial Disclosure report 
for Covered Employees of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency" signed and dated by 
-on May 1, 2012 and-,n July 16, 2012. The~uests information on 
~ip of securities in ban~vings ~tions and _.-es ponds with a "no." 
Under uconflicts of Interest," -lists - Corporation - common stock and -
Corporation - bond. She also wntes that these two items were held by a trust and sold in 
2012. 

The documents also contained several ethics e-mails. One such e-mail was from­
Senior D'eputy Comptroller and Chief of Staff, to "all OCC employees" subject "Ethics Update ...:. 
Revised Eth ics Bulletin on Bank Securities Prohibition" dated August 13, 2012. The bulletin 
reads, in part; " If the value of the employee's securities interest in any single bank, savings 
association or affiliate (including a commercial holding company that owns a bank or a savings 
association) approaches $20,000 or.if the aggregate value of the employee's securities in 
multiple banks, savings associations or affiliates (including commercial holding companies) 
approaches $45,000, the employee must contact an ethics officer to obtain guidance on the 
scope of his recusal. Since additional restrictions from the Office of Government Ethics apply 
when an employee holds securities in excess of $25,000, of any one bank or savings 
association or affiliate, including a commercial holding company, or more than $50,000 of 
securities in such entities in the aggregate, the employee would need to observe an expanded 
recusal that would generally preclude the employee from participating in the development of 
banking industry policies, regulations, or legislation." 

This e-mail w as dated the same day as an e-maii from T~ Comptroller of the 
Currency, to "all OCC employees" with the subject as ,._retirement from the OCC'' 
rfated August '! 3, 2012. (Exhibit 2) 

TOIG interviewed stattKf 1!;,,3t -WBS h~~r 
i11 ~fr1:'(!t SVf!t'fVl~vr. 1rect ~'i.!Dftfvisor ;t; C.irnct::i~ f;:;•r- Ad.1ninisirEsth·~ i1nll 
•1•. tterna£ la~:;<. O N'? o s •:fl.?t.pcns·ib~tifa~:'l is r~viewing th.a Office c·f G•-,vttmnmnt c;~h 'r..'? 

1.·~ , .. f ... f •, .. "' 1 .. 1 u- .. ·"· •.• :, .. ,,.,1,-;.,. ! .. , .. ~,.,·~·.··H« .... .''""'.::.~'.·' .r. ':··-~; h., •:- . . n .. , .... \.''."'": ·· r1;.,! .. •'·:,"' '· "'".'.:··"' ' "" •• 
it]-t'·~ r~ ~ f.'f)T'""" ·"! "Kt;:·,. " E-"'8CUtlV ... '1• " "" •. ;.., ;~•.,,.,. .,... ~ ""l'""'-l a, ,r-.i·: ., 1~;·~91 •" ·· ·· .... ·1·:.! r~' ~ ,.,· ......... , ,.,.,,,, ·'·7:,.,, ..• , .,.,. ._,, .~, .. :-..:., •.. 1'\.i.., •"' 
',fm .. wf·.; cm Ma:y 1 f)V l for 1:.~i'.Hta 1ri 1~r.1toi.0'111~.1,.~::t: ·;fr.>r 1JU •. , ·t. ~~-~ •;mplnltf>.k.i~ in i~1-~ht.'.$. !3 :t.H•~J ·:~ J 
~.~x;Hn:n+;1:~ i.hi~ ·fom• f<n typt'l~ of ·:c f\!-t:~urhlt'!s 1:swn·~'d !m11 t.lm arm.~L1llf'..\i c~v1•f!eci n.:.> m~.i\e 1.;s.rt"'i!n Th~1r1:1 
i.~ no c~mfli;~t of interest pet ·nu:t OGE regu!atil:mf;. I:; _.s ~;itSt-) .. b~r for!'Y1S ~r1«R1!d have li ~:ian 
rov!awrsd h·,- ._and then sent to tho f.:thics GHke ··.1vithi(' ?he~ Gific'1 c;( Giflnt~1n~ ·~.~c;.mse! .:1~ 
~~1s 0;,i.p~uttnect :7ff TrM-~nv. -~xptf1.i.1{td thur t.\:e O<:~E Fon n 27-::: -~ ,;,r ·~ht=1 C(.·1-r1fi~;·~· lti.-1t (~r,,_;; 

1·'.:; .:;1.~~; ~;1:~;;;1: ~_;r~~;~~,;1;tX~~ii~.,; i;; ·;f,;,·r;:;~; ~r't·it ;r£ri; ·~:·i.ff.ir.:;·,:;r~ ~<~:;;~t,,~;tf.;~;.;;·· ri r:i.:~~;;;:~:~ii4::~ · Gt-~i·.·~~ .. J-~;~~;;~~:;~·--· · · -·· - -··1 
I G•'t'1i•:..r;11~. it. i.l1~r.1t:.1Jt1~ ~~/'li$!flH) 1.1w t>.:sf~}'{llt'tr.~i,,mt ~nfo,rm:~it!()•1·~ J.;r.,;;I :,~'ii C(1.utrm~1.1 m.;i~· 'mi oi" rtt~~l'l.Jf..(•.1:.~':+o. withr.1t!1; ( 
! w.rltter• p-:.~m~~s:it !~n1 1"1 .l'li~(:~d•Wt;;o wtm 5 t.nu~. § ~~2. T~i~ ff.\f;Qtr:'. i3 FO~~ tJFr-~r;::f.1. !i.!~!'.; OM.X ·1J1r.id r.:.-n: (~~'l!tf';~~·1~1ilf;rr.1 i 
\._ !·~ .. ~ ~'~.:-:~!~~!~!-~~ .P.~.~~~:!!. i~ F'..'.~~!.!_l~!t.~.~~~---·-- ........ --·-·· .... ·-·- ·· .. --· . --- ... ·········-· --···· - . ··-·· ... ·-· ·····-·--·· --·-- . ·-~·-·w-·· ·· · .... . ·-· -··· J 
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the Chief Counsel are· sen't to Tre~sury t'or additional review because of their rank within the 
acc. 

-tated that ~id list several securities involving financial institutions on her 2011 
~12 OGE Form 278s. The forms list several lllt money market accounts, a -
trust and m!iiey market,. a.Company corporate bond and.stock valued at "$1,00~ 
$15,000." xplainert'hat checking accounts, savings accounts, money markets, and 
bonds normally ave no conflict of interest. Stocks, however, are an equity interest where a 
change in the organization can directly affect the stock's value. Therefor~, a · dividual is 
normally limited in the amount he/she can own in an individual stock. In ' s case, she 
owned less than $15,000 in .tock so that was not an issue. Her stock in and_ 
were also of less importance because they were stocks within a discretionary rust she was 
bequeathed from her mother. 

After reviewing 2011 OGE Form 278 which listed the large ~nd, and stocks in fl 
and , ent ~n e-mail recommending a recusal for=sapital Retail Bank 
and Na rona Bank~cusal would simply be a precaution to prevent perceived 
conflicts. It was not a requirement because both stocks were listed under $15,000 and the 
bond was part of a discretionary trust. -responded that the trust had sold these 
securities. She also stated that she had~d a representative of the trust not to purchase 
securi·ties in any financial institutions. ,..stated that a recusal was not written because the 
securities had bee·n sold. (Exhibit 3) . 

TOIG interviewed-, Senior Deputy Comptroller and Chief of Staff, OCC. He stated 
that he has been employed with the CCC since May 2012. He was previously with the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation and Verizon Wireless. 

~ad no knowle~-- o~curities in 9:apital Retail Bank or any other 
~ial institution. -added that~ would noti:'ve been involved in the "day to day 
involvement" with any financial institution. She would have only been involved in enforcement 
matters. He was not aware of any enforcement matters involving .apital Retail Bank in 
201 1 or 2012. 

TOiG questione~eg~rcli.rlg a rrwnwrandum h his. nm-r1a ~ntit!ed NE:thks Updat.f.i .. .f?.e-ivi1'.led 
Ethif.:;5 f.h/ietin M~ Sr:J•:;.1Jdtias P:rohl1ition'' d~st+Jd ;~ugust 13, 20i 2 , ;· ~fi. st::ttf1'1 that h$ fa <"t 

'.• i.t:;rnh~r cf ;;.~\nai.rn~ $Obm.:.mt;"ineer. at the t)CC. Gc 6 iia the.- H1;m1.m C;:.~1 it~~ ' ::.:::.!.t~,.:·:>mn.·fr::'!d.~, 

M~mbi'r5 ';I: t~1at ~;.ubD.:.:'('t\J'\'~ i·ltnt':i "i'J$t~;~rd1~m ~n•J 1.n.rr~1· tt:t l~~ w.~~1"1"1t.:.0t'W'11.hm:! , Hr.: :Jfi/k:$V$'!S Hw fin;t 
dra::it ·:~1 0s brm.:r~:r1.t t<:tnH~ thcf: s4..1l,.:.i>.:!.::11Pt'.'if~h·lt?l- i':·~ .Jur~.~ ~r.,q :,!.~ . f-its ~:.t~~t<:~:i ·!fo~f l:h~·' r-n1:::rn.:'.7 wa.'.~ 

drnftoJ ·m remind t>rnp!''"f":?i~~; ·'.~f 1h\"J 1'.rthi~~: re~J t;iaunns ~;t'Jr the OGE. Hn believe~ t~1 (} t:minc; v·1,1,,; 
a!~o boc~•mse it was the on~} ~" f!ar ~mn!vars1;3ry of OCC: a·~;q.t.Jiilri? n~any Onit:i;ll ~Jf Thdfl ~.:iupsTvi.~.ic~n 
r.-tfftJ)!Oy~)e~ ... est•Jtecf tb.'!t hrl' <ll.~c~ ;:issisfed 1Nith th1:.. dr:.'fftinij =::;~: th1? m f:":'1\.lrn'1d1 .. m~ t:"~lm 
.... h•:; m;:t~'i. CiJ;r.nr, Cc~r•pti~.1,:i fl'!', •.'ntit.i:i::.d '·· P~~·~(;;~m il''"I\ f!"C·rn iJ1~ OCC ."' H1e !a<;t' •: ha;. 

r· :r~ ~;··p;,;,~;r.~;r.:";-;· f;;:;.~~t~:~~~t~;:;~~j~i;;·i·t.;~~-.;~~~,;;;.t,:Y;·~;•~,;;·~drii~~; ;,;;-::r.;:tt;.~,~i~:i1i;i;.~-~·,~~r.:;;;~~-;;0; ·.{;·r~:.:;'.f;~;~· ~i'i~ .. ;;;;;';~'~:t;,;,;-···· · · ... · · · ·r 

I {~11'-H"l:r.~t lt ..:l.:.l/!k'/1\~JU!;; ~.~ri~!t,Vlit' li{W r:~i'f(W:~CJm~ttt h') f0il1''.'~~krn ~n.J. ~$ 1';. 1!)i"#t;~./.'l~ /H~l~ l(I,''~ f~ l"~J.~m11.w.:~.i'l ll'lit,)t=·~';.l.t f 
1~nt.~.1:'l'r~ .~li.l~~Hl-!!~f.(m Ir~ i\~l~o~·ctan;~Mi ',F,:~h ~ U-~.t~. ~ 5.~.~. rt-.~ tt.~Vi·:~.1 i~; f m{ Ci!~f~CI.~l f.fSF.:. .om.:f ~r;.1,! iia 'f!i!Si•,jfol1'1.t~'1 j 
10 'm~tifl>e<~~ ?.-9f~ns ff( ptol'iibft~'l!. 1 
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both~ ~-emos were 'rel~ased to 6tc staff the same day (August 13, 2012) was simply a 
coincidence. (Exhibit 4) 

A ent's Note:.-, Senior Advisor, was contacted regarding enforcement activities 
for apital ~ ~ational Bank. There were no enforcement activities for 
either institution in 2011 or 20~ 

TOIG interviewed Deputy Assistant General Counsel for Ethics, Treasury. 
-tated that she and her office are responsible for reviewing ethics matters for Treasury 
~es, to include reviewing the OGE Form 278 "Executive Branch Personnel Public 
Financial Disclosure Report" which is due yearly on May 15th for certain employees (n-rmall 
grades GS 15 and higher, or anyone designated by the OGE, or the specific agency.) 
and her office also review these forms for the senior management of the OCC, to include 
- The reviewers examine the form for types of securities owned and the amounts 
~o make certain there is no conflict of interest per the OGE regulations. In William's 
case, her forms would have been reviewed by -and then sent to ~ office where 
~nd Ethics Progra~ialist, would also review. 

TOIG and -hen discussed the OGE Form 278s completed b or 2011 and 
2012. The orms list several~oney market accounts, a rus and money market, 
~ompany corporate bon~tock valued at "$1,001 - 15,000." -stated that 
a~gh -was required to list the aforementioned securities, owning ~as not a 
conflict of interest per OGE standards. She explained that checking accounts, savings 
accounts, and money markets have no conflict of interest and are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation. Bonds are a debt holding or obligation. An individual would have to 
own so much that the individual's bonds could somehow affect the company . Stocks, 
however, are an equity interest where a change in the organization can directly affect the 
stock 's value. Ther=wn individual is normally limited in the amount he/she can own in an 
individual stock. In -·s case, she owned less than $15,000 irllla\;o that was not an 
issue. -also added that - ow ned this stock for a very ~t period . • pital 
Retail B~t under the overs~he OCC after the OTS-mr ed into the OCC in :July 
2011. She -also believed through conversations with and-that 

inhe~is stock, as well as other securities, after the eat of ~her . .. 
sold t he ecurities in 2012, according to the 2012 form. 111i9 1ater resigned from the 
OCC, in approximately December 201 2. 

- stated that she saw nothing on - s financial disclosure forms that was a conflict of 
~er OGE regulations. If she ha~ould have contacted - o speak with 
- regarding a recusal for oversight on organizations w ith the perceived conflict of 
interest. (Exhibit 5) 

This Report of Investigation is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement information and its contents may not be reproduced without 
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TOIG interview'ed· . thics Program Specialist, Treasury. '119tated 
that she and hero tee are responsible for reviewing ethics matters for Treasury employees, to 
include reviewing the OGE Form 278.~erforms a technical review on these forms 
which she described as a "line by Line" review of all of the securities listed for securities that 
would violate OGE's conflict of interest regulations. She then signs the form as the first 
reviewer and _..,ould be the final signer. These forms are maintained by her office for six 
years per OGE regulations, and are available to the public. 

~tated that she saw nothing on- financial disclosure forms that was a conflict 
~t per OGE regulations. If she h~would have informed-... Joes 
not speak with the employees directly because she is not an attorney ~II not give advice 
regarding recusals or divestures. ~dded that-has a lengthy background in 
federal ethics and would not have~ - f~ad there been any conflict of 
interest. (Exhibit 6) 

TOIG telephonically interviewed - Desk Officer, Office of Government Ethics 
(OGE). ~tated that the ~is due yearly on May 15th for certain employees 
(normally~ GS 15 and higher, or anyone designated by the OGE, or the specific agency.) 
The agency ethics personnel review the form and consult with the agency employees whether 
divesture or recusals are necessary for any of the holdings listed on the form. OGE only reviews 
the forms for employees that are presidentially selected and senate confirmed. OGE will also 
review forms at the request of an agency, if the agency ethics personnel have any questions or 
concerns. -stated that Treasury is one of the agencies that he "services" b~ing 
questions an providing assistance, if needed. He stated that he often speaks with~nd 
believes she and her staff are very competent with their program and the federal ethics 
regulations. -dded that his office performs periodic program reviews of agency ethics 
offices, and~ performs well. He believes Treasury was last reviewed in 2011. 
(Exhibit 7) 

The anonymous whistleblower provided additional documents to the TOIG. The one 
memorandum is from -Deputy Comptroller for Licensing, OCC to 
the subject "Licensing~anuary 13, 2012. The document discusses 

ith 

Bank and ~esources Incorporated . Specifically, the memo contains the following: 
'-8~ (-s planning to file a 5.53 Change in Asset Composition application 
this week. At the e~10, the bank announced the sale of $7.5 billion in deposits to. 
Capital w ith the remaining $3 billion in deposits to be transferred out of the bank within 6 
months ... " 

The whistleblower also provided a memorandum dated January 27, 2012, from ~o 
- w ith the subject " Licensing Notes." One paragraph discusses a~t will 

change the composition of all of its assets," but does not mention th apital Retail Bank. 
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Bo~h documents contai~ handwritten notes which the whistleblower claims belong to _. 
(Exhibit 8) 

TOIG reviewed stock shares from the.orporation website. On June 15, 2011, the 
timeframe when - o~the orporation stock and bond, and when the OCC would 
have begun the o~ o~apital Retail Bank, the stock was worth $18.39 per share. 

~d her stock shares on March 15, 2012, and the value was $20.16 per share. She 
sold h~ond on April 3, 2012, at the value of $19.96 per share. 

~apital Retail Bank was to acquire assets from -Bank in June 2012. On June 1, 
~ 2,9shares were valued at $18.54. On July 3, 2012, they were valued at $20.43. 
(Exhibit 9) 

Referrals 

TOIG presented the case to Attorney, US Department of Justice (DOJ), Public 
Integrity Section (PIS), and the case was declined. (Exhibit 10) 

Judicial Action 

NIA 

Findings 

The investigation determined that the allegations are substantiated. ~id own securities 
in the-orporation and should have signed a recusal per OCC ethics regulations. She should 

t o have signed a recusal for National Bank because she owned shares of-stock. 
because of the apital Retail Bank, and the --=orporation, for -

ional Bank, are lis e as c rcial holding companies, but n~ of these organizations 
was considered a conflict of interest to ace employees until July 2011 ' when the ace began 
its oversight of them. Prior to that date, the OTS had oversight over t hem. 

According to OCC ethics rules, an employee who owns the aforementioned securities, should 
obtain a recusal for particular matters regarding the financial institution. If the employee owns 
$20 ,000 or more in securities in one institution, the e~yee should contact his/her ethics 
official and obtain an expanded recusaf. Because the 91J>ond was greater than $20,000, 

- should also have sought advice from her ethic · official and signed a recusal for matters 
~g ~ital Retail Bank. She should have also obtained a recusal for particular matters 
involving 111111111t'ational Bank. - isted these securities on her 2011 form dated June 12, 
2012, as required, but never obtained recusals. - suggested a recusal tor9 n June 
2012, once she reviewed 9i11' OGE Form 27~ recusal was never signed because 

This Report of Investigation Is the property of the Office of Investigation, Treasury Office of the Inspector 
General. It contains sensitive law enforcement Information and Its contents may not reproduced without 
written permission in accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552. This report is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure 
to unauthorized persons Is prohibited. 



_, 

Report of lnv--s · · 
Case Name: 
Case # OCC- - -
Page 9of10 

·-ad sold the securities in March and April 2012. It is unclear ~ecame .. 
aware that the discretionary trust held securities in.orporation and ~ears that 
-versaw no enforcement activities on either organization, but records indicate that she 
was aware in January 2012, of a large merger between llCapital Retail Bank and_ 
Bank. Although~hould have recused herself of any role in .. apital Reta~she 
sold her securities in this institution before the merger and possible ~cial gain for .. 

- aforementioned forms were reviewed by ethics officials at the OCC and Treasury, and 
no conflicts of interest were noted. An OGE official was also contacted and stated that 
Treasury's ethics program is reviewed periodically, and always performs well. 

Distribution 

Senior Advisor, Office of the Comptroller of the Currency 

Signatures 

Case Agent: 

!;;./If //1 
Date 

0?/(.J 
Date 
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Exhibits 

1. Anonymous complaint, dated April 21, 2013. 

2. Memorandum of Activity, Review of documents, dated May 13, 2013. 

3. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
16, 2013. 

Ethics Counsel, CCC, dated May 

4. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-Senior Deputy Comptroller and Chief 
of Staff, CCC dated May 30, 2013. 

5. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Counsel for Ethics, Treasury, dated May 15, 2013. 

6. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of 
Treasury, dated May 15, 2013. 

Deputy Assistant General 

thics Program Specialist, 

7. Memorandum of Activity, Interview of-Desk Officer, Office of 
Government Ethics, dated May 28, 20~ 

8. Memorandum of Activity, record review of memoranda provided by whistleblower, dated 
June 4, 2013. 

9 . Memorandum of Activity, record review of 
2013. 

stock data, dated June 6, 

10 . Memorandum of Activity, declination of case by the US Department of Justice, Public 
Integrity Section, dated June 6, 2013. 
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